
ABABABAB    
SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 16 MARCH 2011 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

3. Minutes 
 

 

 3.1 Joint Scrutiny Meeting (Budget) - 6 January 2011 
 

1 - 6 

 3.2 2 February 2011 
 

7 - 14 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

 

5. Complaints Monitoring Report 2009/10 
 

15 - 34 

6. Peterborough Local Investment Plan 
 

35 - 130 

7. Update on Prestige Homes 
 

131 - 136 

8. Progress on the Development of the City Centre Area Action Plan 
 

137 - 138 

9. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 

139 - 150 

10. Date of Next Meeting 
 

 

 Wednesday 23 March 2011 at 7pm 

 
 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Louise Tyers on 01733 452284 as soon as possible. 
 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: M Dalton (Chairman), S Allen (Vice-Chairman), N Arculus, D Day, J Peach, S Lane 
and G Murphy 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: D Morley, A Miners and S Goldspink 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Louise Tyers on telephone 01733 

452284 or by email – louise.tyers@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

 
 



ABABABAB    
 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE JOINT MEETING OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

AND COMMISSIONS - BUDGET HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBER - TOWN HALL  
ON 6 JANUARY 2011 

 
Present: Councillors M Dalton (Chair), Arculus, C Burton, M Collins, D Day, 

S Day, R Dobbs, D Fower, J A Fox, J R Fox, D Harrington, 
Y Lowndes, P Nash, J Peach, B Rush, B Saltmarsh, N Sandford, 
A Shaheed, G Simons, J Stokes and J Wilkinson 
 

Cabinet Members: Councillors M Cereste, M Lee, S Dalton, G Elsey, P Hiller,  
J Holdich, D Lamb, S Scott, D Seaton, and I Walsh 
 

Directors: Gillian Beasley, Chief Executive 
Helen Edwards, Solicitor to the Council 
John Harrison, Executive Director-Strategic Resources 
Mike Heath, Commercial Services Director 
Andrew Mackintosh, Director of Communications 
Paul Phillipson, Executive Director Operations 
Denise Radley, Executive Director of Adult Social Services 
John Richards, Executive Director - Children's Services 
 

Officers: Steven Pilsworth, Head of Strategic Finance 
Vicki Palazon, Financial Services Manager 
Louise Tyers, Scrutiny Manager 
 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Allen, Goldspink, Lane,  Over and 
Todd. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

3. Budget 2011/12 and Medium Term Financial Plan to 2015/16  
 
We welcomed the Cabinet Members and Directors to the meeting.  The Chairman 
particularly welcomed Andrew Mackintosh, the new Director of Communications to the 
meeting. 
 
The report came to the Joint Meeting as part of the Council’s agreed process for budget 
setting and informed the Meeting of the Cabinet’s revised proposals for the Medium Term 
Financial Plan to 2015/16 following the Cabinet’s meeting on 20 December 2010.  The 
Cabinet Member for Resources gave an update on what had happened since our meeting in 
November 2010. 
 
The Cabinet had pursued the following approach in developing its budget: 
 

• Robustly pursuing its efficiency agenda. 
• Considering different methods of service delivery e.g. private and voluntary sector. 

1



• Reducing the number of people employed by the organisation and reducing senior 
management costs. 

• Property rationalisation. 
• Reductions in services only where the above approaches did not deliver the savings 

required. 
  
The local government finance settlement had now been announced and its key points were: 
 

• Formula grant would be reduced by over 10% (£8.9m) for 2011-12 and by another 
7.8% (£5.6m) in 2012-13  

• Grant clawback removed £4.8m from Peterborough next year, and another £2.5m the 
year after that 

• By 2012-13 over £1m would be top-sliced for academies 
• A new formula meant we received £700k less than predicted for concessionary travel, 

and £900k less for adult social care 
• The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) impact: 

– 2011-12 - £2.6m million less 
– 2012-13 - £4.3m million less 
– Due to changes in how Government calculated funding allocation, plus higher 

front-loading of cuts 
• A range of grants for children’s services, including sure start and connexions, had 

been placed into a single pot (Early Intervention Grant) and cut by 13%. 
• A number of Area Based Grants totalling £1.7m, including education grants provided 

to the authority for use across the city, were ‘missing’ 
• The total impact could be around £2.3m for 2011-12 
• The grant for Adult social care would be paid via health: 

– £2M in 2011-12 and 2012-13 
 
The final summary position for the budget was therefore: 

 
 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

 £k £k £k £k £k 

Settlement Budget Position 475 -2,959 -8,560 -19,920 -25,254 

Minor Updates 206 116 118 124 118 

Updated Carbon Tax Estimate 
and Energy Savings 

286 287 225 237 237 

Capital Savings 7 38 88 136 181 

PCT Income   -300 -300 -300 

Update to Grants with ring-
fencing removed 

-1,824 -1,209 -594 -594 -594 

Additional Pressure on VAT on 
staff car park permit charging 

-125 -141 -158 -158 -158 

Voluntary Redundancy Savings 500 200 200 200 200 

Pension Scheme Valuation 1,200 2,400 3,600 3,795 3,990 

Debt Repayments 1,007 1,809 2,818 3,067 3,123 

Revised Budget Position 1,732 542 -2,562 -13,413 -18,456 

 
Questions and observations were made in the following areas: 
 

• Was the proposed budget still sustainable in light of the Government’s final 
announcement and had enough cuts been made?  We believed that the budget was 
still sustainable but some of the figures from the Government had been interestingly 
presented.  We would like to be able to save more but we were getting to the point 
where we would need to cut services further.  The challenge for scrutiny was to 
examine whether the proposed £27m of savings next year were right. 

• Who decided on what the Council’s six priorities would be?  The priorities were set 
following discussion at Cabinet and were largely already contained within the 
Sustainable Community Strategy. 

2



• What was the expected overspend of £358K in the City Services budget down to?  A 
written response would be provided. 

• Why were there no figures projected for Right to Buy from 2012/13 onwards?  Figures 
had not been projected because the share agreement with Cross Keys Homes would 
have ended. 

• Who were the four unitary councils who had lower levels of council tax than 
Peterborough?  The other councils were, based on Band D properties: 

o Bracknell - £2 less 
o York - £5 less 
o Isles of Scilly - £55 less 
o Windsor and Maidenhead - £100 less 

• Did the proposed budget take into account the expected outcomes from this year’s 
Census?  This year we would be looking to deliver our best figures for Census 
returns.  2013/14 would be the first year when the Census returns would have an 
affect so nothing had yet been fed into the process.  We believed that we had a 
greater population than was officially stated and each extra person identified at the 
Census would mean £600 more to the city.  The Council, along with other councils, 
had mounted a campaign to the Department for Communities and Local Government 
(DCLG) to recognise our situation.  Members and Officers had met with Bob Neill MP 
who had agreed that if we could come up with a solution the new government would 
look favourably at us. 

• The funding for the Capital Programme was showing that up to £64m would need to 
be borrowed, what impact would increased interest rates have on the budget?  The 
borrowing would be through the Public Works Loan Board which was a Government 
agency whose rates were sharper than other institutions.  We looked at economic 
forecasts to ensure best value and our borrowing rates were well established.  We did 
not borrow as much as we used to and would look to pay off debt rather than borrow. 

• What would the impact be on the Council of the removal of ring fencing of grants?  
Removal of ring fencing would give the Council flexibility to make its own choices on 
where funding was allocated and this was welcomed at a local level. 

• Would we be able to achieve the growth needed to enable us to receive our share of 
the New Homes Incentive funding as some of the proposed developments in Site 
Allocations document may not come to fruition in the future?   We had not been 
optimistic in what we would be expecting from the New Homes initiative.  For 2011/12 
the amount we would receive was fixed and had been based on what had been built 
by October 2010.  It needed to be made clear that if we did not grow as a City we 
would lose funding to those areas which did grow. 

• What would the impact of the growing number of academies be on the Authority, 
particularly in Children’s Services?  Currently Peterborough had four academies, 
including one primary.  There was also a potential of two more during the coming 
year.  The proposed reduction by the Government of £1m over the next two years did 
not make sense as they had not yet said what services academies would not want 
from the Authority.  We would still have the responsibility for school improvement. 

• Some councils had ring fenced funding for Connexions and Sure Start, had 
Peterborough considered doing that?  We were not ring fencing any grants and a 
decision had been made to passport cuts in Children’s Services onto the services.  
Zero based budgeting was now happening on all grants and the Council was looking 
very carefully at future service delivery. 

• The budget proposals for Children’s Services made reference to deleting vacant roles 
and rationalising the back office, what roles would be deleted?  We had taken a 
radical look at how we provided corporate functions within the department.  During 
the recent voluntary redundancy programme those back office staff who had 
submitted an application had been recommended to go.  We were now starting to 
look at the department as a business, including what levels of staffing were needed. 
The review of back office roles had also enabled improvements in some service areas 

3



for example social work teams now had dedicated admin support. Other departments 
within the Council had already transformed their back office functions. 

• What was the latest position with concessionary fares?  Nothing had happened to the 
scheme except the Government had now removed responsibility for administration of 
the scheme from second tier councils.  Due to changes in the formula we would now 
be getting reduced funding however with one of the options we could have lost over 
£1m. 

• The proposed increases in fees and charges for adult social care were still showing 
as to be confirmed, how could scrutiny effectively scrutinise the proposals if all the 
details were not available?  A separate document was being developed on the 
proposed charges.  We had to change our Charging Policy due to revised 
Government guidance and the principle would be to no longer subsidise any of the 
charges. 

• Why were some of the increases in funding for areas such learning disabilities and 
older people so big year on year?  They had been modelled on experiences of each 
of the service groups.  These were groups that were growing quickly and we had to 
plan increases on numbers and in changing needs.  The increases were because 
more people would become eligible and some of the more complex needs were 
costly to meet. The figures put forward were 50% of our estimates. 

• What were the proposals for the Your Peterborough magazine?  It was proposed to 
remove the dedicated funding for Your Peterborough.  The new Director of 
Communications would be challenged to look at providing a mechanism at cost as we 
could no longer continue to subsidise it.  The magazine had been well received in the 
community. 

• We needed to maintain Your Peterborough in some form as a way for the community 
to access information.  This was a difficult judgment call to make.  The delivery of 
Your Peterborough cost a great deal of money and it was difficult to continue with it 
when cuts to services had to be made.  We would look at different ways of providing 
information to the community. 

• Your Peterborough was essential as not everyone would want to read an online 
version.  Future options could include selling additional advertising and having pick 
up points at various locations in the city.   It was clear that Your Peterborough had 
caused a lot of discussion and in view of this meeting we would be happy for a report 
to be produced on how information could be delivered in the future and would ask the 
Director of Communications to undertake a quick review. 

• Could ward councillors help to deliver Your Peterborough when they delivered their 
ward newsletters?   Regulations were in place around publicity but the offer was 
appreciated. 

• When Your Peterborough was initially introduced it was agreed that it would be used 
to advertise some of our public notices, therefore saving costs.  Could the magazine 
be used to publicise the information we were required to publish as well as possibly 
using an agency to sell advertising space?  These were areas that would be picked 
up during the review. 

• It was now being proposed that the post of Deputy Chief Executive would be deleted; 
however a number of years ago we were told that the post was vital.  What had now 
changed?   During the previous Senior Management Review there had been a move 
from an Assistant Chief Executive to a Deputy Chief Executive to improve the officer 
structure of the Council and to provide support to the Chief Executive.  Ben Ticehurst 
had undertaken the Deputy role and had delivered a number of pieces of work around 
HR and the growth agenda.  At the end of his post a view was taken that we would 
not recruit for six months to see if the work could be absorbed by other officers.  
Since then the work has been taken on by the Chief Executive and Executive Director 
of Strategic Resources. 

• What were the plans to replace the former Principal Democratic Services Officer?  It 
was proposed not to replace this post.  A restructure was about to take place and it 

4



would be proposed that Democratic Services would merge with the Compliance and 
Ethical Standards Team, however this was subject to consultation. 

• What assurances were there that the support to scrutiny would not be cut as the level 
of support was already low?  The proposed restructure of Democratic Services would 
provide the same level of support to scrutiny. 

• Excellent support had been given by Democratic Services at Neighbourhood 
Councils. 

• During the last elections some agents felt that they knew the Electoral Commission’s 
guidance better than the staff working in electoral services.  It was important to 
ensure that this area was staffed by people that knew the legislation.  We were very 
aware that at the last elections a new team was in place.  An intensive training 
programme had been put in place and we were looking to ‘grow our own’ as it was an 
area where it was very difficult to recruit to.  We had every confidence in the ability of 
the team and we had also received a good assessment from the Electoral 
Commission. 

• With an expected increase in the number of abandoned calls to the Council, how long 
would callers have to wait to be dealt with?  We were looking at ways to mitigate the 
delays and were also looking at the training of staff in the Call Centre.  We had 
already introduced a ring direct system. 

• Food waste collection had been agreed as part of the Waste 2020 strategy, what 
guarantees were there that it would ever happen and what would the impact be on 
our recycling targets?  We believe that this was an area where we could do it cheaper 
and more efficiently. 

• The increase in fees would only raise a small amount of money.  The Administration 
tried to bring in the charges a couple of years ago so why was it being brought back 
now?  This year we had to find huge savings so we could not afford not to bring in the 
charge.  This was a proposal which had been discussed long and hard before being 
included. 

• If people were required to pay for a replacement bin they would simply put their green 
waste into their black bins which would then have an impact on landfill.  Refurbished 
bins would be available for £18 but people needed to be aware that the bins were 
expensive items.  We would continue with our enforcement activities to ensure that 
people used the bins correctly. 

• How many refurbished bins were in stock?  There was currently a large stockpile at 
the depot as people were currently resistant to using refurbished bins. 

• Would people have to pay for a replacement bin if for example it was lost in the cart?  
If a bin was lost in the cart or damaged when being collected then it would be 
replaced free of charge. 

• Would people have to pay for the first replacement or only if it was replaced a second 
time?  The charges applied to all bins and there were no plans for exceptions but this 
would be kept under review. 

• Would the same charge apply for smaller bins as well as the larger bins?  There 
would be no difference in charges to ensure that the scheme was as simple as 
possible. 

• Would all new houses be required to pay for three bins?  The budget book contained 
an error in that for new homes we would continue to provide the initial bins free of 
charge but this may be reconsidered in the future. 

• What was the justification for the increase in fees for bereavement charges?  A great 
deal of work was being done with the service.  It was also a large user of energy.  
Compared to other authorities we were in the middle of charges but provided one of 
the best services in the country. 

• What was the justification for the allotment fee increase?  We had consulted with 
service users about the charges.  It was a very good service and worked out at £1 a 
week. 

5



• Why was the percentage rise for private citizenships ceremonies low compared to the 
other services provided by the Register Office?  All of the proposed increases had 
been challenged and we would provide an answer in writing. 

• How significant was the proposed reduction of hours at some of the libraries?  We 
would provide a response in writing.  However some of the libraries would see an 
increase in their opening hours. 

• What was Vivacity’s view to increasing sports charges?  It was not expected that 
charges would be significantly raised as they had to compete with a wider market 
place.  There was now a very different charging structure being introduced for 
example around gym memberships.  When the charges were available we would 
make them available. 

• What did the reduction in redundancies linked to T&C savings mean?  This related to 
proposed changes to staff terms and conditions around removal of the essential car 
user allowance and introducing parking charges.  If all were agreed this would reduce 
the number of compulsory redundancies which would need to be made. 

• When would charges for staff car parking be implemented?  Further discussions 
would be held with the Trades Unions on 19 January 2011. 

• Car parking charges should also be referred to the Independent Members Allowances 
Panel for them to consider in relation to councillors parking.  The Independent Panel 
report referred to all remuneration for councillors.  There would be a full debate about 
their recommendations at Council. 

• Were the proposed savings on pension contributions due to future lower 
contributions?  It was due to contribution rates being left at current levels until the 
next valuation of the Scheme. 

• The Minimum Revenue Provision looked as if it was making a saving or is it just the 
way it was being presented?  This was about using asset sales to repay some debt.  
The exact level needed would depend on when we took the capital receipts.  For 
example, if we were able to generate £10.4m of capital receipts 8 years from now, 
that would mean the total costs were equal over the life of the projects. 

• Would the cost of borrowing be higher?  The cost of borrowing would not be higher as 
a lump sum would have been paid off and it would be cheaper in the earlier years.  
The costs would be more if we delayed paying the lump sum. 

 
We thanked the Finance Team for producing an easy to read document and also thanked the 
Cabinet Members and Directors for attending the meeting to answer our questions. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
All of the comments made at this meeting to be forwarded to the Cabinet for consideration at 
their meeting on 7 February 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
7.00  - 9.02 pm 

6



ABABABAB    
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
HELD AT THE BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOM - TOWN HALL ON 2 FEBRUARY 2011 

 
Present: Councillors M Dalton (Chairman), N Arculus, D Day, J Peach, S Lane 

and G Murphy 
 

Officers Present: Mike Heath, Commercial Services Director 
Richard Kay, Policy and Strategy Manager 
Anne Keogh, Housing Strategy Manager 
Carrie Denness, Principal Lawyer 
Louise Tyers, Scrutiny Manager 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Allen. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 9 November 2010  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 2010 were approved as an accurate record. 
 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions  
 
There were no requests for call-in to consider. 
 

5. Peterborough City Services - Update on Lot 3: Various Operational Services  
 
The report provided an update on the Lot 3 procurement for operational services affecting 
Peterborough City Services. 
 
Since the last update to the Committee in June 2010, Amey LG Limited, Enterprise Managed 
Services Limited, HW Martin Waste Limited and Veolia ES UK Limited had been invited to 
submit detailed solutions.  HW Martin Waste Limited subsequently withdrew from the 
procurement for its own commercial reasons.  From the detailed stage, Amey LG Limited and 
Enterprise Managed Services Limited were then shortlisted as the two final bidders for the 
final tender stage. 
 
Having carefully evaluated the final tenders in line with the evaluation methodology, both final 
bidders submitted credible bids.  However, the outcome of the evaluation revealed that 
Enterprise Managed Services Limited provided the final tender that was most advantageous 
to the Council in terms of operation and economy. 
 
Final bidders were required to submit their final tenders on the basis of a 9 year and 23 year 
period and in the case of 23 years to demonstrate the benefits to the Council as opposed to 
a 9 year term.  Having demonstrated the benefits of a 23 year term, this was determined as 
the optimum period for the partnership and there would be break opportunities included in 
the Operational Services Agreement at years 9 and 16. 
 

7



The services within Lot 3 consisted of a broad range and the following were the services 
(including their component parts) to be included at the commencement of the partnership:- 
 
- refuse and recycling collection; 
- street cleansing; 
- parks, trees and open spaces (including some ground maintenance functions at 

cemeteries and the crematorium); 
- property design and maintenance; 
- building cleaning; 
- passenger and home to school transport; 
- corporate and schools catering; 
- travellers’ site management; and 
- courier services. 
 
As with partnerships of this nature, it would evolve over time and there was potential to 
include other services. 
 
As part of the governance arrangements for the partnership, a Strategic Partnership Board 
was to be established which would have overarching responsibility for the partnership.  This 
Board would meet at least quarterly to give high level strategic direction on the Partnership.  
The Strategic Partnership Board would consist of senior representatives from the Council 
and the Lot 3 partner.  The following were considered to be the appropriate representatives 
for the Council’s purposes:- 
- Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Strategic 

Commissioning (as the portfolio holder) who would Chair the Board meetings at least for 
the first year; 

- Cabinet Member for Resources; 
- Executive Director of Strategic Resources. 
 
Enterprise had put forward the following as its senior representatives to sit on the Strategic 
Partnership Board:- 
 
- Martin Joyce, Managing Director – Local Government; 
- David Martin, Strategic Business Development Director; 
- Mike Heath, Partnership Director (designate) 
 
The partnership was due to commence on 4 March 2011 (when PCS employees would 
transfer to Enterprise) with full service commencement as of 7 March 2011.   
 
The Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE) applied 
to those employees in PCS who were currently engaged on the services that were to be 
transferred to the Lot 3 partner.  In view of the timescales for the Partnership 
commencement, the formal consultation process was now commencing.  In the meantime, 
employees and the Trade Unions had been kept briefed on an informal and formal (JCF) 
basis at each stage of the procurement.   
 
The preferred bidder would need to become an Admitted Body to protect PCS transferring 
employees on a closed scheme basis as regards to the Local Government Pension Scheme.  
This meant that transferring employees who were active members of the LGPS and those 
transferring employees that subsequently joined the scheme would be protected by a Closed 
Admission Agreement.  These arrangements would not be open to any other employees 
such as new recruits and other pensions arrangements would be put in place by the 
preferred bidder for any non-transferring employees.  The preferred bidder was making its 
application to Cambridgeshire County Council to become an Admitted Body for the purpose 
of PCS transferring employees. 
 

8



The Council’s recent call for voluntary redundancy, as part of its measures to address the 
Comprehensive Spending Review, included PCS transferring employees.   Bidders were put 
on notice that where the Council agreed to voluntary redundancy for PCS employees on the 
TUPE list, the Council would expect a reduction in the service fee and/or other remuneration 
to offset the fact there would be fewer employees on the TUPE list than at the time when 
bidders’ financial models were submitted. 
 
Questions and observations were raised around the following areas: 
 

• It was envisaged that this process would enable PCS to become more competitive, 
what sort of contracts or work would be envisaged?  Enterprise had great growth 
plans for the service and they saw PCS as a key contact as they did not have a big 
presence in the East of England.  They were particularly keen to get into the property 
design area. 

• Would the rebadging of the vehicles still include the PCC logo?  A new logo had been 
agreed between Enterprise and the Cabinet Member which features the Cathedral 
and will be called Enterprise Peterborough. 

• Will the lack of the PCC logo mean that residents will not be able to tell immediately 
that Enterprise are undertaking PCC work?  Press releases would be issued and we 
would still be using the 747474 telephone number for service issues. 

• Would the Council still be liable for pension contractual provisions for transferred 
staff, for example enhanced redundancy?  Enterprise had applied for Admitted Body 
Status to the Local Government Pension Scheme for all transferred staff and any 
other existing staff who wanted to the join the scheme.  Enterprise had their own 
pension scheme and they also had life insurance cover for those staff not in a 
pension scheme.  Pension liabilities would be addressed as part of the process. 

• There is not detail in the report about what would be happening with pensions and 
transferring staff.  To enable proper scrutiny of the process the Committee needed to 
see details of any ongoing liabilities for the Council.  The Commercial Services 
Director will ensure the legal advisor to the process writes to members with the 
details. 

• Would Enterprise be taking on the agency staff who were currently employed by PCS 
or were we putting people out of work?  We had reduced our number of agency staff 
over the last year.  The agency staff had all been invited to employee briefings and 
had been told that they would carry on as before.  Enterprise had their own agency 
and the proposal was that it would operate in Peterborough and we would migrate our 
agency staff to that agency. 

• How would working with Enterprise improve how we dealt with unauthorised 
encampments?  Had they looked at developing a transit site in the area?  Enterprise 
planned to follow our processes and policy.  Unauthorised encampments on council 
land had different arrangements than private land.  Some sites had been looked at for 
transit sites but the Government had now removed the grant.  It was believed that 
PCC was still keen on finding a transit site and some suggestions had been put 
forward but it would involve significant costs.   

• Would ward councillors still be able to negotiate good deals for work through the 
Community Leadership Fund or would they be treated as a normal customer?  
Enterprise had said to carry on as before. 

 
The Committee thanked the Commercial Services Director for all his work and wished him 
success in the new organisation. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
To note the report. 
 
 
 

9



6. Affordable Housing Capital Funding Policy  
 
The report presented the draft Affordable Housing Capital Funding Policy for scrutiny prior to 
being considered by the Cabinet. 
 
The Policy set out the rules and procedures which PCC would adopt when it awarded grants 
to enable the continued supply of affordable housing in Peterborough by Registered 
Providers (RPs) (previously known as Registered Social Landlords (RSLs)). The funds were 
made available, mostly, from PCC’s accumulated right-to-buy capital receipts and were 
intended to supplement other sources of funding, such as from the Homes and Communities 
Agency.  Funds from right-to-buy capital receipts had amounted to over £10m since 2004. 
 
The key issues addressed by the policy were: 
 

• the processes and protocols for bidding and allocating grant funding to RSLs  

• the criteria we would adopt to determine applications for funding 

• who was responsible for what in signing off bids (including delegated authority to 
Directors / use of CMDNs) 

• model ‘terms and conditions’ for any successful grant awards 
 
A 10 day consultation period on the draft policy had taken place with Registered Provider 
(RP) partners in January 2011 and the outcome of that consultation has helped shape the 
policy document.   
 
A couple of changes had been made to the document including a new section around the 
need for bids of exceptional quality to be considered during the period of development of the 
Housing Strategy and some changes around the terms and conditions of grant. 
 
Questions and observation were raised around the following areas: 
 

• Should the eligibility for the grants be made clearer to state that it is only for 
accrediated RSLs as this was a recognised group and would prevent less desirable 
landlords accessing the funds?  Only registered providers who were on the Homes 
and Communities (HCA) list were eligible.  Officers would expand the paragraph to 
include refrence to the HCA. 

• Officers had talked about two policies, was the current policy not sound?  There was 
already a Housing Strategy in place whilst developing this Policy.  We would need to 
ensure that the decisions made met the needs of both Strategies. 

• Were there any plans in place to replace the funding when right-to-buy ended?  S106 
funding would be available but the preference for that was to provide housing on site.  
Affordable Housing funding from the HCA had reduced and we believed would be 
allocated differently.  There was nothing directly to replace right-to-buy. 

• Were right-to-buy receipts declining?   We received the first £3m each year and in the 
remaining years would get another £3m in total. 

• How did S106 work?  There could be a monetary contribution for off site provision 
and the S106 would state how many units were required to be developed on site. 

• What proportion of applications had provision provided off site?  In the past few years 
the majority of provision was on site with one or two maximum off site.  The Local 
Plan did allow for off site provision for example if there was already an abundance of 
affordable housing in an area. 

• Why did it have to be provided on site?  It was to cater for a range of needs in a 
community to ensure mixed and sustainable communities. 

• What would happen in an executive housing development where affordable housing 
would be out of place?  That would be an example when we would look for off site 
provision. 

10



• Was the policy still for 35% affordable housing?  The regional policy was for 35% but 
our Core Strategy stated 30%.  A viability study had been undertaken which 
supported 30% as 35% was seen as too high for Peterborough.  The 30% was the 
starting point for negotiations. 

• As a Local Authority we had a duty for homelessness what provision was in place?   
As an authority we had certain duties around homelessness which the Housing 
Strategy would set out.  The Choice Based Lettings process was managed through 
the Council’s allocation policy but the building of affordable housing was the 
responsibility of the housing providers. 

• What policy did this new policy replace?  It did not replace an existing policy but 
formalised the existing officer working process.  A formal policy was needed as the 
call on funding had increased and it was about being open and transparent. 

• Could officers give an example of a development which had accessed the funding?  
The most recent was the Cross Keys Homes development in Stanground South of 80 
units. 

• What was the annual budget of the fund?  The last few years had not been typical 
with only two bids at just under £4m.  Since the fund was introduced just over £6m 
had been awarded.  In the pot was currently £11m and £6m had been allocated so 
£17m in total had been received.  With S106 funds £1.5m was uncommitted. 

• Was this money ringfenced?  Yes, the stock transfer agreement stated what it was 
used for and it was also contained in the Capital Strategy. 

• Why would we accept a bid if it had been previously rejected by the HCA?  A bid may 
have been rejected by the HCA if it did not meet funding priorities.  Also, the HCA 
funding could have run out for the year. 

• Would the HCA only consider funding particular areas of the country?  There had 
been some concerns that some areas would fare better than others.  Regional offices 
still looked at the bids for each region and the Eastern office would be merging with 
the South East.  The bidding system was likely to change with recognised providers 
being required to provide plans for the next four years.  We should know in the next 
few months what the HCA would fund in the next few months.  We had a good 
reputation with the HCA and partners and last year had built over 700 affordable 
homes. 

• Should we be able to exercise greater control over build quality by making that 
multiplier higher than compared to strategic housing objectives?  The Housing 
Corporation’s build quality was generally higher than private. Build quality was at our 
discretion and was detailed in the policy. Registered providers were used to the 
system and we had based ours on the HCA system but had kept flexibility. 

• It was important to ensure that quality was maintained so the Council should insist on 
a higher build quality than the HCA system before allocating funding.  The Legal 
Officer advised that it would be impossible to state within the Policy that we would 
require a higher level of quality than the HCA as their quality standards could change 
in the future. 

• S106 funding was time limited and clawed back if not spent.  We needed to have a 
high quality level but not set too high. 

• Peterborough’s conservation zones needed to be considered if an application came 
in and could that be an extra way to ensure quality.  That would be picked up through 
the planning process, which would be the correct mechanism. 

• Stewart Jackson MP had submitted a letter where he questioned why there were no 
elected members on the Panel.  It was not proposed to include an elected member as 
the Panel was a technical appraisal of bids and was only there to advise and make 
recommendations. 

• In relation to the Assessment Part 2, why could not the Cabinet Member agree with 
the Panel even if the Director rejected the advice?  It was felt appropriate that the 
Director should have the responsibility to stop an application but that could be 
amended that it was considered by the Cabinet Member. 

11



• It was important to set a threshold for quality and the Cabinet should be given a 
number of options to consider.  If a development met the HCA standards then they 
were generally larger and of higher quality than private developments. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Cabinet be advised of our discussion around the Affordable Housing Capital 
Funding Policy, particularly: 
 
(i) that further clarification as to who a ‘registered provider’ was;  
 
(ii) that should a Director seek to overrule and reject the recommendation of the panel to 

approve a bid, a Cabinet Member Decision Notice would be required to approve the 
rejection;  

 
(iii) that when considering funding requests in conservation areas the maintenance of 

those areas needed to be considered; and 
 
(iv) that a higher threshold for quality than that of the HCA should be considered and the 

Cabinet should be given a number of options to consider. 
 

7. Human Resources Monitoring Report  
 
The report provided an update on staffing and workforce matters and covered the following 
areas: 
 

• Performance and Development Review (replacement of APD) 

• Leadership Development Programme (Vision 2010) 

• Investors in People  - Corporate Recognition 

• Human Resources Review 

• Job Evaluation – Stage 2 Appeals 

• Employee Relations 

• HR Team Service Delivery 

• People Report – key workforce statistics as at December 2010 

• HR Benchmarker Results 
 
Questions and observations were made around the following areas: 
 

• The sickness within Children’s Services appeared to be worsening.  Were there any 
particular reasons? 

• What was the Council’s level of sickness compared to the private sector? 
 
The Scrutiny Manager would forward these questions to the Interim Head of Human 
Resources for a response. 
 

8. Forward Plan of Key Decisions  
 
The latest version of the Forward Plan, showing details of the key decisions that the Leader 
of the Council believed the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members would be making over the 
next four months, was received. 
 
Questions and observations were raised around the following areas: 
 

• The Committee would like to see the Peterborough Local Investment Plan at its next 
meeting. 

12



• Councillor Arculus raised concerns about the proposed decision around Vawser 
Lodge.  This had been on the Forward Plan for a number of months and kept being 
slipped back.  Why was it continually slipping. 

 
ACTION AGREED 
 
To note the latest version of the Forward Plan. 
 

9. Work Programme  
 
We considered the Work Programme for 2010/11. 
 
It was agreed that an extraordinary meeting of the Committee would be held to consider the 
review of consultants. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 

(i) To confirm the work programme for 2010/11. 
(ii) That an extraordinary meeting of the Committee would be held on Wednesday 23 

March 2011 at 7pm 
 

10. Date of Next Meeting  
 
Following agreement by the Committee the next meeting would now be held on Wednesday 
16 March 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
7.00  - 9.16 pm 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

16 MARCH 2011 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Strategic Resources 
 

Contact Officers – Mark Sandhu, Head of Customer Services.  Tel: 296321 

Belinda Evans, Customer Service Manager.  Tel: 296324 
 

COMPLAINTS MONITORING REPORT 2009/10 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 
 

To provide a summary of formal complaints monitored between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010 
which fall under the Corporate Complaints’ Policy. 
 

1.2 To enable the Committee to scrutinise the annual report from the Local Government Ombudsman 
(LGO) about the council’s performance on complaints. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee scrutinises the information presented in this report regarding complaints received 
between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010 and make any appropriate recommendations. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 This report analyses the performance of the Council’s formal Corporate Complaints Procedure 
between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010.  It is important to note that this report does not include 
complaints that fall outside the Corporate Complaints Policy, for example, complaints relating to 
schools, Statutory Children Social Care and Adult Social Care.   However from July 2010 the 
Statutory Children Social Care complaints function was transferred to the Central Complaints team 
and will be included within next year’s report. 
 

3.2 The Corporate Complaints Policy has three-stages: 
 

§ Stage One (First Contact Complaint) 
§ Stage Two (Service Review) 
§ Stage Three (Independent Person Review) 
 

 
 

Stage Action Timescale 

1 The council aims to settle the majority of complaints quickly and satisfactorily 
through the ‘front line’ employees who provide the service or the relevant 
manager.  The complaint may be resolved informally by way of an apology, by 
providing the service required, or providing an explanation to the customer. 

10 Working Days * 

2 If the customer is not happy with the decision at Stage 1, he/she can appeal to 
the Central Complaints Office, who ask the relevant Head of Service or Assistant 
Director to investigate the complaint fully and provide a written response to the 
customer. 

15 Working Days 

3 If the customer is not happy with the decision at Stage 2, he/she can appeal to 
the Chief Executive who will appoint an independent person to investigate the 
complaint fully and provide a written report to the customer. 

30 Working Days 

 
 

 
Note:   * Stage 1 complaints can be responded to in various ways depending on how the customer contacts the council and the complexity 
of the complaint.  For example, it is hoped that the majority of complaints will be resolved without delay on the telephone or in person, but 
those that are sent in by letter should be responded to within the corporate standard of 10 working days. 

 
 
 

15



4. STAGE ONE COMPLAINTS (FIRST CONTACT COMPLAINTS) 
 

4.1 During 2009/10 the Central Complaints Office (CCO) received more detailed monthly returns from 
each department across the Council.  The table below shows the number of Stage 1 complaints 
received for each department during 2009/10 including those that were received and logged by the 
CCO.  The data for the previous year is included to allow comparisons to be made. 
 

 
 

Table 2: The number of Stage One complaints  

2008/2009 2009/2010 

Department Total complaints 
received 

Logged by 
CCO 

Total 
complaints 
received 

Logged 
by CCO 

Chief Executive’s Dep’t 43 32 2 6 

Children’s Services 12 2 3 3 

City Services 105 52 87 54 

Operations 173 83 151 81 

Strategic Resources 108 29 123 55 

TOTAL 441 204* 366 199 

  
 * 6 complaint cases fell under a number of different departments  

 
4.2 Table 2 illustrates a decrease in the number of Stage 1 complaints overall. The decrease in Stage 1 

complaints can be attributed to various factors such as better record keeping to avoid repeat 
complaints, to ensuring only matters that fall under the complaints policy are treated as complaints.  
For example customers complaining about benefit or housing decisions will be advised of their appeal 
rights rather than pursuing matters as a complaint. 
 

4.3 Following the request made by the Committee last year, more detailed data is now collected from 
each service area on a monthly basis so that it is possible to provide a more in depth look at each 
complaint we receive, such as which category it fell into and its outcome.  In previous years this 
information could only be obtained about the complaints logged by the CCO, we can now provide a 
full picture about all stage 1 complaints logged across the authority. 
 

4.4 All complaints are classified into a category that represents the explanation of the complaint. The 
table overleaf shows breakdown by category for all stage 1 complaints logged between 2009/10 
(examples of each category are given in table 17 in paragraph 8.6) 
 

16



 
 

Table 3: Category Breakdown N
o
t 
T
o
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

P
o
o
r 
F
a
c
il
it
y
/B
u
il
d
in
g
 

B
ro
k
e
n
 

P
ro
m
is
e
/A
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
t 

S
ta
ff
 A
tt
it
u
d
e
 C
o
n
d
u
c
t 

B
re
a
c
h
 O
f 
C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
li
ty
 

D
e
n
ia
l/
W
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l 
O
f 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

D
e
la
y
e
d
/F
a
il
e
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

L
a
c
k
 O
f/
In
c
o
rr
e
c
t 
In
fo
 

A
b
o
u
t 
A
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

A
b
o
u
t 
L
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 

A
b
o
u
t 
P
o
li
c
y
 

O
th
e
r 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 

Chief Executives Department 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 2 

Communications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Legal Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Democratic Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 

Strategic Growth and Development  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Human Resources 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Strategic Resources 1 4 1 26 2 3 52 3 9 6 16 123 

Customer Services (inc Register Office) 0 4 0 22 2 3 32 1 0 0 0 64 

Revenues and Benefits 1 0 1 4 0 0 18 1 9 6 15 55 

Corporate Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ICT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Business Transformation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Shared Transactional Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 1 4 

Childrens Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 3 

Learning & Skills 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Family & Communities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Resources 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 2 

Commissioning & Performance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Operations Department 5 6 2 21 3 4 45 10 13 19 23 151 

Planning Delivery Services 0 0 1 0 1 0 15 1 11 9 1 39 

City Centre Services 1 0 0 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 5 10 

Environment, Transport and Engineering 3 1 1 7 0 0 20 2 1 6 7 48 

Neighbourhood Services 0 0 0 8 1 0 6 2 1 4 7 29 

Environmental and Public Protection 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 3 

Cultural Services 1 5 0 4 0 2 2 5 0 0 3 22 

City Services  0 0 0 11 0 2 65 2 0 3 4 87 

Building Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Street Scene and Facilities 0 0 0 11 0 1 65 2 0 3 4 86 

Recreation 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Support Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Property Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Overall 6 10 3 58 5 9 164 16 23 29 43 366 

 
4.5 

 
Delayed failed service is the most common category with just under 45% of the total number of stage 
1 complaints received falling into this category. The second most common category is about staff 
attitude/conduct with almost 16%. 
 
 
 
 

17



4.6 Table 4 shows the outcomes for all stage 1 complaints registered between 2009/10. 
 

 
 

Table 4: Outcomes 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

N
o
t 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

P
a
rt
ia
ll
y
 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 

Chief Executives Department 0 1 1 2 

Communications 0 0 0 0 

Legal Services 0 0 1 1 

Democratic Services 0 1 0 1 

Strategic Growth and Development  0 0 0 0 

Human Resources 0 0 0 0 

Strategic Resources 37 56 30 123 

Customer Services (inc Register Office) 26 20 18 64 

Revenues and Benefits 10 34 11 55 

Corporate Services 0 0 0 0 

ICT 0 0 0 0 

Business Transformation 0 0 0 0 

Shared Transactional Services 1 2 1 4 

Childrens Services 1 2 0 3 

Learning & Skills 0 1 0 1 

Family & Communities 0 0 0 0 

Resources 1 1 0 2 

Commissioning & Performance 0 0 0 0 

Operations 47 81 23 151 

Planning Delivery Services 10 22 7 39 

City Centre Services 4 4 2 10 

Environment, Transport and Engineering 18 23 7 48 

Neighbourhood Services 7 18 4 29 

Environmental and Public Protection 0 3 0 3 

Cultural Services 8 11 3 22 

City Services 54 20 13 87 

Building Maintenance 0 0 0 0 

Street Scene and Facilities 54 19 13 86 

Recreation 0 1 0 1 

Support Services 0 0 0 0 

Property Services 0 0 0 0 

Overall 139 160 67 366 

  
4.7 It shows that 37.9% of stage 1 complaints were upheld, 43.7% not upheld and 18.3% as being     

partially upheld. 
 

5. STAGE TWO COMPLAINTS (SERVICE REVIEW) 
 

5.1 Table 5 breaks down the Stage 2 complaints by department, for the last two years the total number 
has been the same.  Table 6 further breaks down the data by business unit. 
 

 Table 5: Stage Two Complaints By Dept 2008-2009 2009-10 

Chief Executive’s Department 6 2 

Children’s Services 1 0 

City Services 12 6 

Operations 30 38 

Strategic Resources 11 14 

Overall 60 60 
 

 
5.2 

 
Table 6 gives greater detail of the business units who have had Stage 2 complaints over the last two 
years. 
 

18



 
 

Table 6: Stage Two Complaints By Business Unit  2008-09 2009-10 

Chief Executive’s Department 6 2 

Legal and Democratic 0 2 

Strategic Growth and Development 6 n/a 

Children’s Services Department 1 0 

Learning and Standards 1 0 

City Services 12 6 

Recreation 3 0 

Street Scene and Facilities 9 6 

Operations 30 38 

City Centre Operations n/a 2 

Cultural Services 4 5 

Environment Transport and Engineering 8 9 

Neighbourhoods 8 11 

Planning Services 10 11 

Strategic Resources 11 14 

Customer Services 0 2 

Revenues & Benefits 6 11 

Strategic Property 5 1 

Overall 60 60 

  
5.3 Table 7 shows that 98.3% of stage two complaints were acknowledged within 2 working days, the 

same figure as last year. Unlike Stage 1 complaints all Stage 2 complaints are logged and monitored 
by the Central Complaints Office and are directed to the relevant Head of Service for a response.  It is 
important to acknowledge all complaints promptly but very occasionally there is a delay whilst trying 
to establish which department needs to investigate. 
 

 Table 7: Stage Two Response Times 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 

The percentage of Stage 2 complaints 
acknowledged within 2 working days 

95.70% 98.30%  98.30% 

 
 
5.4 

 
During 2009-10, 81% of all stage two complaints were responded to within 15 working days (See 
Table 8).  This is an improvement on the 2008-09 performance (71%).   Although the same number of 
cases went to Stage 2 as the previous year a much smaller percentage were then escalated to Stage 
3. Complaint customers clearly value being treated with priority and the time taken to respond is an 
important factor in producing a satisfactory outcome to the complainant.  The overall quality of Stage 
2 responses has also improved due to ongoing training in this area. 
 

 Table 8: Stage 2 Complaints Responded To Within 15 Working Days 

  2007-08 2008-09 2009-2010 

Chief Executive’s Dep’t 75% 83.30% 50% 

Children’s Services 100% 0% N/A 

City Services 100% 72.7% 100% 

Operations 87.2% 69.7% 78.9% 

Strategic Resources 80.0% 81.8% 85.7% 

Overall 85.10% 71.10% 81.70% 
 

 
5.5 

 
Table 9 & 10 breaks down the stage 2 complaints received during 2009/10 by category and final 
outcome (examples of each category are given in table 17 in paragraph 8.6) 

19



 
 Table 10: Stage 2 Outcome Breakdown No. 

Upheld 12 

Not Upheld 34 

Partially Upheld 14 

Total 60  

Table 9: Stage 2 Category Breakdown No. 

Not to standard 9 

Poor Facility/Building 3 

Broken Promise/Appointment 1 

Staff Attitude Conduct 4 

Breach Of Confidentiality 0 

Denial/Withdrawal Of Service 1 

Delayed/Failed Service 29 

Lack Of/Incorrect Info About A Service 4 

About Legislation 2 

About Policy 6 

Other 1 

Total 60 

  
6. STAGE THREE COMPLAINTS (INDEPENDENT PERSON REVIEW) 

 
6.1 During 2009-10, the Council received 16 stage three complaints, compared to 25 during 2008-09. 

100% of these were acknowledged within 2 working days. 
 

 Table 11: Stage 3 Complaints by Directorate 2009/10 

   

Chief Executive’s Dep’t 0 

Children’s Services 1 

City Services 1 

Operations 11 

Strategic Resources 3 

Overall 16 
 

 
6.2 

 
Complaints at Stage 3 are investigated by the Compliance and Ethical Standards Team.   The 
investigators are asked to investigate and prepare a report within 20 working days.  This is then 
provided to the Chief Executive so that it can be considered and a final response sent to the 
complainant within a further 10 working days.  Sometimes the complexity of cases requires the 20 
day investigation period to be extended.  We have seen a reduction in the number of cases which 
were escalated to Stage 3.  However correspondingly a greater number of the remaining cases were 
complex which meant extended timescales needed to be agreed in half of the remaining cases.   In 7 
of the 16 cases the decision was the same as that made at Stage 2, 8 cases had a different outcome 
and 1 went straight to Stage 3.  Where the decision at Stage 3 differed from the Stage 2 this changed 
a Not Upheld case to a Partially Upheld.  This shows there is still some merit in having a three Stage 
process but we will continue to keep this under review. Only 4 of these complaints were subsequently 
referred to the Ombudsman and in each case the Ombudsman’s decision was in line with the 
Council’s findings. 
 

6.4 Tables 12 & 13 break down the stage 3 complaints received during 2009/10 by category and final 
outcome. (examples of each category are given in table 17 in pargraph 8.6) 

20



Table 13: Stage 3 Outcome Breakdown No. 

Upheld 0 

Not Upheld 4 

Partially Upheld 12 

Total 16  

Table 12 : Stage 3 Category Breakdown No. 

Not to standard 1 

Poor Facility/Building 0 

Broken Promise/Appointment 0 

Staff Attitude Conduct 2 

Breach Of Confidentiality 0 

Denial/Withdrawal Of Service 1 

Delayed/Failed Service 6 

Lack Of/Incorrect Info About A Service 1 

About Legislation 0 

About Policy 4 

Other 1 

Total 16 

  
7. THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN (LGO) 

 
7.1 In July each year the LGO provides an annual review to the Council.  The aim of the review is to 

provide a summary of complaints received in respect of Peterborough City Council and includes 
comments on performance and complaint-handling to assist us with service improvements that 
contribute to improved customer service. 
 

7.2 For 2009/10 the LGO received 45 complaints and enquiries relating to Peterborough City Council, 
compared to the 43 that were raised the previous year. 
 

7.3 Some enquiries will result in general advice being given to the customer or with the LGO asking the 
customer to use the Council’s own complaints policy before they will become involved. 
 

7.4 The LGO proceeded to investigate 24 of these complaints about the Council, the same number of 
cases as the previous year. 
 

7.5 The table below outlines the number and types of decisions the Ombudsman made during the last 
three years. 
 

 Table 14 : Ombudsman’s Decisions  2007-08 2008-09 2009-2010 

Maladministration  0 1 0 

Local Settlement  6 5 4 

No or Insufficient Evidence of Maladministration  7 8 12 

Ombudsman Discretion  4 9 6 

Outside Jurisdiction  8 1 2 

Overall  25 24 24 
 

  
  

Maladministration: Maladministration is defined as when the authority has failed to act reasonably in accordance with the 

law, its own policies and the generally accepted standards of local administration.  The law says that the Ombudsman must 
look for ‘maladministration’ when carrying out his/her investigation.  The definition of maladministration is very wide and can 
include: 

•     delay  

•     incorrect action or failure to take any action  

•     failure to follow procedures or the law  

•     failure to provide information  

•     inadequate record-keeping  

•     failure to investigate or reply  

•     misleading or inaccurate statements  

•     inadequate consultation  

•     broken promises. 
 
Local Settlement: The term local settlement is used to describe the outcome of a complaint where, during the course of an 

investigation, the council takes, or agrees to take, some action which the Ombudsman considers is a satisfactory response 
to the complaint.  This can include compensation  
 

21



Ombudsman Discretion: Complaints described as terminated by Ombudsman’s discretion are those which have been 

terminated because, for example: 

•     the complainant wishes to withdraw his or her complaint; 

•     the complainant has moved away and the Ombudsman is no longer able to contact him or her; 

•     the complainant decides to take court action; or 

•     the Ombudsman finds there is no or insufficient injustice to justify continuing the investigation. 
 
Outside Jurisdiction: The Ombudsman can investigate most types of complaints against local authorities.  But there are 

some things the law does not allow them to investigate, such as personnel matters, the internal management of schools and 
colleges, and matters which affect all or most of the people living in the council's area.  Such complaints, when they are 
terminated, are described as being outside jurisdiction. 

 
7.6 The annual review highlights that the Ombudsman made no decisions against the Council last year.  

This is an encouraging sign as it shows that the Council’s own complaint investigations are robust 
and that the Ombudsman is agreeing with the Council’s findings in a high percentage of cases.  
Across the country of all the complaints the Ombudsmen decide annually, 26.9% were local 
settlements. For Peterborough City Council there were five cases classified as Local Settlements, 
that equates to 18% of the cases which the Ombudsmen decided were within their jurisdiction.  In 
total the Authority paid £1500 in compensation on these local settlements and in most cases offers 
had been made to the complainants before referral to the Ombudsman. 
 

7.7 The LGO made written enquiries about 16 complaints in the year.  They were pleased to note a 
steady improvement with regard to the average response time to their enquires, coming in at just over 
29 days. They ask us to continue our efforts in meeting their target of 28 days. 
 

 
 

Table 15: Ombudsman Enquires 2007- 08 2008-09 2009-10 

Number of enquires received 10 18 16 

Average response times 33 days 32 days 29 days 

  
7.8 The LGO did however, comment on the significant variations with some of the responses, an enquiry 

about an adult social care case took 53 days to respond to and a complaint about children and 
families took 140 days to respond to.  The LGO details their frustrations with these delays and ask 
the Council to take the necessary steps to ensure such delays are avoided in the future.  These 
concerns have been shared with senior management from both Adult Social Care and Children’s 
Social Care to look into these delays and make changes to their processes to ensure such delays do 
not reoccur.  The LGO also commented on two occasions when responses to their enquires were 
sent back on the same day by email. 
 

7.9 In the previous year the LGO had highlighted the importance of avoiding delays when responding to 
enquires specifically relating to school admission cases, there have been improvements within the 
department concerned following this advice and the LGO made mention of this improvement in their 
report. 
 

7.10 It is part of the role of the Central Complaints team to monitor and chase the reply to LGO enquiries, 
by individual business units to ensure compliance with the 28 day timescales set by the LGO.  The 
new process implemented last year, whereby the Head of Customer Services contacts individual 
departments on any cases which are not completed within 21 days, continues to be working well.  He 
will highlight the need to prioritise the response to ensure the deadline is met. 
 

7.11 Taking into consideration the comments provided by the LGO an additional step will be implemented. 
The CCO will now contact the relevant department after 14 days of them receiving the enquiry to 
remind them of the upcoming deadline.  We will continue to pass any cases that have not been 
responded to within 21 days to the Head of Customer Services. 
 

7.12 In summary the Ombudsman congratulates the Council’s efforts in consulting his investigative staff 
about appropriate remedies in individual cases.  He states that the Council generally investigate 
complaints thoroughly and fairly and makes good use of his published guidance on remedies. 
 
 
 
 

22



8. OTHER USEFUL INFORMATION 
 

8.1 Table 16 shows how complaints are received, at the moment this data is only available on complaints 
received by the CCO.  However we are now looking at ways to capture this data on all complaints 
across the Authority so that a clearer picture can be reported in the future. 
 

 
 

Table 16 : How Received 2008-09 2009-10 

 % Number % Number 

Chief Exec’s Office 7.1% 17 4.9% 12 

Email/Online Form 47.5% 113 40.9% 101 

Fax 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 

In Person 3.4% 8 4.0% 10 

In Writing 18.9% 45 18.2% 45 

Ombudsman 5.9% 14 6.1% 15 

Telephone 16.8% 40 25.5% 63 

Through a representative 0.4% 1 0.4% 1 

  
8.2 Email or our online complaints form continues to be the method used by a majority of our customers 

when raising concern.  We also note that complaints captured by telephone has increased, this may 
be due to our contact details being publicised in Your Peterborough. 
  

8.3 This illustrates that customers are confident raising concerns by telephone, helping to stop the notion 
that complaints must be in writing. 
 

8.4 Our new complaints booklet also publicises our contact details. Capturing complaints in person is also 
an option for our customers should they have any difficulties using the telephone or writing to us, and 
we note that this method has also gone up slightly this year. 
 

8.5 Following suggestions made by the Committee last year the CCO have captured compliment data 
from each service area from April 2010.  In next year’s report this will allow us to show a complete 
picture of the positive feedback we receive from customers using Council services alongside a 
continuing reduction in complaint numbers. 
 

8.6 Table 17 show some examples of the types of complaints that fall under the different categories. 
 

 
 

Table 17: Complaint category Examples  (UPDATE) 

Not to standard Bins  not emptied on correct bin day 

Poor facility/building Poor cleanliness at the Regional Pool 

Broken promise/appointment Housing Options viewing cancelled without explanation 

Staff attitude/conduct Rudeness from a member of  staff 

Breach of confidentiality Releasing information to the wrong party 

Denial/withdrawal of service Brown bin suspension over the Christmas/ New year period  

Delayed/failed service 
Failure to respond to correspondence within promised  
timescales 

Lack of/incorrect information about 
service 

Incorrectly being informed of the availability of a school place 

About legislation 
Concerns with legislation used by the Highways section 
regarding dropped kerbs 

About policy 
Challenge to the decision made to discontinue the out of hours 
Dog Warden service 

Other 
The Travelchoice centre closed early (before 12.30) for the 
lunchtime period  

  

23



9. SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS 
 

9.1 The table below lists some service improvements following complaints that have been made. 
 

 Table 19: Service Improvements Arising From Complaints 

Department Service Improvement 

Various Training needs identified for staff 

Customer Services 
All faxes received will be logged and a record made of where the fax was 
forwarded to 

Street Lighting 
Night time inspections will be carried out by the council’s maintenance 
contractor to identify any issues with lighting.  

Environmental 
Enforcement 

The advice and guidance provided to officers of how to conduct themselves 
whilst on patrol has been renewed to ensure that officers do not come across 
as intimidating to members of the public 

Housing 
Reminder issued to staff that customers should always receive a response to 
their telephone calls within a reasonable period of time  

 
 
10. 

 
IMPLICATIONS 
 

10.1 Customer Service  
 
Customer service and perception of the council will improve if complaints are processed quickly and 
effectively.  If complaints are resolved at the earliest opportunity this ultimately saves time by more 
senior officers when complaints are escalated.  If service improvements are identified and acted upon 
this will lead to fewer complaints in the future and improve the Council’s reputation. 
 

11. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

 None 
 

12. APPENDICES 
 

12.1 Appendix 1 - Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2009-10 
 
 

  

24



 
 

Local Government Ombudsmen (LGOs) 
provide a free, independent and impartial 
service. We consider complaints about the 
administrative actions of councils and 
some other authorities. We cannot question 
what a council has done simply because 
someone does not agree with it. If we find 
something has gone wrong, such as poor 
service, service failure, delay or bad advice, 
and that a person has suffered as a result, 
we aim to get it put right by recommending 
a suitable remedy. We also use the findings 
from investigation work to help authorities 
provide better public services through 
initiatives such as special reports, training 
and annual reviews.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Local Government Ombudsman’s  
Annual Review  

Peterborough City Council 
for the year ended 
31 March 2010 
 
 
 
 
 

25



 

 

Contents of Annual Review 
 
 
 
 

Section 1: Complaints about Peterborough 2009/10..................................... 3 

Introduction............................................................................................................... 3 

Enquiries and complaints received ........................................................................... 3 

Complaint outcomes ................................................................................................. 3 

Liaison with the Local Government Ombudsman...................................................... 4 

Training in complaint handling .................................................................................. 5 

Conclusions .............................................................................................................. 5 

Section 2: LGO developments ........................................................................ 6 

Introduction............................................................................................................... 6 

New schools complaints service launched................................................................ 6 

Adult social care: new powers from October ............................................................. 6 

Council first............................................................................................................... 6 

Training in complaint handling .................................................................................. 7 

Statements of reasons.............................................................................................. 7 

Delivering public value.............................................................................................. 7 

Appendix 1: Notes to assist interpretation of the statistics 2009/10 ........... 7 

Appendix 2: Local authority report 2009/10

26



 

 3 

Section 1: Complaints about Peterborough 
2009/10 

Introduction 

This annual review provides a summary of the complaints we have dealt with about Peterborough 
City Council. We have included comments on the authority’s performance and complaint handling 
arrangements, where possible, so they can assist with your service improvement.  
 
I hope that the review will be a useful addition to other information your authority holds on how 
people experience or perceive your services.  
 
Two appendices form an integral part of this review: statistical data for 2009/10 and a note to help 
the interpretation of the statistics. 

Enquiries and complaints received 

In 2009/10 we received 45 enquiries and complaints relating to the council, similar to the figure of 
43 complaints and enquiries in 2008/09. A total of six of these were about education, seven for 
both planning and building control, and children and family services, five for transport and 
highways, and public finance, four about adult care services, and three about benefits. One of the 
remainder was about housing and the rest fell into our ‘other’ category, which includes areas such 
as anti-social behaviour and environmental health.  
 
A total of 20 complaints were passed to the investigative team (16 new complaints and  
4 resubmitted premature complaints). The fairly low rate of resubmitted complaints suggests that 
the council uses its own complaints procedure effectively to resolve complaints where possible. We 
treated 12 complaints as premature and either referred them to the council or advised the 
complainant to make a complaint direct. In a further 13 cases we gave the complainant advice. 

Complaint outcomes 

We decided 24 complaints against the council during the year. In 12 cases we found no evidence 
of maladministration, and two complaints were outside my jurisdiction. In a further six cases we 
exercised discretion not to investigate further. Typically these are cases where even though there 
may have been some fault by the council there is no significant injustice to the complainant.  
 
In two of these cases my officers alerted the council to shortcomings in documented procedures as 
a result of investigations. One related to bankruptcy proceedings to recover council tax debt, and 
the other to the allocation of school places after the start of term.   

 
Local settlements 
 
A ‘local settlement’ is a complaint where, during the course of our investigation, a council takes or 
agrees to take some action that we consider to be a satisfactory response to the complaint. In 
2009/10, 26.9% of all complaints the Ombudsmen decided and which were within our jurisdiction 
were local settlements. Of the complaints we decided against your authority four were local 
settlements, representing approximately 18% of complaints within jurisdiction decided. We 
recommended that the council should pay a total of £1,500 in compensation in 2009/10.  
 
 

27



 

 4 

Like many authorities, the council has a small number of unreasonably persistent complainants. In 
one case, the council was undertaking annual reviews of its classification of one such person, 
where its procedure (and our guidance) stated that the matter should be reviewed every six 
months. The council undertook to ensure that six monthly reviews took place and we were satisfied 
with this outcome, as there was no indication that had a review taken place earlier the classification 
might have been altered. 
 
After the council reviewed parking restrictions in the city, we received a complaint about its 
decision to impose new restrictions on one particular street. We found that the council could not 
demonstrate that it had given proper consideration to all the relevant information, and as a result its 
decision to introduce restrictions on this street appeared arbitrary. We could not conclude that the 
decision itself was wholly unreasonable but the council had not informed objectors of why their 
objections had been overruled until after the restrictions had been introduced. The council agreed 
to write to all residents of the street apologising for its failings, and to pay the complainant  
£250 compensation for the time and trouble pursuing the matter. 
 
In a building control case, the council had issued a completion certificate for an extension without 
inspecting the work. Had it done so, serious shortcomings in the workmanship would have been 
apparent, and rectified, before the complainants bought the property. The complainants had not 
protected their interests by commissioning a structural survey before purchasing, so we 
recommended that the council should pay compensation of £1,000 which, while only covering a 
proportion of the cost of the necessary remedial work, would enable the complainants to begin 
legal action against the builder. 
 
In another complaint, the council had failed to notify a neighbour of a planning proposal. We could 
not conclude that the outcome would have been different had the complainant had the opportunity 
to object, so we recommended that the council should pay compensation of £250 for outrage. The 
council was very willing to do this and had already offered this amount as a result of its own 
investigation. 

Liaison with the Local Government Ombudsman 

We made formal enquiries on 16 complaints this year. In the annual review for 2008/09, my 
predecessor noted an improvement in average response time and I am pleased that this 
improvement has continued. The average response time in 2009/10 was 29.3, which is only just 
over our 28 day target, and I hope that the council can continue its efforts here.  
 
However, the average masks significant variations. The council took 53 days to respond to 
enquiries about an adult social care complaint, and 140 days to provide the information requested 
about a children and family services complaint. Response times such as these are extremely 
frustrating and I trust the council will take steps to ensure such delays are avoided where possible 
in the future. I am pleased to note that such occurrences are quite rare, and balanced by the two 
occasions on which the council responded by email on the same day that enquiries were sent. The 
council has also provided information swiftly in response to enquiries about education complaints, 
where we highlight the importance of reaching an early final outcome.   
 
The council’s general standard of internal investigation of complaints continues to be good and I 
commend the council for its thoroughness and its willingness to resolve complaints and learn from 
them. The council makes good use of our published guidance on remedies and council officers 
have also consulted my investigative staff in individual cases. 
 

28



 

 5 

Training in complaint handling 

Part of our role is to provide advice and guidance about good administrative practice. We offer 
training courses for all levels of local authority staff in complaints handling and investigation. All 
courses are presented by experienced investigators. They give participants the opportunity to 
practise the skills needed to deal with complaints positively and efficiently. We can also provide 
customised courses to help authorities to deal with particular issues and occasional open courses 
for individuals from different authorities. 

In November 2009 we delivered a course in effective complaint handling to staff from your 
authority. We have extended the range of courses we provide and I have enclosed some 
information on the full range of courses available together with contact details for enquiries and 
bookings.  

Conclusions  

I welcome this opportunity to give you my reflections about the complaints my office has dealt with 
over the past year. I hope that you find the information and assessment provided useful when 
seeking improvements to your authority’s services.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dr Jane Martin 
Local Government Ombudsman 
The Oaks No 2 
Westwood Way 
Westwood Business Park 
Coventry 
CV4 8JB 

June 2010 
 

29



 

 6 

Section 2: LGO developments 

Introduction 

This annual review also provides an opportunity to bring councils up to date on developments in 
the LGO and to seek feedback.  

New schools complaints service launched 

In April 2010 we launched the first pilot phase of a complaints service extending our jurisdiction to 
consider parent and pupil complaints about state schools in four local authority areas. This power 
was introduced by the Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act 2009.  
 
The first phase involves schools in Barking and Dagenham, Cambridgeshire, Medway and Sefton. 
The Secretary of State no longer considers complaints about schools in these areas. In September 
the schools in a further 10 local authority areas are set to join the pilot phase.  
 
We are working closely with colleagues in the pilot areas and their schools, including providing 
training and information sessions, to shape the design and delivery of the new service. It is 
intended that by September 2011 our jurisdiction will cover all state schools in England. 
 
A new team in each office now deals with all complaints about children’s services and education on 
behalf of the Ombudsman. Arrangements for cooperation with Ofsted on related work areas have 
been agreed.  
 
For further information see the new schools pages on our website at www.lgo.org.uk/schools/ 

Adult social care: new powers from October 

The Health Act 2009 extended the Ombudsmen’s powers to investigate complaints about privately 
arranged and funded adult social care. These powers come into effect from 1 October 2010 (or 
when the Care Quality Commission has re-registered all adult care providers undertaking regulated 
activity). Provision of care that is arranged by an individual and funded from direct payments 
comes within this new jurisdiction.  
 
Each Ombudsman has set up a team to deal with all adult social care complaints on their behalf. 
We expect that many complaints from people who have arranged and funded their care will involve 
the actions of both the local authority and the care provider. We are developing information-sharing 
agreements with the Care Quality Commission and with councils in their roles as adult 
safeguarding leads and service commissioners.  

Council first 

We introduced our Council first procedure in April last year. With some exceptions, we require 
complainants to go through all stages of a council’s own complaints procedure before we will 
consider the complaint. It aims to build on the improved handling of complaints by councils. 
 
We are going to research the views of people whose complaints have been referred to councils as 
premature. We are also still keen to hear from councils about how the procedure is working, 
particularly on the exception categories. Details of the categories of complaint that are normally 
treated as exceptions are on our website at www.lgo.org.uk/guide-for-advisers/council-response 

30



 

 7 

Training in complaint handling 

Demand for our training in complaint handling has remained high, with 118 courses delivered over 
the year to 53 different authorities. Our core Effective Complaint Handling course is still the most 
popular – we ran some of these as open courses for groups of staff from different authorities. 
These are designed to assist those authorities that wish to train small numbers of staff and give 
them an opportunity to share ideas and experience with other authorities.  
 
The new Effective Complaint Handling in Adult Social Care course, driven by the introduction of the 
new statutory complaints arrangements in health and adult social care in April 2009, was also 
popular. It accounted for just over a third of bookings. 
 
Over the next year we intend to carry out a thorough review of local authority training needs to 
ensure that the programme continues to deliver learning outcomes that improve complaint handling 
by councils.  

Statements of reasons  

Last year we consulted councils on our broad proposals for introducing statements of reasons on 
the individual decisions of an Ombudsman following the investigation of a complaint. We received 
very supportive and constructive feedback on the proposals, which aim to provide greater 
transparency and increase understanding of our work. Since then we have been carrying out more 
detailed work, including our new powers. We intend to introduce the new arrangements in the near 
future. 

Delivering public value 

We hope this information gives you an insight into the major changes happening within the LGO, 
many of which will have a direct impact on your authority. We will keep you up to date through 
LGO Link as each development progresses, but if there is anything you wish to discuss in the 
meantime please let me know.  
 
Mindful of the current economic climate, financial stringencies and our public accountability, we are 
determined to continue to increase the efficiency, cost-effectiveness and public value of our work. 
 
 
 
Dr Jane Martin 
Local Government Ombudsman 
The Oaks No 2 
Westwood Way 
Westwood Business Park 
Coventry 
CV4 8JB 

June 2010 

 

 
 
 
 
 

31



 

 8 

Appendix 1: Notes to assist interpretation of the 
statistics 2009/10 
 
 

Table 1.  LGO Advice Team: Enquiries and complaints received 
 
This information shows the number of enquiries and complaints received by the LGO, broken down 
by service area and in total. It also shows how these were dealt with, as follows. 
 
Premature complaints: The LGO does not normally consider a complaint unless a council has 
first had an opportunity to deal with that complaint itself. So if someone complains to the LGO 
without having taken the matter up with a council, the LGO will either refer it back to the council as 
a ‘premature complaint’ to see if the council can itself resolve the matter, or give advice to the 
enquirer that their complaint is premature.  
 
Advice given: These are enquiries where the LGO Advice Team has given advice on why the 
LGO would not be able to consider the complaint, other than the complaint is premature. For 
example, the complaint may clearly be outside the LGO’s jurisdiction.  
 
Forwarded to the investigative team (resubmitted premature and new):  These are new cases 
forwarded to the Investigative Team for further consideration and cases where the complainant has 
resubmitted their complaint to the LGO after it has been put to the council.  
 

 
Table 2.  Investigative Team: Decisions 
 
This information records the number of decisions made by the LGO Investigative Team, broken 
down by outcome, within the period given. This number will not be the same as the number of 
complaints forwarded from the LGO Advice Team because some complaints decided in 
2009/10 will already have been in hand at the beginning of the year, and some forwarded to the 
Investigative Team during 2009/10 will still be in hand at the end of the year. Below we set out a 
key explaining the outcome categories. 
 
MI reps: where the LGO has concluded an investigation and issued a formal report finding 
maladministration causing injustice.  
 
LS (local settlements): decisions by letter discontinuing our investigation because action has been 
agreed by the authority and accepted by the LGO as a satisfactory outcome for the complainant. 
 
M reps: where the LGO has concluded an investigation and issued a formal report finding 
maladministration but causing no injustice to the complainant.  
 
NM reps: where the LGO has concluded an investigation and issued a formal report finding no 
maladministration by the council. 
 
No mal: decisions by letter discontinuing an investigation because we have found no, or 
insufficient, evidence of maladministration. 
 
Omb disc: decisions by letter discontinuing an investigation in which we have exercised the LGO’s 
general discretion not to pursue the complaint. This can be for a variety of reasons, but the most 
common is that we have found no or insufficient injustice to warrant pursuing the matter further.   
 
Outside jurisdiction: these are cases which were outside the LGO’s jurisdiction. 

32



 

 9 

 
 

Table 3.  Response times 
 
These figures record the average time the council takes to respond to our first enquiries on a 
complaint. We measure this in calendar days from the date we send our letter/fax/email to the date 
that we receive a substantive response from the council. The council’s figures may differ 
somewhat, since they are likely to be recorded from the date the council receives our letter until the 
despatch of its response.   
 

 
Table 4.  Average local authority response times 2009/10 
 
This table gives comparative figures for average response times by authorities in England, by type 
of authority, within three time bands.  
 

33



34

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

16 March 2011 
 

Public Report 

 
Report of the Chief Executive 
 
Contact Officer – Andrew Edwards, Head of Peterborough Delivery Partnership 
Contact Details – (01733) 384530 or email andrew.edwards@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
PETERBOROUGH LOCAL INVESTMENT PLAN (LIP) 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek comments from the Committee on the Local Investment Plan (LIP). 

This plan is required by the Housing and Communities Agency (HCA) to show evidence to support 
requests for funding and sets the context for residential development within Peterborough. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 To support the adoption of the Local Investment Plan, developed in conjunction with the Homes and 
Communities Agency, in order that it can be used to help to attract inward investment into Peterborough, 
primarily for the purposes of encouraging residential regeneration. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 

3.1 This item supports Priority 4 of the Sustainable Communities Strategy ‘Delivering substantial and truly 
sustainable growth’. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
4.4 

The LIP is a document initiated by the Homes and Communities Agency.  The purpose of the LIP is to 
provide the first step in a funding application process towards the encouragement of strategic growth 
projects, with a particular emphasis on the provision of housing. The HCA are the intended recipient of 
the document, although they are keen that it is also used as a tool to attract other possible inward 
investors. It has been based upon the Peterborough Integrated Development Programme, which was 
adopted by Cabinet in December 2009. The LIP is more focussed and is intended by the HCA to be a 
very fluid document.  Regular updates and revisions are expected from the Council in accordance with 
changing situations and priorities. 
 
The basic aim is to help provide or facilitate housing development in any area throughout the City where 
there is an identified and evidenced need. 
 
The HCA see the LIP as being the key to investment within the City.  It is an initiative aimed specifically 
at local authorities, and the earliest examples were completed around mid 2009. LIPs can only be 
formed with local authorities and as a result the Local Authority is the custodian of the document but the 
financial beneficiaries can be other organisations or project partners, such as housing associations. 
 
The LIP is presented in two fundamental parts. Evidenced policy text, from which the existing IDP 
document was heavily drawn upon, and a programme of specific proposed projects, which are currently 
made up of 4 large affordable housing developments and 4 transport infrastructure plans enabling 
residential development. 
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 The LIP is not in itself a funding application or binding agreement. It is a plan, a statement of intent, the 
projects within which are eligible for progression to the next stage of the application process. The key in 
the context of the LIP is that they are presented in an approved evidential  
format. 
 

5.2 The LIP is intended to be a fluid document in that the content, notably the project content, can be revised 
on an ongoing basis, with specific project cases deleted, altered, or added to as required. These cases 
are in very brief summary form and follow an existing template. 

35



 
5.3 
 
 
 
5.4 

There is currently no definitive information from the HCA as regards volume of funds available or exactly 
how they will be prioritised and allocated, other than that it is anticipated that there will be unallocated 
budget becoming available to them during the course of 2011. 
 

The Recommendation outlined above would result in a fully approved LIP document being in existence 
and registered with the HCA by March 2011. The LIP can then be reviewed in terms of project content 
and, if deemed desirable, this can be done in consultation with third party organisations that are likely to 
have a direct interest in these project proposals. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 

Legal Implications:  At present there are no legal implications.  The agreement is not legally binding on 
either party and only provides a framework by which the Council can bid for financial support from HCA.  
Further stages will have legal implications and these will move forward with the full involvement of Legal 
Services. 

 
Financial Implications: Other than staff time there are no financial implications at this time.  However it is 
likely that should we move to the next stage then there will be a requirement for resources either directly 
or through the contribution of physical assets eg Land.  Finance will be fully involved in any future work 
arsing out of the LIP. 

 
Equalities: There are no specific issues arsing out of this proposals that will have an effect on any of the 
groups. 
   

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 
 
 

The document has been undergoing compilation since July 2010 and has been subject to considerable 
consultation with the HCA.  In addition Housing Associations have also been consulted on the format 
and content of the LIP. The HCA formally approved the Peterborough LIP on 10

th
 February 2011. 

 
8. NEXT STEPS 

 
8.1 
 
8.2 
 
 
 
 
 
8.3 

The item is intended to be submitted to Cabinet on 21
st
 March for approval and adoption by the Council. 

 

The stage beyond a LIP is known as the Local Investment Agreement (LIA)). This is not legally binding 
itself, but was referred to as a Memorandum of Understanding. They are  less flexible than LIPs and 
require much more detail on the proposed structure and delivery mechanisms for the project work 
therein. However, at the time of writing, it was understood that LIAs may be being superseded by new 
arrangements. Further details have yet to be confirmed. 
 
The stage beyond an LIA has also not yet been fully defined.  However is likely to be the formation of 
detailed business cases for each individual project. In effect, actual funding applications. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

9.1 Peterborough Integrated Development Plan – December 2009 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 Appendix 1 - Peterborough Local Investment Plan (LIP) – As Approved by the HCA. 
 

36



         
 
 
 

Peterborough City Council 
 

LOCAL INVESTMENT PLAN  
2011 – 2014 and beyond 

 
For submission to the Homes & Communities Agency 

 
February 2011 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

    

 

37



 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



 3 

 
 
 
a)   This Agreement is not legally binding upon the parties.  

 

b)   Nothing contained in or carried out pursuant to this Agreement and no consents given by the Agency or    

 the  Council will prejudice the Agency's or the Council’s (as appropriate) rights, powers or duties and/or  

 obligations in the exercise of its functions or under any statutes, byelaws, instruments, orders or    

 regulations. 

 

c)    This Agreement is without prejudice to the Council’s and/or the Agency’s functions as a local planning 

       authority and both parties may continue to exercise such functions as if they were not a party to this 

       Agreement. 

 

d)    This Agreement is subject to the constitutional right of any future Parliament and/or the Agency’s Sponsor 

Department to determine the amount of money to be made available to the Agency in any year and the 

purpose for which such money can be used.  

 

e)     This Agreement is also subject to the terms of the Framework Document between the Agency and its 

sponsor department, as the same may be amended or replaced from time to time.  

 

In addition, the document should allow for signature by both parties following on from the above wording: 

 

 

 

Signed: …………………………………                            Signed: ………………………………… 

 

  

Name: …………………………………..                              Name: ………………………………….. 

 

 

Position: ………………………………..                              Position: ……………………………….. 

 

For and on behalf of the                                         For and on behalf of       

Homes and Communities Agency                           Peterborough City Council 

 

 

Date: ……………………………………                               Date: …………………………………… 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

39



 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



 5 

CONTENTS 
 

 

 

Executive Summary           7 

 

Today’s City - Evidence Policy & Strategy       13 

 

INTRODUCTION           15 

CONTEXT, VISION AND GROWTH TRAJECTORIES       17 

• Context            17 

• Economic Performance and Economic Growth       28 
• Vision for Peterborough          33 

• Growth Trajectories          35 

 

OPPORTUNITIES AND ISSUES ARISING FROM THE STRATEGIES AND EVIDENCE BASE  39 

• Introduction           39 

• Spatial Packages           

City Centre           41 

Neighbourhood areas          42 

Urban Extensions          44 

Other Growth           45 

 

• Thematic Packages 

Transport           45 

Education           47 

Environment and Green Infrastructure        50 

Utilities and Services          53 

Employment           54 

Community Infrastructure         55 

Housing and Affordable Housing        56 

 

GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE ARRANGEMENTS       68 

 

Tomorrow’s Growth - Development Programme      73 

 

PROJECT SCHEDULE                         

• Delivery of Affordable Housing on Urban Extensions      75 
• Delivery of Affordable Housing on other Urban ‘Infill’ Sites     77 
• Delivery of Rural Housing Schemes        79 
• Delivery of Supported Housing Schemes        81 
• A1139 Fletton Parkway Junction 1 to Junction 2 Parkway Widening    85 
• Signalisation of A47T/A15 Junction 20        87 
• South Bank Rail and River Bridges        89 
• West-East Station Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge       93 

 

            

41



 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



 7 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

‘Today’s City’ 

Evidence Policy & Strategy 

 

Document Preparation and Purpose 

This document has been prepared by Peterborough City Council. It has been developed in conjunction with the 

Homes and Communities Agency, who have been behind the Local Investment Plan initiative, and is intended 

as a comprehensive promotional document to assist in the general procurement of inward investment to the 

City of Peterborough. This to enable the realisation of specified land and infrastructure projects in order to 

help meet the City’s evidenced growth needs. 

 

The concept of the Local Investment Plan initiative, as encouraged by the HCA, has had a national remit and 

been running for some 2 years now. It may be that the HCA can help Peterborough using the benefit of its 

experiences elsewhere. Certainly the City would appreciate this kind of advice or case information wherever 

appropriate. Indeed, the compilation of this LIP document itself has been greatly assisted by the ongoing 

coaching of the HCA local office at Cambridge 

 

The document is in effect a housing-focussed evolution of the Peterborough Integrated Development 

Programme (December 2009), which was used as a basis, and the purpose of which was to provide a generic, 

long-term set of strategic infrastructure proposals for which the City would require funding. The IDP 

formalised and provided evidential support to specific project proposals detailed in other documents such as 

the Peterborough Programme of Development (September 2008).  

 

In terms of resourcing the growth and regeneration aspirations advocated by this LIP document and the earlier 

IDP, the Council has put together teams of expert people to help take matters forward and create the 

conditions for delivery. These teams are termed the Peterborough Delivery Partnership, Growth Delivery, 

Strategic Projects, and Capital Receipts. All have distinct functions, indicated by their names, and are 

supported by established Council departments such as Planning, Legal, and Asset Management. 
 

Introduction 

The Local Investment Plan identifies the main themes and prioritises the key interventions and projects 

directly related to housing led regeneration.   

 

Peterborough's origins go back to an early Saxon village called Medehamstede, eventually becoming known as 

St Peters burgh around the Year 1000. The main industry throughout the Middle Ages was wool weaving, with 

only occasional markets activity. There had been an abbey on the site since the 7th Century, and in 1541 it was 

made a cathedral, now giving rise to the settlement's city status. During the 18th Century, with a population of 

just 2500-3000, Peterborough was the smallest city in England, and was in effect a market village. However, 

driven by demand for its goods arising from the Napoleonic wars, the population grew rapidly and by the 

1870s had passed 17000. New industries, notably iron, brick, and elastic, grew up in the wake of the Industrial 

Revolution. By 1900 the population stood at 30000. This continued to grow to about 80000 in 1967 when the 

city was designated a New Town. This new status was a significant development and led to a decision to 

rapidly grow the resident population to 160000, double that existing. This was largely achieved by the 

formation of a Development Corporation in 1968, which expanded the city's built environment dramatically 

during the 1970s and 80s. The main industries of the time requiring servicing by the population were brick and 

tile manufacture, farm machinery, diesel engines, and electrical equipment. 

  

43



 8 

Today, following the demise in the UK of primary and secondary manufacturing industries generally since the 

late 20th Century, Peterborough's business base has had to diversify into many other sectors (this has not 

necessarily translated into meaningful employment situations, however). 

  

For example, there is a much expanded retail offer evidenced by the Queensgate and Westgate centres, with 

more to come; an array of professional and financial services businesses, such as the Norwich and 

Peterborough Building Society; and the city is renowned as a key national distribution hub for both road and 

rail freight. The most visible example of this is probably the Ikea National Distribution Centre by Fletton 

Parkway. 

 

Peterborough is a city of change and is one of the most promising and exciting areas of opportunity in the UK.  

It is a city rich in heritage, but also a city that has a history of successful growth from its new town status in the 

1970s through to our current ambitions for growth.  The history of making Peterborough’s growth a reality has 

required flexibility, adaptability and innovation; qualities that remain of paramount importance today. 

 

The overarching ambition for Peterborough is to achieve sustainable growth. The city's population of 

approximately 166000 has numerous levels of socio-economic needs to be met, and it is intended that the city 

continues to provide for these needs, and that they be matched in a sustainable manner appropriate to the 

modern living environment. 

 

Despite the current economic climate, housing completions in Peterborough during last financial year bucked 

the national trend when a total of 1125 dwellings were completed. Of this total 708 were affordable homes. 

These figures tell a very positive story for affordable housing provision in Peterborough which has played a 

significant role in keeping local house building at record levels and contributing to retaining jobs in the local 

construction industry as well as delivering large numbers of much needed affordable homes. This considerable 

achievement in affordable home provision is the result of strong and proactive partnership working between 

Peterborough City Council, Affordable Housing Providers who work in the city and the Homes and 

Communities Agency.  

 
 Peterborough also continues to act as an attractor for investment and an engine of growth. In the past year 

alone, over 3,000 jobs have been created in the city and major growth and inward investment companies 

include Amazon, Royal Sun Alliance, Tesco and White Concierge. The £12m investment into Cathedral Square 

at the heart of the city has demonstrated a commitment to enhancing the city and has started to attract 

serious interest from major retail and restaurant interests, such as TKMaxx and Chimichanga. 

 

Market conditions are, however, at their most challenging for decades and the economic climate has 

fundamentally challenged how our transformation and regeneration can be delivered, so Peterborough’s 

approach has had to change too.  Uncertain times call for innovation and creativity and we are working hard to 

ensure the aspirations for the city continue to be driven forward and delivered. 

 

Working within the financial realities of today’s economy is therefore critical to our approach and we have 

developed innovative funding arrangements so that Peterborough can deliver investment and redevelopment, 

despite the economic downturn.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44



 9 

The recession led to severe limitations to growth funding, with a subsequent reduction in growth activity 

across the UK.  Traditional funding sources available to the Council and those used by private sector 

developers diminished, and are unlikely to return to pre-recession levels for many years, if ever.  

Peterborough's drive to still deliver an ambitious growth agenda meant we needed to access alternative 

sources of funding, and for this we are turning directly to the capital markets.  By working with capital market 

specialists, we are focused on creating investor confidence by presenting developments as viable and secure 

long-term investment opportunities, with risks clearly understood and presented to institutions with an 

appetite for that particular type of risk.  This approach has the financial viability for any development as its 

starting point, which is critical for securing capital market investment for an agenda to drive growth 

 

Taking a new and innovative approach ensures that we will continue to make the most of the city’s potential. 

The foundations for this latest phase of Peterborough’s growth are in now place; our ambition is clear, our 

delivery capabilities are strong, and our vital first steps for regeneration have already begun in the heart of the 

city, turning the ambition into reality.   

 

Peterborough is a city with enormous potential, with a growing economy, a growing population, and a growing 

position as a city at the heart of the Eastern Region.  We have one of the most forward thinking agendas for 

economic development in the country and we are confident that, together with our partners, we will build a 

bigger and better Peterborough for future generations. 

 

This links closely with the city's desire for a sustainable future and can be seen in action today at, for example, 

the edge of city centre South Bank regeneration site, anchored by Peterborough United Football Club. The site 

has been dubbed "Carbon Challenge" due to its aims to minimise carbon emissions and traditional energy uses 

in its proposed built developments, to include 294 new residential dwellings, of which 120 will be affordable 

homes. The Homes and Communities Agency and its predecessor organisations has been the primary partner 

at this site throughout the development process. 

 

The exemplar Carbon Challenge development at South Bank has been enabled to a very large extent by HCA, 

and this is a role we would hope could be replicated on future projects. In particular the ability of HCA to act as 

a lead public sector partner in driving land assembly work across HCA assets and other public sector land 

holdings (such as PCC, Network Rail and NHS) as well as major private sector landholdings could be valuable. 

Combined with HCA’s tools such as the Area Wide Viability Model and the Developer Appraisal Tool there is 

the potential for greatly aiding delivery. 

 

A good example of where this could be applied is the wider South Bank: on the community stadium a planning 

application is expected in the first quarter of 2011 for the first stand to be redeveloped and plans for the 

further stands are being put together to follow. For Fletton Quays site evaluation work and development 

viability studies are planned shortly with relationship management between other landowners sure to be a key 

factor. On the Hospital Quarter progress is also expected in 2011 in securing a private developer who is keen 

to drive forward plans for the site in line with the SPD which was adopted in 2010 

 

One of the most recent key initiatives is aimed at expanding and improving the further and higher education 

and training offer in the city. It is hoped that this will not only better equip its citizens for whatever future 

economic climates may hold, but that it will attract many more students into the city centre, adding to the 

vibrancy, lifting the feel, and helping the local economy while they are in town. The concept is called a 

Multiversity and, as the name suggests, it proposes to introduce numerous levels of new programmes, 

particularly where there are regional gaps or opportunities to complement existing offers from other 

institutions, and it is to be a very much partnership driven arrangement. 

 

 

 

45



 10 

The support from the Homes and Communities Agency alongside that from local and regional Partners and 

from other sources will contribute to the realisation of the vision and aspirations for the City. 

 

The Local Investment Plan recognises that it is the overall quality of place that will determine the success in 

meeting the growth ambitions.  It is the balance of economic, environmental, social and cultural issues which 

will make the City attractive to residents, visitors and businesses.   

 

It is recognised that the key element is the ability to deliver the housing and employment growth envisaged by 

the City in its key strategic policy documents.  The challenge is to overcome infrastructure and development 

constraints in order to facilitate an increase in housing completions in excess of existing levels and to bring 

about increased investment in the local economy. 

 

The Local Investment Plan shows how the targeted intervention of public funding will enable key sites to be 

brought forward, most of which are already in the ownership of the City itself or its public and private sector 

partners. 

 

We are confident that with the appropriate level of HCA support we can make a significant and early 

contribution to progressing growth in Peterborough with the support of other partners, as well as progressing 

the related elements of regeneration. 

 

Key Strategies and Plans for Peterborough 

The LIP summarises key plans, strategies and associated targets within them, including: 

1. The Sustainable Community Strategy, with its vision of a ‘bigger and better Peterborough’; 

2. The Core Strategy, with its emerging targets of around 26,000 new homes and complementary job 

growth; 

3. Growth aspirations, such as the proposed Great Haddon urban extension;  

4. Regeneration aspirations, such as the intensification of the City Centre and the regeneration of our 

Neighbourhoods – including the (emerging) City Centre Area Action Plan;  

5. Peterborough’s Integrated Growth Study which demonstrates how Peterborough can achieve its 

growth targets in a truly sustainable way. 

The LIP also makes commentary on the latest social and economic issues which the City faces, such as 

employment and unemployment rates, job creation, and skill levels.  

 

Issues, Opportunities and Infrastructure Needs 

To deliver the targets and aspirations of the key plans and strategies there is a need for significant amounts of 

infrastructure. The LIP groups these needs into ‘packages’ of infrastructure requirements, under two broad 

headings: 

1 Spatial packages i.e. infrastructure needs to deliver large scale spatial initiatives such as the city centre 

and urban extensions. 

        2 Thematic packages e.g. transport, environmental, utilities, etc, infrastructure needs to complement the  

 growth. 

 

 

46



 11 

Tomorrow’s Growth’ 

Development Programme 
 

Project Schedule 

To complement the evidential section of this report is a Development Programme.  This is a schedule of named 

project items, aligned with the aforementioned spatial and thematic packages. This schedule is intended to be 

‘live’ and updated frequently as and when projects are completed, added or deleted.  

As required by the HCA’s guidelines on the structure of an LIP, the Development Programme is supported by 

an initial set of specific identified projects scheduled for commencement within a 3 year time horizon. These 

projects are individually summarised and have cost estimates and justification indicators applied to them. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

47



 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48



 13 

Today’s City’ 

Evidence Policy & Strategy 
 

49



 14 

 

50



 15 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This document is Peterborough’s Local Investment Plan (LIP).  Its purpose is to provide a single delivery 

programme for strategic capital-led infrastructure which will allow for appropriately phased growth 

and development in the period 2011-14 specifically and beyond that to approximately 2030. This 

document builds on other evidential documents, such as the LDF and the Peterborough Integrated 

Development Programme (IDP), and complements the city’s growth targets for both jobs and housing 

as identified in the Core Strategy. Consultation with the city’s Registered Housing Provider partners has 

helped to shape the final document. 

1.2 The purpose of the LIP is to: 

1 Summarise key strategies and plans for Peterborough, highlight their individual roles and 

importantly show how they complement one another. 

2 Set out what support, particularly in relation to housing delivery, Peterborough needs for the next 

3 years initially and 20 overall, why we need it, who will deliver it, and what it might cost. For a 

variety of audiences, but especially the HCA, it gives confidence that the City has a coordinated 

plan of action on delivering infrastructure to support growth. 

3 Form the basis for bidding for funding from the HCA, but also it could be directed at Government; 

Government Agencies; lottery and other grants; charities; private sector investment; and 

developer contributions (s106 and potentially CIL). 

 

1.3 The LIP is founded on the IDP (which itself includes a database for infrastructure provision that reflects 

delivery by the private sector, the City Council and a range of agencies and utilities), the city’s growth 

targets and site specific research into what is required to ensure delivery of key development sites.  

1.4 However, the LIP is holistic.  Some elements will need to be reviewed in the context of activity on the 

growth agenda such as the emerging City Centre Area Action Plan (CCAAP), and the Long Term 

Transport Strategy (LTTS). The IDP itself is also holistic and regularly refreshed and reviewed. As such, it 

is intended that this LIP will continue to be refreshed to remain fit-for-purpose and meet the overall 

purposes of an LIP as outlined in paragraph 1.2 above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51



 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52



 17 

2: CONTEXT, VISION AND GROWTH TRAJECTORIES 

Context  

2.1 Peterborough is an area that has the potential to accommodate considerable housing and job growth.  

The area covered by this LIP is the unitary authority area, as shown in the centre of Figure 2-1.  The 

shaded functional sub-region extends well into the surrounding authorities, which are also 

experiencing considerable growth. 

Figure 2-1:  Map of Peterborough – urban area, unitary authority area, and wider influence 

 

               
 

2.2 The population of Peterborough grew very quickly during the 1970s and 1980s.  Over the last decade 

or so, however, the rate of population growth has been lower in Peterborough than the average for 

either the East of England or England as a whole (see Figure 2-2). However, with migration and high 

housebuilding rates in the last few years, the populations has probably spiked upwards again. 

2.3 The urban area of Peterborough, as defined by the Office of National Statistics (ONS) “bricks and 

mortar”, accounted for almost 90% of the population of the unitary area at the time of the last Census.  

On this basis, Peterborough was identified as the fifth largest urban area in the East of England, and 

the biggest – by some margin – of the New Towns. 

2.4 Peterborough forms the hub of a well-defined labour market and it is formally recognised as a Travel to 

Work Area.  Overall, there is a net in-commute of around 19,000 people daily and the catchment 

extends well into the East Midlands.  Among the out-commuters, around 1,500 travel to London.  

However one of the features of Peterborough that really stands out is its high degree of self-

containment as compared to other cities within the East of England, which has positive implications in 

terms of sustainability: 

53



 18 

• Of the 82,815 people travelling to work in Peterborough (urban area) at the time of the 2001 

census, 49,808 (or 60.1%) also lived there 

• Within Peterborough (urban area) – at the time of the census – 63,802 people lived in the area 

and had a job, of whom 49,808 (78.1%) worked locally. 

2.5 In terms of its demography, Peterborough has a number of other distinctive characteristics.  Firstly, the 

City is ethnically diverse.  As Table 2-3 suggests, an eighth of the population is non-white – a figure 

which is close to double the average in the East of England.  

2.6 A second characteristic surrounds the relatively high number of migrant workers.  In 2006/07, 

Peterborough accounted for almost 10% of the region’s National Insurance registrations of non-UK 

nationals; economic migrants from Poland accounted for close to half of this total with a high 

proportion of Lithuanians and Slovaks.   

2.7 Finally, it is important to note that compared to the national and regional averages the population of 

Peterborough is relatively young (Table 2-4).  In principle at least, this means that the local economy 

has the potential to be relatively productive. 

 

Figure 2-2:  Population of Peterborough in relation to the East of England and England 

The Mid Year Population Estimates data suggests that a total of 163,900 people live in the city of 

Peterborough with approximately 66% falling into the working age population category which is 

comparable to both the national and regional averages. Peterborough has a slightly younger profile in 

comparison to England and the Eastern region with 40% of the population aged 29 and under 

compared with 38% in England and 36% in the East.  Peterborough also has a slightly smaller 

proportion of people aged 65+ in comparison to the regional and national averages. 

 
Figure 1: Age structure of the resident population 

Age Structure of the resident population

18% 18% 20%

20% 19%
20%

28% 28%
29%

18% 19%
17%

16% 17% 14%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

England East Peterborough

0-14 15-29 30-49 50-64 65+

 
Source: Mid Year Population Estimates 2008 

 

 
 

54



 19 

Table 2-3:  Resident Population by Ethnic Background 

 
According to the mid year population estimates for mid 2008, Peterborough’s population in 2008 was 

about 13% non White British compared to around 12% in England and around 7% in the region. 

Peterborough has a significantly higher than average Pakistani population compared with the national 

and regional averages.  

 
TableXX: Population by ethnic group 

 England East Peterborough 

White  88.2% 91.6% 86.8% 

Mixed  1.7% 1.5% 1.8% 

Indian 2.6% 1.6% 2.7% 

Pakistani 1.8% 1.0% 4.5% 

Other 
Asian 1.4% 1.0% 0.9% 

Black 2.8% 1.9% 2.1% 

Chinese 1.5% 1.3% 1.1% 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

Source: Mid year population estimates 2008 

 

 

Table 2-4: Age distribution of Peterborough’s Resident Population compared to the National 

and Regional Figures, 2006 

  England East Peterborough 

Aged 0-15 years 17.7 17.9 19.5 

Aged 15-39 34.1 32.2 35.9 

Aged 40-64 32.3 33.2 30.6 

65+ 15.9 16.7 14.0 

Source:  ONS Mid Year Population Estimates 

2.8 The following box outlines some other key facts about Peterborough: 

Peterborough: Key Facts 

• Peterborough has a resident population of around 166,000 people (though this 

may be an underestimate by up to 5% due to fluctuating migration issues) 

• Population growth forecasting indicates that Peterborough will have a population 

of approximately 175,000 people by 2011, 189,000 by 2016 and 204,000 by 2021 

• There were 43,700 children and young people (aged 0-19) living in Peterborough 

in 2008, including 12,300 aged under five years in 2008 

• Peterborough is more ethnically diverse than most areas in the East of England, 

with 1 in 14 people having an Asian ethnic group 

• The largest Asian ethnic group is the Pakistani population, with around 7,100 

people with a Pakistani ethnic group living in Peterborough 

• Peterborough City Council’s administrative area covers an area of around 34,300 

hectares and has a higher population density than found on average in the East of 

55



 20 

England and in England, at 4.5 people per hectare 

• Peterborough has relatively high levels of deprivation compared with many areas 

and is ranked amongst the third of English local authorities with the greatest levels 

of deprivation 

• Levels of income deprivation are higher than the England average. One child in 

four lives in a household dependent on means tested benefits 

• The rate of reported crime is higher than the England average 

• Overall examination results are lower than the England average 

• The latest data (Apr 2009/Mar 2010) shows that the unemployment rate for 

working age population was higher in Peterborough at 9.2% than the national, 

regional or Cambridgeshire rates. 

• Although still a designated dispersal area, the numbers of new asylum seekers has 

considerably reduced. 

• Life expectancy in Peterborough is significantly below the national average for 

both men and women. 

 

2.9       Strategic Housing Market Area 

      Peterborough City Council led on the production of a Peterborough Sub- Regional Strategic  

      Housing  Market   Assessment (SHMA) and the recent refresh. The original assessment and needs  

      survey were undertaken in 2007 and an update to the survey data and the SHMA were completed  

      in August 2010. 

2.10 The Peterborough Housing Market  

Peterborough sits within a defined housing market area that consists of the authority area and 

adjacent authorities of Rutland, South Kesteven and South Holland. The Peterborough sub-regional 

housing market also partially covers several areas that fall under the jurisdiction of adjacent local 

authorities, including Fenland, East Northants and Huntingdonshire.  It’s worth noting that another 

Local Investment Plan that covers these three other local authority areas included in the housing 

market area is being produced. Effort will be made to ensure that the Peterborough LIP and the 

Peterborough Partial Housing Market area LIP are compatible.  
 

2.11     Across Peterborough City Council’s local authority area, two distinct housing markets have been 

identified.  These markets are described as the ‘Peterborough  sub-market’ that covers the main urban 

area of Peterborough (including Peterborough’s two largest villages, Eye and Thorney) and the 

‘Stamford sub-market’ that covers the main area of Stamford, plus surrounding rural wards (many of 

which lie within the western Peterborough City Council area). 

2.12      Tenure 

The most common tenure in Peterborough is owner-occupation with a mortgage, which represents 

around 40.6% of all households. Owner-occupation without mortgage is the second most prevalent 

tenure across the authority, at 25.9% of all households. The full tenure breakdown for Peterborough is 

displayed in the table below, along with the estimated total number of households across the 

authority;  

 

 

56



 21 

Tenure Households % of Households 

Owner- occupied (no mortgage) 19,393 25.9% 

Owner-occupied (mortgage) 30,372 40.6% 

Social rented 14,846 19.8% 

Private rented 10,288 13.7% 

Total 74,900 100% 

Source: Peterborough Sub-Regional Strategic Housing Market Assessment Update (2010) 

 

2.13     House Prices 

             The graph below shows the fluctuation in house prices in Peterborough over the past five years.  

             Local change has remained largely consistent with the changes observed regionally and nationally.  

             It is also clear that the average house price in Peterborough, which is presently around £116k, is    

            consistently lower than the national and regional average.  

 

 

House Prices

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

180,000

200,000

Apr-05 Oct-05 Apr-06 Oct-06 Apr-07 Oct-07 Apr-08 Oct-08 Apr-09 Oct-09 Apr-10

Year

P
ri
c
e
 (
£
)

Peterborough East England and Wales

 
                                                                                                  Source: Land Registry (2010) 

 

2.14     Tenure Price Comparisons 

              The table below shows the indicative income required to purchase or rent a two bed entry level  

              property across the three main tenures without subsidy. The table shows that a lower than  

              average amount of income is required to enter home-ownership in Peterborough, with a higher  

              than average amount of income required to rent privately without subsidy. The income required  

              to rent an RSL property without subsidy in Peterborough is consistent with the sub-regional  

              average.  

 

 Entry-level purchase price Entry-level private rent Average RSL rent 

Peterborough £26,857 £23,760 £14,560 

Sub-regional average £28,714 £21,576 £14,664 

Source: Peterborough Sub-Regional Strategic Housing Market Assessment Update (2010) 

 

 

57



 22 

2.15     Migration and Commuting Patterns 

             In terms of migration patterns, there is a net outflow from Peterborough to other areas within the  

             Peterborough sub-region, mainly South Holland and South Kesteven, but also to some extent in  

             Rutland. Despite the outward migration flows, Peterborough experiences a high level of  

             in-commuting  from neighbouring authorities. These trends are depicted in the maps below.  

    

     Fig 1. Migration flows across the Peterborough Sub-Region 

 
Source: The housing Implications of employment land in the Peterborough Sub-Region (2009) 

 

 

 

Fig 2. Commuting flows across the Peterborough Sub-Region 

 

 
Source: The housing Implications of employment land in the Peterborough Sub-Region (2009) 

58



 23 

2.16       Demand for market housing 

              The Strategic Housing Market Assessment update also featured an analysis of current and future  

              demand based on households that can afford to buy or rent from the open market, the key  

              findings  and recommendations of which are as follows;  

 

• There is a minimum annual requirement for 876 units of market housing, with a requirement for 

93.3% of these to be houses or bungalows. This equates to a minimum of 14,017 market units 

between 2010 and 2026 

• Around 44% of demand for market housing across the Peterborough sub-region will come from 

childless couples and multi-adult households, with an equal 28% coming from single persons and from 

households with children.  

• In the long term, the majority of market demand will be for larger units, particularly three bed houses. 

Demand for flats and maisonettes will account for less than 5%  

• Demand for properties of sizes in excess of four bedrooms will account for 22.4% of open market 

demand, whereas one bed accommodation will account for just 3.4% of future demand 

 

The Table below provides a breakdown of new build market housing in Peterborough in recent years by 

property type and size. 

 

  
Year 1-bed 

house 
%1-
bed 
house 

2-bed 
house 

%2-
bed 
house 

3-bed 
house 

%3-
bed 
house 

4+-
bed 
house 

%4+-
bed 
house 

1-
bed 
flats 

%1-
bed 
flats 

2-
bed 
flats 

%2-
bed 
flats 

3-
bed 
flats 

%3-
bed 
flats 

4-
bed 
flats 

%4-
bed 
flats 

Market 
Complet
ions 

2002 1 0.2% 47 8.5% 187 33.8% 307 55.4% 8 1.4% 1 0.2% 1 0.2% 2 0.4% 554 

2003 6 0.9% 53 7.9% 181 27.1% 326 48.8% 3 0.4% 99 14.8% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 668 

2004 17 3.0% 57 10.1% 208 36.9% 237 42.0% 10 1.8% 34 6.0% 1 0.2% 0 0.0% 564 

2005 5 0.6% 67 8.6% 251 32.4% 262 33.8% 45 5.8% 145 18.7% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 775 

2006 13 1.7% 33 4.2% 237 30.5% 189 24.3% 91 11.7% 212 27.3% 2 0.3% 0 0.0% 777 

2007 6 0.6% 60 5.7% 231 22.0% 256 24.3% 101 9.6% 392 37.3% 6 0.6% 0 0.0% 1052 

2008 5 0.6% 58 7.3% 256 32.1% 273 34.3% 67 8.4% 135 16.9% 3 0.4% 0 0.0% 797 

2009 5 0.8% 33 5.2% 89 14.0% 202 31.7% 110 17.3% 191 30.0% 7 1.1% 0 0.0% 637 

2010 0 0.0% 23 5.3% 70 16.2% 127 29.3% 70 16.2% 141 32.6% 2 0.5% 0 0.0% 433  

 

 

2.17 Specialist Housing Needs 

The 2008 Peterborough Housing Needs Assessment (HNA) provides data on the levels of households 

with a member with a special need in Peterborough. It estimates that 18.9% of all households in 

Peterborough have one or members with an identified special need compared against the national 

average of approximately 14%. The table below shows the breakdown of households with different 

special needs. The percentages in each category exceeds the total number of special needs households 

because some people may have more than one category of special need.   

 

Households with Special Needs 

 % of all households % of special needs HHolds 

Frail Elderly 4.2% 22.1% 

Medical Condition 11.5% 61.0% 

Physical Disability 9.1% 48.2% 

Learning Difficulty 2.3% 11.9% 

Mental Health Problem 3.2% 16.8% 

Other 1.4% 7.5% 

 

 

59



 24 

2.18 Not all households with special needs live in unsuitable housing. However, the HNA indicates that  

    special needs households are nearly three times more  likely to be in unsuitable housing than other  

    households. Approximately 19% of all special needs households are living in unsuitable housing     

    compared with 6.1% of all other households.  

 

2.19 The HNA also provides data on the levels of households containing one or more older persons in  

Peterborough. Around 24% of all households in Peterborough contain only older people. Of these 

households, 27.3% are headed by someone aged 80 or over. Nearly a third of social rented 

accommodation contains older people only and 45.2% of these households are headed up by someone 

over 80. This is likely to impact upon the need for the future supply of special needs social rented 

accommodation. 

 

 Black and Minority Ethnic Housing Needs 

2.20 The Housing needs survey undertaken in 2008 to provide primary data for the SHMA collected  

information regarding the ethnicity of the respondents to the survey. However, the sample response  

received from the BME community was limited and therefore 150 additional surveys were undertaken 

with BME households to  allow more detailed information to be collected about the particular issues 

relevant to this group. Some of the key finds from the surveys were; 

• Pakistani households recorded the largest average household size with Asian other and White 

other also displaying an average household size larger than the city average 

• Pakistani and Asian other households recorded a higher level of owner-occupation than the city 

average 

• White other and Other households recorded a higher than average level of residence in the 

private rented sector 

• All BME households are less likely to be pensioner only households and are more likely to 

contain children than the city average 

• Pakistani households are more likely than average to contain a special needs member 

• White other and Pakistani households are more likely than the city average to be  living in 

unsuitable housing 

 

2.21 A detailed and updated picture of the full extent of the ethnic diversity of Peterborough’s  

population will become available once the outcome of the 2011 census is known. However, mid term 

population estimates do indicate that Peterborough has an ethnically diverse community which has 

increased it’s diversity to include many migrant workers since the enlargement of the EU in 2004.  

 

2.22 A study of migrant workers in Peterborough completed in June 2009 assessed the views and  

experience of migrant workers on the benefits and challenges of living and working in Peterborough 

from a range of perspectives including accommodation and access to housing.  The predominant 

migrant groups in Peterborough are Polish, Czech, Slovak, Portuguese and Lithuanian and therefore 

the study focused specifically on these communities with a total of 278 interviews conducted to 

inform the research. Some of the key findings from this survey were; 

• 74% of respondents were renting from the private rented sector 

• 10% of respondents were living in social rented accommodation. 

• A high  instance of people sharing a bedroom with other people who are not their partner was 

reported ( up to 5 people in one room in some cases) 

• 11% of respondents had experienced sleeping rough or having to stay with family/friends because 

they had nowhere else to live. 

 

 

 

60



 25 

2.23 Due to an identified problem with rough sleeping in Peterborough, largely arising from the migrant 

population, Peterborough has taken part in a pilot study during 2010/11 with the UK Border Agency to 

tackle rough sleeping in the city. This pilot study has been very successful reducing the number of 

rough sleeping migrants largely through voluntary reconnection with countries of origin and to a lesser 

extent through administrative removal. Peterborough is now recognised as a leading authority on 

tackling rough sleeper issues.  Peterborough’s Homelessness Grant allocation for 2011/12 has received 

an uplift and a further £40,000 has been allocated by the CLG  for further work with single homeless 

people in Peterborough.  

 

             Gypsy and Traveller Housing Needs 

2.24 The most recent assessment of Gypsy and Traveller need in Peterborough was undertaken in May  

2006 as part of the Cambridge Sub –Region Traveller Needs Assessment. At that time, the study 

estimated that 10-15 permanent pitches would be required in Peterborough by 2010. Since then an 

update to the Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) in July 2009 required  Peterborough to provide 55 

permanent Gypsy and Traveller pitches between 2006-2021, plus assist the 

Cambridgeshire/Peterborough area in providing new Travelling Show people sites and transit sites for 

Gypsies and Travellers.  Plans to identify sites for permanent and transit Gypsy and Traveller caravan 

accommodation, to meet the targets of the RSS have now been put on hold following the steps taken 

by the Coalition Government to pursue its abolition. The council’s policy relating to the provision of 

pitches for Gypsies and Travellers in the Core Strategy has been amended by the Planning Inspector 

following the public examination of the strategy. This amended policy will be presented to Cabinet for 

adoption as part of the overall Core Strategy in February 2011.  The policy now states that the 

provision of additional pitches (whether for permanent occupation or transit use) can be achieved 

through the normal process of the submission of a planning application and the granting of planning 

permission; and, if necessary, through the identification and allocation of land in the Site Allocations 

DPD, therefore removing an unqualified requirement for the council to identify new sites for pitches.  

The policy does state however, that with regard to a transit site, a clear need has been identified in 

Peterborough and therefore the council intends to safeguard a site for such purposes in the Site 

Allocations DPD, guided by the above criteria.  

 

The policy also sets out that the council will maintain a local assessment of need for Gypsy and Traveller 

pitches (permanent and transit) and Travelling Showpeople plots. The outcome of these assessments 

will assist the Council, if necessary, in the identification and allocation of land for sites for permanent 

pitches in the Site Allocations DPD, and in the determination of applicable planning applications. The 

council is currently working with partner authorities to commission a needs assessment for Gypsy and 

Traveller pitches in Peterborough and the surrounding area.  

 

Peterborough’s Rural Housing Market 

2.25 The SHMA update 2010 estimates that 14.5% of households in Peterborough live in rural areas.  

The table below shows a comparison between property types in Peterborough’s urban and rural 

housing stock. As is characteristic in many rural areas, there are a higher percentage of detached 

properties and bungalows in Peterborough’s rural areas than urban areas and significantly lower 

number of flats. 

 

Property Type Rural Urban 

Detached  36.2% 21.4% 

Semi-detached 28.4% 25.6% 

Terraced 14.3% 26.4% 

Flats 2% 14.1% 

Bungalows 18.7% 12.3% 

61



 26 

 

2.26 Owner occupation is the majority tenure in rural Peterborough accounting for 77.5% of dwellings  

compared with 68.2% city wide. The SHMA update shows a marked difference between house prices 

in  the two housing market areas identified within Peterborough. House prices are significantly lower 

in the main urban area in Peterborough which includes the two rural key service centres described as 

the Peterborough Sub –Market than house prices in the rural areas to the west of the city that 

contains Peterborough’s smaller rural settlements  described as the Stamford sub-market. 

 

 Peterborough Sub-Market Stamford Sub-Market 

One Bed £64,000 £74,000 

Two Bed £94,000 £121,000 

Three Bed £117,000 £147,000 

Four Bed £173,000 £195,000 

 

2.27      The Housing needs Survey undertaken in 2008 estimated that 8.3% of households in rural  

               Peterborough live in rented accommodation provided by an affordable housing provider  

               compared to 19.7% authority wide. The Peterborough SHMA update undertaken in July 2010  

               estimates that there is a need for 141 units of affordable housing per annum in Peterborough’s  

               rural area if all identified housing need is to be met. 

 

2.28       Affordability and Housing Need 

               According to the 2010 update of the Peterborough Strategic Housing Market Assessment, the key  

               housing need findings are as follows;  

 

• 27.4% of households in Peterborough cannot afford to rent or buy market housing without a need for 

subsidy, compared with 22.6% of households across the sub-region 

• 81.2% of lone parents in Peterborough are unable to affordable market prices or rents without 

subsidy. 37.5% of single persons are unable to afford market prices and rents without some sort of 

financial intervention, closely followed by 37% of single pensioners 

• At the current rate of household formation and housing supply, an average of 1,008 households will 

fall into housing need each year in Peterborough  

• If we were to solely address the highest levels of housing need, 38% of all new housing built in 

Peterborough would need to be affordable 

• Across the sub-region, the main reason for unsuitable housing is health and/or mobility issues due to 

property conditions, followed by overcrowding and affordability 

• Based on present housing needs, around two thirds of future new build affordable housing would 

need to be smaller units, including one and two beds.  

• However, based on future demographic trends, long-term housing need is expected to shift towards a 

requirement for two and three bed properties 

• In terms of addressing the need for intermediate housing, there is a minimum requirement for 150 

dwellings per annum.  

• In terms of rural housing demand, percentage of households in housing need is lower than in urban 

Peterborough (1.06% compared with 1.35%). However, need as a proportion of supply in rural 

Peterborough is around ten times higher than that need as a proportion of supply in urban 

Peterborough.  

 

 

62



 27 

2.29    Housing Stock Condition 

             In 2009 Peterborough City Council commissioned a study into the condition of the private sector  

             housing stock across the authority. The key findings of this study were as follows;  

 

• Around 31.3% of the private housing stock in Peterborough was developed between 1965 and 1980. 

Around 28.2% of the private stock was built post 1980, whereas 14.1% of the stock across the 

authority was developed pre-1919. 

• In terms of unit type, around 27.2% of private stock in Peterborough is semi-detached housing. 

Detached housing makes up 23.3% of private stock, with 10.4% terraced housing. Flats account for 

10.4%, whereas bungalows account for 12.1%.  

• In terms of tenure, 45.2% of private housing across the authority is in owner occupation by way of a 

mortgage. Around 34.2% is privately owned without a mortgage, and 20.6% privately rented.   

• 22.7% (13,610) of private sector dwellings in Peterborough have a category one hazard as defined 

under the Housing Health and Safety Rating System. This is lower than the average for England as a 

whole, which stands at 23.5% of all private stock. A category one hazard is such that it may cause 

death or serious injury. 

• According to the study, the cost of rectifying these hazards is roughly £17.3 million.  

• The most common hazards amongst the private housing stock in Peterborough is excess cold and risk 

of falling on stairs, with single pensioners and loan parents most likely to live in hazardous homes 

• In terms of disrepair, the main issues across the private sector housing stock relate to doors, windows 

and heating systems.  

• The average to rectify urgent repairs across the private housing stock is £1,171 per dwelling. The 

average cost to rectify basic repairs has been estimated at £1,774 per dwelling.  

• In regards to Decent Homes, 39% of private sector homes fail to meet the standard. 59% of these 

failures are due to category one hazards, and 49% fail due to issues of thermal comfort. Around 44.8% 

of vulnerable households in the private sector live in non-decent housing.  

• The highest levels of non-decency were found to be in the private rented sector, in empty homes, in 

pre-1919 dwellings, in terraced housing, and in converted flats.  

• The average SAP rating for residential properties in the private sector in Peterborough stands at 55, 

which is higher than the national figure of 47.  

• 15,000 homes in Peterborough require improvements to heating systems 

• 7,749 households are in ‘fuel poverty’ across Peterborough, including 22.6% of all vulnerable 

households. Households in the private rented sector are most likely to be in fuel poverty.  

• In terms of Homes in Multiple Occupation (HMOs), the stock condition survey identified 1,475 non-

mandatory licensable HMOs. The study also identified 206 mandatory licensable HMOs, and 266 

HMOs that require licensing as they fall within the Millfield and New England additional licensing area.  

 

2.30 A range of initiatives have been progressed as a result of the findings of Housing Condition Survey . 

Many of the excess cold issues identified through the survey are being addressed through the 

Peterborough Home Insulation Scheme, which utilises £2 million funding from EERA and PCC to 

provide energy saving measures for low income households living in energy inefficient properties.  

 

2.31 During 2010/11 a further £880,000 has been allocated to address life-threatening and serious hazards 

in properties occupied by low income households. Despite a 40 percent cut in funding in future years, 

this programme will continue but with a focus upon the highest category hazards.  

2.32  The council has plans to tackle bringing back into use the large number of empty properties that were 

identified in the PSHCS. Peterborough City Council presently runs a private sector leasing scheme for 

properties that the authority brings back into use. For the last two years, progress with this scheme 

has been slow due to lack of dedicated resources. In January 2011, 873 empty properties were 

63



 28 

identified by Council tax as properties that have been empty for more than 6 months. The council has 

now set aside funding to employ a half time post as a dedicated Empty Homes Officer from April 2011 

. This post will work with the owners of empty homes to facilitate bring the stock back into use and 

where necessary, will utilise the authority’s powers under Empty Dwelling Management Orders 

(EDMO) to bring homes back into use.  This renewed focus on dealing with Peterborough’s empty 

homes will enable the council to benefit from the Government’s new incentives for councils to get 

empty homes lived in again by matching the council tax raised for every empty property brought back 

into use.  The recent government decision however , to increase the threshold from 6 months to a 

minimum of 2 years before the use of  EDMOs can be deployed as a means of bringing empty 

properties back into use,  will significantly impact upon the capacity of the council to reduce the levels 

of  empty homes  and under occupation in the city. 

2.33 Registered Provider’s Housing Stock 

During recent years, Registered Providers operating in Peterborough have made significant investment 

in their stock in order to achieve the ‘Decent Homes’ standard. In January 2011, the four registered 

providers with the majority of affordable housing stock in Peterborough (Cross Keys, Accent Nene, 

Axiom and Minster) confirmed that 97% of their combined housing stock was assessed as meeting the 

decent homes standard. 

            

Economic Performance and Economic Growth 

Introduction 

2.34 Peterborough is a major regional centre and gateway. The sub-region enjoys a strategic location on the 

national road and rail network allowing easy access to national and international markets.  

2.35 More than 6,000 companies are currently based within Peterborough, including some with their 

regional and international headquarters based in the city. Peterborough demonstrated the strongest 

performance of the East of England cities in the State of the English Cities report.  

2.36 The social and economic influence of the Peterborough sub-region’s economy goes far wider than the 

existing administrative boundaries, spreading into Fenland, parts of South Lincolnshire, Rutland, East 

Northamptonshire and Huntingdonshire, and reaching a total population of some 700,000. 

2.37 Peterborough has a strong and diverse economy with a number of significant sectors, such as 

environmental technology, media, engineering and financial services. Peterborough is currently 

working toward delivering major economic growth and sustainable regeneration to help secure 

investment for the sub-region. Peterborough is a designated ‘Environment City’ with companies 

providing environmental manufacturing, technology and advisory services supported by the new Eco-

Innovation centre. Peterborough has key economic strengths in industrial sectors such as 

environmental goods and service industries, food agriculture and media and publishing companies.  

2.38 There are areas of relatively high deprivation, mainly in the north and east of the city centre in the old, 

pre-New Town core, with 22 of Peterborough’s 104 SOAs in the 20% most deprivation in the UK. One 

of the wards is in the most deprived 3% of SOAs nationally.  

The Labour Market and Economy 

2.39  The graph below demonstrates that Peterborough has been severely affected by the recession, more 

so than the region and England as a whole. It shows the trends in employment rate between 2005 and 

2010. The latest data shows that  69.2 per cent of the working age population are in employment 

compared to  England (70.5 per cent) and East of England (73.5 per cent).  

 

 

64



 29 

2.40 According to the latest Annual Business Inquiry data (2008) 99,098 people employees are working in 

Peterborough. As with national and regional trends, the largest proportion are in the service industry, 

almost 28% are in the banking, finance and insurance sectors and a further 22% in the public services 

sector.  

2.41 Interestingly, Peterborough’s GVA per head is consistently higher than the national and regional   

      averages. The latest data (2007) suggests that Peterborough’s GVA per head is £26,968 compared to  

 £20,458 nationally and £19,083 regionally.whilst in 2009  Peterborough’s gross weekly income was  

 £433.70. This is considerably lower than the national (£496.00) and regional averages (£509.40).  

 

Employment rate 

66.0

68.0

70.0

72.0

74.0

76.0

78.0

Apr 2005-Mar
2006

Apr 2006-Mar
2007

Apr 2007-Mar
2008

Apr 2008-Mar
2009

Apr 2009-Mar
2010

England East Peterborough

 

           Source: Annual Population Survey Apr 2009/Mar 2010 data 

 

 
Employment (Apr 2009/Mar 2010) 

 

Peterborough 

(numbers)  

Peterborough 

(%)  East (%)  England (%)  

Employment rate - aged 16-64 73,300 69.2 70.5 73.5 

Economic activity rate - aged 16-64 80,700 76.2 76.6 78.9 

% aged 16-64 who are employees 65,500 61.9 60.8 63.1 

% aged 16-64 who are self employed 7,100 6.7 9.2 10.1 

 
Source: Annual Population Survey Apr 2009/Mar 2010 data 

 

Employment Growth 

2.42 Whilst the figures note high levels of employment, job growth is poor, particularly in food where the 

total number of people employed has declined. Construction has performed better. The largest 

increase has been in public administration.  Projections for future employment growth from 2006 – 

2021 are 18 per cent. Nevertheless, the growth aspirations of the regeneration, skills and employment 

partnerships have collective ambitions to actively align the cities infrastructure development with that 

of raising both the skills and levels of job opportunities for residents and migrants to the city alike. The 

series of tables outlined below give a clear illustration of the most recent and projected data which 

provides evidence for this 

65



 30 

Figure 3: Proportion of employees by industry 
 

0 5,000 10,000 15,00 0 20 ,000 25,00 0 3 0,000

Banking, f inance and insurance

Public adminis tration,educat ion & health

Dis tribution, hote ls and restaurants

Manufacturing 

Trans port and communications

Other serv ices 

Construc tion 

Agric ulture and f is hing 

Energy  and w ater 

 
 

 

Projected number of employees 

Area Projected change 

2006-2021 
Projected percentage 

change 2006-2021 
Projected total 

employees 2021 

Peterborough 600 0.5 111,700 

 

 

        Employment by Occupation Apr 2009/Mar 2010  

Oct 2008-Sep 2009 Peterborough 
(numbers) 

Peterborough 
(%) East (%) England (%) 

Managers and senior officials 8,800 11.9 17.5 16.1 

Professional occupations 7,800 10.5 13.4 13.8 

Associate professional  & tech 
occupations 

8,100 10.9 14.5 14.8 

Administrative and secretarial 
occupations 

8,700 11.7 11.5 11.2 

Skilled trades occupations 6,500 8.7 10.9 10.2 

Personal service occupations 6,400 8.6 8.0 8.6 

Sales and customer service occupations 7,300 9.7 6.8 7.3 

Process, plant and machine operatives 7,200 9.6 6.0 6.6 

Elementary occupations 13,200 17.7 10.9 11.0 

                        Source: Annual Population Survey Apr 2009/Mar 2010 data 

 

 

 Economic Inactivity – Unemployment 

2.43 Claimant count benefit claimants are people who are out of work claiming jobseekers allowance. The  

 latest claimant count data for Peterborough suggests claimant count has been on a downward trend  

 since February this year. There has been a decrease of 192 claimants over the last month (from 4,809  

 to 4617), which equates to a rate of 4.1%. The rate for England remains unchanged from the previous  

 month the region has seen a drop of 0.1% point 

66



 31 

Claimant Count, October 2009-10

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

5.0

5.5

S
ep-09

O
ct-09

N
ov-09

D
ec-09

Jan-10

F
eb-10

M
ar-10

A
pr-10

M
ay-10

Jun-10

Jul-10

A
ug-10

S
ep-10

O
ct-10

England East Peterborough 

 
            Source: Claimant Count rates and proportions. Nomis, November 2010 
 

  
             Figure 5: economic inactivity 

Peterborough Area  

Apr 2009-Mar 2010 

Peterborough 

Numbers 

 

Peterborough 

% 

East of 

England % 

Great 

Britain % 

Economically In-

Active   
25,200 23.8 21.1 23.4 

Wanting a Job 7,500 7.1 5.2 5.6 

Not wanting a job 17,700 16.8 15.9 17.8 

               Source: Annual Population Survey Apr 2009/Mar 2010 data 

 

 

Assets and Opportunities 

2.44 Despite the somewhat bleak picture of economic performance. Peterborough does have a range of 

assets and opportunities at its disposal, and working through the very strong partnerships greater 

benefit can potentially be realised for both business and the community.  

• A strong and continuing tradition of high value manufacturing and a current  

concentration of employment in banking, finance and insurance services 

• Environment City Status, Home of Environmemtal Capital and emerging and well supported 

clusters in environmental technologies and media, printing and publishing 

• Strong public sector employment presence with the continuing ability to attract   

national agencies and organisations 

• A key gateway to/from the region towards Midlands and the North and with good access to 

London and the Greater South East, with key investments infrastructure   

 which has enabled an emerging proposal for an ‘inland port’ 

67



 32 

• Continuing strong growth, which will attract investment  

• A strong commitment to new development and regeneration to tackle some of the causes of 

economic underperformance, including affordable housing provision and the quality of all 

developments 

• Presence of major companies including Thomas Cook Group, Indesit, Perkins Engines Co. 

Dresser Rand, EMAP, British Sugar plc, BGL Group, Diligenta Ltd and Fairline Boats plc. 

 

Innovation 

2.45 The SRES pin-points enterprise as innovation as the number one priority if Peterborough is to realise its 

ambitions to achieve ‘substantial and sustainable growth’ over the next 20 years. To achieve this 

vision, the Peterborough sub-regional economy must continue to increase its prosperity (as proxied by 

Gross Value Added (GVA) per capita) by raising the productivity of its firms, public sector and other 

organisations and the employment rate and prospects of its residents. A primary objective is to 

recognize the importance of innovation as a key driver of productivity and competitiveness, and of 

creating an environment that supports creativity and enterprise. 

2.46 The Home of Environmental Capital initiative focuses on the significant low carbon and environmental 

goods and services (LCEGS) sector cluster in the Greater Peterborough Growth Area; the largest of its 

type in the UK. The city's 380 organisations in this sector employ around 5,000 people and account for 

5% of Peterborough's GDP.  

Investment 

2.47 In addition to innovation, a second drive for Peterborough to recognize the accelerating pace of change 

and the requirement in a changing economy to be flexible, adaptable and agile in its response to 

changing economic and social circumstances.  Critical in this respect is the capacity of the sub-region to 

improve its skills base and education infrastructure to meet the changing skill needs of business and 

the public sector (discussed later).   

 

Skills  

2.48 The skills levels within Peterborough are captured in terms of levels of attainment (by qualifications) 

and more generically across employment activity. Historically Peterborough has suffered from low 

achievement levels in terms of qualifications, and this has been deemed to create the knock effect in 

terms of the take-up high-level employment opportunities (by local residents) and the subsequent low 

wage levels of employees  

Qualifications levels 

2.49 The qualifications attainment of the working age population in Peterborough was generally lower  

      than the East of England and GB averages in 2008. The proportion of graduates in the City’s  

      workforce is low. School attainment is also poor in some areas.  The overall percentage of pupils  

      achieving 5 or more A*-C grades at GCSE was 47.5% in 2003 compared to 51.9% nationally and  

      points scores at GCSE  and A-level are also marginally below national equivalents.  Figures below  

      show the 12 month calculations via Nomis official labour market statistics, as NVQ 2 and above  

      well below attainment regional and national attainment levels at 56% seta against a national  

      average of 65.2% and East of England average of 62.8%. 

 

 

 

68



 33 

Peterborough 

Area  

Jan – Dec 2008 

Peterborough 

Numbers 

 

Peterborough % East of 

England % 

Great Britain % 

NVQ4 and above 19.300 18.8 26.1 29.0 

NVQ3 and above 37,400 36.4 43.4 47.0 

NVQ2 and above 57,500 56.0 62.8 65.2 

NVQ1 and above 73,500 71.7 78.8 78.9 

other 

qualifications 13,500 13.1 9.3 

8.7 

no qualifications 15,600 15.2 11.8 12.4 

 

Conclusions 

2.50 Peterborough is seeking to achieve a step change in delivery, essentially by targeting high end job 

growth through knowledge and environmental sectors.  Whilst these are growing markets, delivery is 

competitive and in many senses Peterborough is starting with a competitive disadvantage.  Significant 

efforts are required through intervention to encourage market led jobs delivery to take a different 

form to those delivered in previous periods of significant growth.  

 

Vision for Peterborough 

2.51 The following section outlines a summary of the vision for Peterborough, as reflected in a number of 

strategic plans and strategies 

Sustainable Community Strategy 

2.52 The Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) represents the growth agenda of all partners.  Its vision and 

priorities direct many other key strategic documents that support the overall development of 

Peterborough including the Core Strategy. 

2.53 The SCS vision is that of: 

A bigger and better Peterborough that grows the right way – and through truly sustainable 

development and growth: 

- Improves the quality of life of all its people and communities and ensures that all 

communities benefit from growth and the opportunity it brings 

- Creates a truly sustainable Peterborough, the urban centre of a thriving sub-regional 

community of villages and market towns, a healthy, safe and exciting place to live, work 

and visit, famous as the environment capital of the UK. 

 

2.54 The SCS has the following key priorities: 

• Creating strong and supportive communities 

• Creating the UK’s environment capital 

• Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth 

• Creating opportunities, tackling inequalities 

2.55 The Greater Peterborough Partnership (GPP) is the Local Strategic Partnership working collectively 

towards the vision and priorities of the SCS. 

69



 34 

Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) 

2.56 The status of the RSS, published in 2008, is currently uncertain since a recent judgement found that the  

 coalition government’s actions to revoke Regional Spatial Strategies were not legal.  However, the  

 government remains committed to abolishing the RSS and therefore it is anticipated that the strategy  

 will be revoked in due course. Despite the inevitable deletion of the  policies and targets of the RSS,  

 some of the research and evidence base behind it remain useful and relevant to the continued  

 development of vision, aims and objectives for the future of Peterborough.  

 

              Local Economic Assessment 

2.57 A Local Economic Assessment is currently being prepared. This will provide both an overview of  

 Peterborough’s current economic landscape as well as detailed  assessment of its risks and  

 opportunities. Preceding jobs targets have been considered to have been challenging (1,000 pa net)  

 but this year alone has seen a boost of over 3,000 jobs being created. Although there have been losses  

 too, many announced redundancies have resulted in redeployment, creating a net growth around  

 2,000.  

 

              Local Enterprise Partnership 

2.58      Peterborough has recently joined with the Cambridge and Cambridgeshire in the Greater  

 Cambridgeshire-Greater Peterborough Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP). This has recently been  

 approved by the coalition government, and demonstrates a clear economic ambition for the wider  

 area. The process and structure of the new LEP are in process of being defined, but even in the  

 generation of the bid, relationships between neighbouring authorities have been enhanced to levels  

 that have not been experienced previously. This means that there is much greater likelihood for  

 collaboration on all growth agendas (whether purely economic through investment and job creation,  

 or through housing growth and the provision of infrastructure). Some key priorities are already coming  

 forward from the partnership and it is clear that the focus will need to be high-level and strategic, and  

 opportunities need to be seized around skills development, alternative funding mechanisms and  

 infrastructure (both hard and soft). 

 

Sub-Regional Economic Strategy 2008 - 2031 

2.59 The Sub-Regional Economic Strategy (SRES) for Peterborough presents the vision for the economic 

well-being of the sub-region for the period 2008-2031.  The vision and priorities contained in this SRES 

are derived from assessments of the Peterborough regional economy.  . 

2.60 The SRES aims to deliver sustainable growth by building upon the sub-region’s strengths and 

opportunities and tackling the weaknesses and threats identified.  This is a long-term challenge that 

will require significant prioritisation to manage expectation and build for sustainable growth. 

Local Development Framework (LDF) 

2.61 The LDF is gradually replacing the City Council’s adopted Local Plan.  The first document that is due for 

adoption is the Peterborough Core Strategy which will be presented to Cabinet in February 2011.  It 

shares an identical vision to that of the SCS and has been assessed as sound by the Planning 

Inspectorate following public examination. 

2.62 Other LDF documents are also being prepared, including a Site Allocations DPD, a City Centre Area  

      Action Plan and a Planning Policies DPD, together with a number of Supplementary Planning  

      Documents (SPDs) 

 

70



 35 

Growth Trajectories 

Support for Growth 

2.63 Peterborough’s growth targets set by the RSS were welcomed by the council and its partners. Despite 

the revocation of the RSS, the Leader of the Council has reaffirmed the Council’s ambition for growth 

(see press release of 7 June 2010). 

2.64 Partners, however, recognise the challenges that remain in order to maintain momentum and continue 

to generate the right atmosphere for growth, through increasing social community infrastructure, 

education and skills, quality of life issues and attracting additional high grade jobs to the city.   

Growth Strategy 

2.65 As part of Peterborough’s commitment to growth, and growing the right way, an Integrated Growth 

Study (IGS) was commissioned to provide vital evidence on how this can be achieved in a sustainable 

manner.  The IGS is a key element in the evidence base for the Core Strategy.  The integrated nature of 

the study has resulted in a comprehensive review of all key policy, strategy and local planning 

documents as well as the aims and ambitions of key stakeholders, strategic partners, and the wider 

community. 

2.66 Extensive consultation has been held with Peterborough’s communities and stakeholders on the 

issues, visions and generic concepts for growth patterns to ensure as broad consensus as possible for 

proposals. 

2.67 The preparation of options for sustainable growth has been based on a robust analysis of the potential 

options, through the development of a comprehensive spatial baseline that has enabled identification 

of opportunities and constraints to development and allowed analysis of potential areas suitable for 

growth. The IGS recommended spatial option focuses on a pattern of growth including city centre and 

district centre intensification along with specific urban extension, and limited growth in the rural areas. 

 

Growth Targets 

2.68 The table below sets out the progress that has been made to achieving the growth targets (as of 1
st

 

April 2009), and rolls forward the targets to 2026. 

Dwelling provision for 2001 to 2026 Number of Dwellings 

Net additional dwellings achieved (2001 to 2009) 6,892 

Additional dwellings required to meet RSS minimum 

figure (2009 to 2021) 

18,108 

Additional dwellings required to compensate for 

assumed losses in dwellings (2009 to 2021) 

171 

Total outstanding requirement (2009-2021) 18,279 

Dwelling Provision for 2021 – 2026 

Additional dwellings required to ensure continuity of 

supply to (2021 to 2026) 

7,100 

Additional dwellings required to compensate for 

assumed losses in dwellings (2021-2026) 

71 

Total requirement (2021 to 2026) 7,171 

Dwelling provision to 2009 to 2026  

Total outstanding net requirement (2009 to 2026) 25,450 

 

71



 36 

2.69      As such, provision will be made for the development of a minimum of approximately 

25-26,000 additional dwellings over the period from 2009 to 2026. 

Peterborough Housing Trajectory 

2.70 The Housing Trajectory will be updated each year to take into account the number of completions, 

losses and dwellings on sites with planning permission.  A new Housing Trajectory will be included in 

the Core Strategy and updated each year in the Annual Monitoring Report (AMR). 

Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development 

2.71 The overall development strategy, as set out in the emerging Core Strategy, is to focus the majority of  

      new development in and around the urban area of the City of Peterborough, creating strong,   

     sustainable, cohesive and inclusive mixed-use communities, making the most effective use of   

     previously developed land, and enabling a larger number of people to access services and facilities  

     locally. 

 

City Centre Intensification 

2.72 The need to increase provision of housing in the city centre was a common theme emerging from the 

consultations on the Core Strategy and IGS. Development would be expected to 'kick-start' 

regeneration of the area as a vibrant activity hub for the rest of the city, where an increased number of 

people living in the centre will provide a greater market demand and associated opportunities for the 

development of a vibrant night time economy and associated improvements in local leisure, 

recreation, employment and retail provision.  

2.73 The City Centre Area Action Plan (CCAAP) will set out the coherent planning and phasing of 

development in the city centre.  

 

District Centre Intensification 

2.74 In and adjacent to District Centres and Local Centres, the Council will encourage schemes for 

residential intensification. These areas cover the five District Centres of Peterborough: Bretton, 

Hampton, Millfield, Orton and Werrington. They comprise some of the former township areas that 

have been identified as having the capacity for significant growth through the exploitation of in-fill 

sites, increased density, redevelopment of existing-use sites (surface car parks) and market and policy-

led residential development.   

2.75 Intensification of this nature should deliver considerable regeneration benefits and secure the long 

term sustainability of social facilities. Other benefits likely to result from this would be the potential for 

an improved transport network through increased patronage and demand, with the opportunity for 

the instigation of high quality sustainable transportation modes. 

 

              Urban Extensions 

2.76 Urban extensions provide an opportunity to deliver a large proportion of the city’s new growth. 

Sustainable new communities can be created by using the best principles of urban design, and modern 

design and construction. They can support existing communities through combined social capital and 

new environmental infrastructure, and offer the opportunity for enhanced public transport systems 

and the expansion of Peterborough’s Green Wheel network.  Urban extensions also offer the potential 

for greater speed of delivery with land coming forward more readily with fewer inherent constraints 

and issues. 

 

 

72



 37 

2.77 The scale of housing growth that Peterborough seeks means that there will need to be significant 

reliance on urban extensions to deliver not simply dwellings, but complete sustainable, inclusive, mixed 

use communities. Learning from best international practice, urban extensions should be designed and 

delivered as exemplars in sustainable living. 

2.78 The emerging Core Strategy identifies two new urban extensions namely; Great Haddon and Norwood. 

It also reaffirms existing urban extensions yet to be completed / commenced, namely; Hampton, 

Stanground South and Paston Reserve.  The locations for the proposed new urban extensions (i.e. 

those not already committed) are based on the evidence and conclusions from the IGS, which 

examined all potential alternatives against a comprehensive range of constraints information and 

evaluation criteria. 

Rural Settlements 

2.79 In the rural area of Peterborough, residential development is planned to be on a comparatively 

 modest scale, in accordance with the approach of the RSS and national planning policy, but  

 offering scope to maintain the sustainability and vibrancy of villages and a degree of choice in the  

 location of new dwellings, including affordable rural housing.  The strategy is based on the  

 settlement hierarchy which is founded on the evidence of the Peterborough Settlement Hierarchy  

 Study 2007 and 2009 study update. The Core Strategy has full details on numbers and settlements  

 chosen for limited growth. 

2.80 Summary 

A summary of the growth aspirations is shown in the figure below. This is an extract, as the Preferred 

Option, from the Integrated Growth Study. This has been amended slightly by the Core Strategy, 

through its consultation process, but the principles remain the same. 

 

 

73



7
4



3: OPPORTUNTIES AND ISSUES ARISING FROM THE STRATEGIES AND EVIDENCE BASE 

Introduction 

3.1 The following table sets out Summary of Peterborough’s Development Strengths, Weaknesses, 

Opportunities and Threats (SWOT) arising from the previous chapter:  

Summary SWOT 

Strengths 

• Ambition and priority area for increasing 

levels of housing and employment 

growth 

• Choice of land available for a range of 

uses 

• Well-defined sub-regional catchment 

area in areas such as employment and 

retail 

• PCC to drive forward growth 

• Effective business engagement 

• Strong cluster of environmental 

technologies, goods and services 

(EnviroCluster) 

• Strong manufacturing base, particularly 

engineering 

• Important service provision sector, 

particularly finance sector 

• Strategic location in relation to transport 

network, well connected to the national 

road and rail network in all directions 

• Significant food and drink sector 

• Established media, publishing and 

printing sector 

• Recent increase in start up rates for new 

businesses 

• Beacon Council for improving 

accessibility to services (via public 

transport) 

• Good record of major transport scheme 

and project  delivery 

• Green Wheel Infrastructure 

• Low wage economy 

• High average road speeds 

• Geographical location in relation to 

London, eastern ports and wider UK 

• Growing educational sector with the 

potential to develop an HE presence 

• Home of environment capital brand 

 

Opportunities 

• Developing health sector 

• Growing banking, finance & insurance 

sectors  

• Environmental technologies cluster and 

developing climate change agenda 

(opportunity to develop local markets to 

recycle locally recovered materials) 

• Exploiting the city centre in terms of 

under used assets 

• Potential to develop city-centre tourism 

and cultural activities 

• Increasingly important recreational and 

entertainment location 

• Potential to build on average level of 

research and development (R&D) 

knowledge-based industries 

• Sustainable Travel Demonstration Town 

pilot scheme to be ‘mainstreamed’ 

• Ideal location for Distribution industry 

(ideal for logistics in sending recovered 

materials for recycling) 

• Significant Government funding 

available to boost house building 

industry 

• Proximity to Cambridge as a tourism and 

high tech investment centre 

• Political and corporate support for 

growth 

• Low average property prices relative to 

the rest of the Greater South East 

• Opportunities for more efficient land 

use in urban area 

• Improved and more proactive planning 

department. 

75



 40 

 

Weaknesses 

• Poor brand and image 

• High incidence of low growth and low 

skilled sectors 

• Lower than national average educational 

attainment 

• Lack of higher education facility 

• Lack of investment in cultural, sport and 

entertainment amenities 

• Continued flow of inward investment 

from foreign-owned companies 

• Limited high tech sectors 

• Low level of high end jobs 

• Lack of growth in net capital 

expenditure 

• New town infrastructure maintenance 

legacy  

• Potential restrictions to spatial growth 

due to limitation of energy supply. 

• Railway station is a poor entrance to 

Peterborough 

• High number of LSOAs in upper 

deprivation quartiles 

• High number of homes in the private 

sector fail to meet the Decent Homes 

Standard 

• Low development values makes new 

schemes difficult to deliver 

Threats 

• Pace of technological changes 

• Economic restructuring with regards to 

manufacturing and resulting threats of 

globalisation in key supply chains 

• Low aspirations and expectations 

• Declining environment in townships due 

to age 

• Falling top 50 retail town centre ranking 

and competition from surrounding 

settlements 

• Growing traffic congestion 

• Fringe retail areas under pressure due to 

city centre developments 

• Declining net capital expenditure 

• High level of people not in education, 

employment or training (NEETs) 

• Low education attainment 

• Impact of credit crunch and national/ 

global recession on the development 

and house building sectors 

• Low skills, low wages 

• Falling house prices leading to reduced 

gross development values which 

compromise delivery viability and 

anticipated planning gain 

• Main house builders have ceased 

volume residential development in the 

short term  

• Decline in social cohesion 

• Pressure on public services from 

growing but transient migrant 

population 

• Rise in deprivation 

• Higher crime 

 

 Package Approach 

3.2 With the benefit of the evidence and other information set out in the previous chapter, plus the SWOT 

analysis, we now turn to the principal opportunities for, and constraints to, growth. If Peterborough is 

to realise the shared vision, and to achieve its targets for economic/employment and housing growth, 

in a manner that is both sustainable and desirable, we believe that it must set out a coherent strategy 

on a spatial basis and a thematic basis. We created these ‘packages’ as part of the preparation of the 

IDP, but they remain applicable to this LIP.  However, for brevity purposes, only a brief summary of the 

packages are described below (with fuller details in the IDP). 

 

76



 41 

3.3 The Spatial Packages are grouped under the following four areas: 

  City Centre 

  Neighbourhood Areas 

  Urban Extensions 

  Other Growth 

3.4 The Thematic Packages are grouped under the following headings: 

   Transport 

  Education 

  Environment 

  Utilities and Services 

  Employment / Economy 

  Community Infrastructure 

  Housing and Affordable Housing 

 

Spatial Package: City Centre 

3.5 The city centre is a key priority for Peterborough and its partners.  The IGS, Core Strategy and emerging 

City Centre Area Action Plan (CCAAP), seek to create a strong, vibrant centre that will serve 

Peterborough and its sub-region. They will provide the detailed framework for the revitalisation and 

expansion of the city centre by identifying the opportunities for a range of commercial, residential, 

social, transport, environmental and physical benefits.    

 The reasoning behind the focus on the city centre is self-evident. In spite of all the benefits gained from 

the New Town period, one shortcoming was the lack of investment in the city centre. This has meant 

that with the UDC’s closure in the late 1980s the city centre did not have in place a diverse 

infrastructure or level of residential occupancy to make it economically sustainable.  For example, 

where other cities have relatively higher densities of residential occupancy in their centres, 

Peteborough’s is extremely low: Peterborough’s 9 dwellings per hectare as opposed to say, Bath, at 42 

dw/ha. 

 Other examples around the country e.g. Milton Keynes and Kings Lynn have all demonstrated that a 

focus on city centre regeneration has led to wider economic growth by creating a flagship ‘label’ for 

the city. This focus does need to be kept in balance with wider opportunities, but without it, the 

cultural, retail, leisure, residential and other key economic drivers are not in place. 

 3.6 Key proposals include: 

• An expanded centre with a greater number and range of retail uses, businesses and facilities 

• An accessible centre with high quality public transport and a safe, convenient environment for 

pedestrians and cyclists 

• A greater role for the key attractions of the Embankment, the River Nene, the Cathedral 

Precincts, Stanley Recreation Ground and Cathedral Square 

• A major increase in city centre living 

• Focus areas of potential regeneration and enhancement to enable these objectives, most 

critically at South Bank, the City Hospital site, the Railway Station area and the Northminster 

commercial area. 

 

 

77



 42 

3.7 Infrastructure costs will be significant. The provision of public sector funding will be important for 

delivery given the marginal or commercial nature of several of the schemes. 

3.8        The city centre boundary is shown below. 

Figure 8-1   : City Centre Opportunity Areas 

 

 

Spatial Package: Neighbourhood Areas 

3.9 Significant growth during the 1970s-80s at the time of the New Town Development Corporation was 

focused around the creation of new “townships”; namely Bretton, Orton and Werrington.  The 

“township” label fell away and was replaced by ‘district area’, which was more flexible in 

accommodating both existing areas and the ‘new’ township areas of Peterborough.   

3.10 Peterborough has five district areas; the three mentioned above plus the existing area of Millfield and 

the most recent area known as Hampton.   

3.11 Neighbourhood Management Areas were developed as a mechanism to manage and support 

communities in the context of the growth agenda, with the aim of preparing neighbourhood 

management plans for each area in partnership with the local community to identify key interventions 

for future growth.   

78



 43 

3.12 As originally conceived, the districts were fashioned as almost ‘self-contained’ areas were people could 

live, play and shop.  Subsequently, the decline in family size and increase in mobility has gone some 

way to reducing the viability of a number of the older district centres.  However, there are 

opportunities to revitalise the districts and enable the existing areas to feel the benefits that the 

growth agenda will bring.  It has been identified within the IGS and emerging Core Strategy that this 

can be achieved through the intensification and re-development of those existing communities. 

3.13 These areas of Peterborough have therefore been identified as having the capacity for significant 

growth through the exploitation of in-fill sites, increased density, redevelopment of existing-use sites 

(surface car parks) and market and policy-led residential development.  

3.14 Neighbourhood Councils: On 18 May 2009 PCC approved the appointments of Chairmen of 

Neighbourhood Councils. There are 7 Neighbourhood Councils across the city aligned to the new 

Neighbourhood Management model. The first public meetings were in October 2009. 

3.15 Neighbourhood Councils are made up of elected members, with standing invitations being issued to 

Parish Councils, Youth Council, Police Authority, Fire Authority, members of the public and other 

relevant local bodies, such as schools and community and voluntary groups. There will be the 

opportunity for such groups to take part in the meetings and express their views, but they will not have 

voting rights. 

3.16 Neighbourhood Councils are a mechanism to devolve decision making to local areas. The meetings are  

held quarterly in each locality, allowing local communities greater opportunity to become involved in 

planning future provision and services and influence decisions made affecting their area. Community 

Groups and residents are involved in the development of Neighbourhood Plans which will determine 

development need, actions and priorities for the short, medium and long term. Neighbourhood 

Councils provide the strategic lead in the delivery of the Plans, whilst providing local communities the 

opportunity for meaningful consultation before recommendations and decisions are formally taken. 

Community Partnerships are being developed to drive the operational delivery and ensure the link 

between the community and Neighbourhood Councils is robust. (See below diagram). 

 

NEIGHBOURHOOD COUNCILS x 7

COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS 

•Decision making

•Meaningful consultation

•Major issues

•Public scrutiny

•Single point of contact

•Community plans

•Community issues

Neighbourhood

Management

Delivery

•Delivery of agreed actions

•Unblocking blockages

•Escalating issues to NC

•Informal group

•Development Trust

•Charity

•Parish Council

•etc

•Public sector partners

•Councillors

•Voluntary sector 

partners

Made up from…..

•Resident Groups

•Community Associations

•Voluntary Groups

•Faith groups and organisations

•Local businesses

 

79



 44 

The plan below shows Peterborough’s Neighbourhood Council areas 

 

 

Spatial Package: Urban Extensions 

3.17 The spatial pattern of growth needed to achieve the City’s growth targets requires a select number of 

urban extensions.   

3.18 Depending on the location(s) chosen, new settlement extension(s), plus new business extension(s) 

would require significant initial infrastructure development.  A significant proportion would be met by 

the developer directly.  It is, however, envisaged that a degree of wider infrastructure provision will be 

required in order to unlock such key and significant growth and funding for this need to be identified 

and secured.  In addition it is important to ensure other parts of Peterborough benefit from the growth 

and opportunities associated with this.  

3.19 The emerging Core Strategy identifies major urban extensions at Stanground South, Paston 

Reserve/Norwood and Great Haddon. These urban extensions could offer much in terms of delivering 

sustainable growth at scale.  Consolidated, rather than dispersed, urban extension(s) could become 

demonstration sustainability projects in their own right: a single large extension could be self-

sustaining, achieve high levels of environmental sustainability (quasi-eco town) and even offer 

enhanced facilities for neighbouring communities.  It could also offer the opportunity for enhanced 

public transport systems and encourage the expansion of the Green Wheel network. 

3.20 Urban extensions also offer the potential for greater speed of delivery with land coming forward more 

readily and fewer inherent constraints and issues. 

 

 

80



 45 

Spatial Package: Other Growth (city infill and other settlements) 

3.21 In addition to focussed growth in the city centre, urban extensions and via the ‘neighbourhood’ 

initiatives, other growth will come forward in the city, as well as growth in outlying settlements and 

rural areas. These, either singularly or cumulatively, will have significant infrastructure implications.  

3.22 By their very nature, it is hard to be specific about what those demands will be or quantify precise 

infrastructure needs or costs. As such, only estimates of costs and needs can be made, and often can 

not be spatially specific in where they will be needed. Through the remaining part of this chapter and 

elsewhere in this LIP, we have attempted to make reference to this ‘other growth’ and associated 

infrastructure need, but express caution at in its use. It is likely to be an underestimate of need, rather 

than over estimate, reflecting the difficulties in predicting the ‘unknown’.  

 

Thematic Package: Transport 

Introduction 

3.23 The development of the Transport element of the LIP has been influenced by the emerging  

       national policy agenda for transport and Peterborough’s SCS. Towards a Sustainable Transport  

       System (TaSTS), Dft 2008, sets out the Government’s response to the recommendations of Stern  

       on the economics of climate change, and Eddington on transport’s contribution to economic  

       growth and productivity.  TaSTS set out the Government’s proposed approach to strategic  

       transport planning to 2014 and beyond, and identified five broad goals for transport:  

§ Tackle climate change; 

§ Support economic growth; 

§ Promote equality of opportunity;  

§ Contribute to better safety, security and health; 

§ Improve quality of life and promote a healthy natural environment.   

3.24 Proposals for putting this approach into practice were set out in the subsequent document Delivering a 

Sustainable Transport System (DaSTS), DfT Nov 2008.  DaSTS identified the challenges to delivery of 

these five goals on the national, international and cities and regional networks.  It also identified cross 

network challenges.  The underlying principle of DaSTS is to understand the role of transport in 

supporting strong economic growth in a low carbon world. 

3.25 Final Guidance (July 2009) for local authorities on preparing their third Local Transport Plan (LTP3) 

indicates that the DaSTS goals will replace the shared priorities for transport set out in LTP2 guidance.  

The City Council is currently working towards LTP3 and the challenges, vision and transport options 

could change as we develop that LTP3. Full details will be published in April 2011, though emerging 

LTP3 proposals are now being consulted upon and are available separately. 

Peterborough’s Transport Challenges 

3.26 The transport issues facing Peterborough, both now and in the future as a result of the growth agenda,  

      have been assessed and mapped against the DaSTS goals.  This has allowed the transport challenges  

      against each issue to be identified. 

 

 

 

81



 46 

Transport Vision (Note: this work is still under consideration by the City Council) 

3.27 Development of the Transport Options is allowing a Transport Vision for Peterborough to be 

developed: a Vision that would address the many challenges facing Peterborough whilst meeting the 

goals of Developing a Sustainable Transport System (DaSTS).  The vision under consideration is set out 

under the following headings, with full details to be announced shortly: 

• Smart Choices: “Smart Choices” is a way of giving the necessary travel information about alternative 

ways of making a journey, particularly by an alternative mode.   

• Walking / Cycling: Peterborough will be a “connected city”, with the walking and cycling network 

enhanced to remove or at least minimise barriers to travel. 

• Public Transport: Frequent buses, high quality bus station, park and ride and potentially a wider range 

of solutions such as tram, cable car, parry people movers, transport modules, driverless taxis and Light 

Rapid Transit. 

• Highway: A wide variety of improvements, from maintenance to speed control to information 

• Rail: Various improvements to the train station, possible new stations and a possible rail freight are 

under consideration 

• Freight: plans being drawn up with the aim of directing the flow of extraneous HGV traffic from 

Peterborough’s urban roads onto the parkway network 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82



 47 

Thematic Package: Education 

Introduction 

3.28 There are three aspects: provision for Children, for Young People 

and for Adults. 

3.29 Provision for Children and Young People includes: full day care, pre-school education and Children’s  

Centres for under 5s; primary, secondary and special schools for 5 – 16 years olds; school sixth forms, 

sixth form and skill centres for 16 – 19 year olds; play facilities, extended schools, before and after 

school and holiday clubs; social care and additional facilities for those children who need extra support; 

youth provision for out of school activities for 13 – 19 year olds; Connexions for careers advice and 

more targeted support. 

 

3.30 The increasing population in Peterborough is leading to a shortage of school places at both primary and 

secondary level.  Investment in school buildings has lead to 130 additional reception places being 

delivered by September 2011, and at least a further 60 by September 2012.  Expansion is also planned 

for the secondary sector, with on former school building being re-used and other schools increasing 

their capacity. 

 

3.31 Ormiston Bushfield Academy has managed to retain planned investment under Building Schools for the 

Future.  Plans for the Orton Longueville and Stanground are on hold, following the suspension of the 

BSF programme.  Arthur Mellows has changed its status to become an Academy. 

 

Multiversity Initiative : Our vision …  your opportunity 

3.32 Peterborough’s education, public and private sector leaders are united behind a credible plan to  

achieve a significant expansion in further and higher education provision over coming years. 

3.33 Rather than relying on a ‘single entity’ university approach to achieve this goal as exists at present, 

Peterborough will develop a ‘multiversity’ model.  This means that it will attract the best resources 

from a range of institutions to provide business-relevant knowledge and skills to support the economic 

growth of local companies. 

3.34 Peterborough represents significant potential growth in students numbers for higher education 

institutions in a declining home market experienced in other parts of the country.  Over the next 

decade, it is aimed to attract over 10,000 higher education students to Peterborough – there are 

currently fewer than a thousand students.  The factors that underpin and support this target are: 

 

1)  no decline in the number of 18-year-old school leavers over the next decade 

2)  creation of 25,000 new homes 

3)  creation of 20,000 new job. 

3.35 Businesses have an opportunity to help shape the design of higher education courses so that they 

reflect their own commercial requirements.  This means that students will qualify with skills and 

knowledge that are immediately usable, giving employers a valuable commercial advantage in 

increased productivity and profitability. 

 

 

 

     

83



 48 

3.36 Students will enjoy the vibrant lifestyle and leisure benefits available in the Peterborough area, with 

study centres located close to the heart of the city’s attractions. 

3.37 Higher education will help residents achieve their full potential, giving them the skills and knowledge to  

secure rewarding careers and their lifestyle aspirations. 

3.38 While take-up of formal higher education in Peterborough is lower than average, the area is home to 

world-class expertise in diverse business sectors, including environmental, engineering and financial 

services.  The EnviroCluster initiative, established in 2002, exploits the expertise of the UK’s largest 

cluster of companies offering environment-related goods and services.  Peterborough is a city 

committed to stimulating the creation and growth of new businesses supplying environmental 

products and services. 

3.39 Other major employers play significant roles in the operations of multi-national businesses in areas 

such as engineering, financial services, agriculture and good manufacturing and media services. These 

and many other local businesses place a high premium on the value of up-skilling their people. 

In many cases, employers seek further education training in association with Peterborough Regional 

College and City College Peterborough, (formerly Peterborough College of Adult Education). 

3.40 Recent research among 120 companies revealed strong support for a ‘Skills Pledge’ while 35% of 

respondents expressed interest in setting the skills agenda for Peterborough.  This emphasis on skills 

development represents a rich market for higher education and other training institutions. 

 Peterborough’s ‘multiversity’ approach represents ‘bankable’ benefits for higher education and other 

training institutions and for the 70,000 plus businesses and one million people living in the sub-region. 

3.41 Institutions can quickly and cost-effectively develop new opportunities targeting a virtually untapped 

market of more than one million people living in a higher education ‘cold zone’ within a 40 minute 

drive time radius of Peterborough.  Potential partner HEIs will have limited and controlled financial 

exposure with opportunities to negotiate framework agreements and memoranda of understanding to 

ensure clarity of purpose.  Private sector partners and developers can agree procurement and 

development partner models that meet their needs such as special purpose or asset backed vehicles.   

 

3.42 Growth in higher education provision in Peterborough will inevitably attract further inward investment 

and expansion opportunities, leading to additional returns on investment. Potential higher education 

partners offer secure risk options and potential for flexibility in design and uses of assets. The design 

and operation of facilities also offers early entry points for ‘seed-corn’ funding contributions, providing 

the basis for longer term, profitable public-private partnerships. 

3.43 The business community is encourage to help design and deliver Peterborough’s ‘multiversity’ 

proposals because the education and training programmes will focus on delivering graduates with 

valuable, work ready skill.  The programmes will offer knowledge transfer, research, bespoke tuition 

and other business support opportunities that will contribute to business success. 

3.44 This commercial focus will be emphasised further through the encouragement of innovative new 

business ventures, with space made available to nurture start-up and grow-on enterprises.  We believe 

that our visionary multiversity approach needs first class facilities from which these new educational 

and training opportunities can be delivered. 

3.45 Integral to this vision will be a 5,000 sq m state of the art facility occupying a prime location on the 

South Bank of the River Nene in Peterborough city centre.  This iconic facility will offer a range of 

complementary services, including high quality professional training, conference, events and business 

meeting accommodation, supported by outstanding social and leisure opportunities. 

 

84



 49 

3.46 The multiversity will build upon existing provision.  A joint venture between Anglia Ruskin University 

and Peterborough Regional College – with the support of Peterborough City Council – secured £9 

million funding for the construction of a 3,000 sq m University Centre Peterborough (UCP), which 

opened in October 2009.  UCP offers a range of full and part-time higher education programmes 

designed to equip student with work ready skills to support local businesses.  This investment also 

supports the growth in numbers of local people following degree level studies and is increasing the 

number of students progressing from further education to higher education. 

3.47 In addition, Anglia Ruskin University plans to open a refurbished facility in the south of Peterborough  

to deliver a range of health-related professional tuition courses that are currently provided at the 

Peterborough District Hospital.  These programmes include midwifery, radiography, physiotherapy and 

veterinary science. 

 

 Universities@Peterborough: a multiversity strategy to the accelerated development of higher 

education  

 

3.48 Peterborough’s vision is to establish and develop higher education provision that encompasses  

teaching, research and business support activities across a broad range of academic disciplines that 

fully meets the needs of both its residents and businesses, both within the city but also, over time, 

within its hinterland which is the largest and deepest HE ‘cold zone’ for the take up of HE in the 

country. Furthermore, Peterborough will become the recognised destination of choice for HE students 

not only residing in the sub region but also nationally and internationally with the ultimate objective of 

significantly contributing to general wealth and social well being of the area, in addition to providing 

greater opportunity for all. 

 

3.49 To achieve this, a ‘multiversity’ partner strategy has been adopted (a single provider approach not  

being viable in the current public funding climate) – initially six universities have agreed to work within 

a collaborative and complimentary framework to deliver the HE provision required.  The multiversity 

approach aims to combine the strengths and specialism’s of partner providers which will result in them 

deliver more than the sum of their individual parts.    

 

Aims and objectives 

3.50 The multiversity proposal for Peterborough and surrounding region seeks to address the issues and  

meet the objectives listed below:- 

• Reduce the number of young people leaving the region to go university (Peterborough and 

surrounding region is a net exporter of students – people leaving to go off to university rarely 

return resulting in the lowering of the number of higher skilled young people for employment 

in local businesses) 

• Accelerate the growth in student numbers studying in the City 

• Provide more choice of provision to learners  

• Increase the range / level of HE provision 

• Provide a choice of HE provider 

• Create world class ‘centres of excellence’ for teaching, research and development 

• Enhance and widen funding opportunities  

• Meet the needs of local learners with a variety of learning modes 

• Be adaptive and respond to changes in market demand (new providers can be added as 

required) 

• Be flexible with providers varying provision as appropriate 

• Combine resources and lower costs 

• Provide support, advice and knowledge exchange opportunities to local businesses 

85



 50 

 

3.51 Funding  

• Revenue:  The project is ‘pump primed’ by the Peterborough City Council. This funding covers 

the costs of a dedicated Project Manager, certain advertising and promotional events and 

materials.   

 

Going forward, the on going day-to-day costs of HE delivery will be met by each individual 

institution, as is normal, with assistance from Peterborough City Council as required.  

 

Upon creation of the partnership into a single financial entity, income, expenditure and the 

cost of future development will be met within this mechanism.    

 

• Capital:  Recognising the limitations of attracting public funding for this initiative, 

Peterborough City Council is embracing the challenge and opportunity to build the 

foundations of its university on well proven commercial models. 

 

3.52 A developer will be selected and appointed that will create a university campus similar to that of  

‘Regis’ style office accommodation i.e. reception, library, catering, student services will provided 

centrally and form part of the ‘service’ charge whilst rooms and other areas are rented, leased or hired 

as required by users. This model offers HEI partners a low cost entry option and forward costs in step 

with use / income.  

Thematic Package: Environment and Green Infrastructure 

 

Environment Capital 

3.53 Peterborough continues to build on the Environmental City status awarded in 1991 and has committed 

itself to creating the UK’s Environment Capital by adopting this as one of the key priorities in its SCS 

2008 - 2011. 

3.54 This priority is also referred to in the LDF and plays a key role in ensuring that environmental 

sustainability is central to the city’s growth plans.   

3.55 Peterborough’s cluster of low carbon and environment goods and services is one of the largest in the 

country. It is embraces a wide range of businesses from consultancies (such as Royal Haskoning, 

Roulton and LDA) and government agencies (Natural England, JNCC) through to major environmental 

engineering giants such as Dresser Rand. UKCEED, the UK’s Centre for Environmental and Economic 

Development is based at the city’s Eco-Innovation Centre, which has already reached capacity (with 35 

businesses) and is looking to grow further in 2011. 

3.56 Peterborough is also leading the way in innovative new ways of ensuring sustainability. Its Integrated 

Growth Study was a seminal assessment of how a city can grow in a sustainable way, and this has been 

the foundation of the City Visualisation system (‘the Peterborough model’): a pioneering web-based 

platform created by a partnership of IBM, Royal Haskoning, Opportunity Peterborough, Peterborough 

City Council and Green Ventures. This has received international coverage and several major cities are 

looking to exploit its structure and tools. 

3.57 The city has recently launched its ‘Home of Environment Capital’ campaign, which is receiving coverage  

among major national media outlets. It is vital that this claim is supported by substance, and this LIP 

seeks to underpin the aspiration through the nature and delivery of its growth agenda. 

 

86



 51 

3.58 Both economically and in the provision of new housing, Peterborough can lead the way in 

environmental performance, and through the City Visualisation model, measure and demonstrate that 

performance. Economically, the city will focus on developing its environmental sector: the recently 

commissioned LCEGS (Low Carbon and Environmental Goods and Services) study identifies those parts 

of the sector ‘ripe’ for growth. These include advanced manufacturing, the development of bio-

renewable technologies, and potentially electric car systems, development, manufacturing and 

maintenance. Peterborough is also leading the way in water management research and technology, 

through its cluster, government agencies and Anglian Water. All of these initiatives will not only 

provide jobs growth and re-profile the city buy offer opportunities for joint working with major Higher 

Education institutions, thus underpinning the city’s skills agenda. 

 

                   
Peterborough’s Eco-Innovation Centre – launched 2008 

 

3.59 Environment City status (leading to ‘Home of Environment Capital’) in and of itself is as much a ‘state 

of mind’ as to how a city approaches sustainability issues. For example, having adopted the initiative, 

Peterborough also became one of three Sustainable Travel Demonstration towns, working with all 

local developers and employers to seek to reduce their car-borne trips to work along with other 

initiatives. 

  

3.60 Specific sectors were not targeted under this initiative: there is a balance to be struck between 

environmental aspirations and economic realities. Logistics and distribution is a key sector for 

employment in the city, and this should not be undermined: rather, the companies involved in that 

have been supported (through initiatives such as Travel Choice) to adjust their working patterns. 

  

3.61 The environment sector itself is a particular strength for Peterborough – providing a high profile 

cluster to support inward investment campaigns and also providing opportunities to develop the 

higher skilled economy that Peterborough is seeking to rebalance (ref. Peterborough Integrated 

Growth Study – Economic Scenario testing). 

87



 52 

Green Infrastructure 

3.62 Access to quality open space and biodiversity is a key factor in prompting community well being, health 

and maintaining a high quality of life.  The Peterborough IGS has identified that in order to ensure that 

existing and new communities can maintain appropriate access to green infrastructure, an additional 

182ha of open space and 47ha of local natural reserves are required as a minimum for the amount of 

development proposed.   

3.63 In addition to this, is the protection and enhancement of the Green Grid Network for both recreational 

and leisure uses as well as for its nature valve.  For all of these types of spaces the issue of ownership is 

important to ensure and maintain public access. 

3.64 A Green Grid Strategy was produced in 2007.  The strategy draws up a strategic framework and action 

plan for green space provision throughout the Greater Peterborough area, to ensure that 

Peterborough’s growth goes hand in hand with the protection and provision of quality green 

infrastructure.  The Strategy seeks to provide a comprehensive vision to improve the quality, quantity 

and connectivity of the area’s green spaces and to identify proposals for capital projects that will be 

realised in the short medium and longer term.   

 

Public Realm 

3.65 The overarching vision for public realm improvements is to create a vibrant and sustainable city centre 

scene. Changing the pattern of movement through it; capitalising on great assets such as the river and 

historic buildings including the Cathedral; and facilitating a huge expansion in the number of visitors 

and residents in the city centre making it much more of a 24 hr location for activity. 

3.66 Realising the vision is dependant upon following a programme of phased delivery of public realm 

improvements. 

3.67 The implementation of Phase 1 of the public realm enhancements has already proved hugely 

successful. With assistance from a wide range of bodies, including HCA (EP as was), CLG and EEDA, the 

city council and OP instigated a major £12m transformation programme, which included the removal 

of the unsightly and obstructive ‘Corn Exchange Building’, clearance of the main square of clutter and 

the installation of fountains, floodlighting, bespoke furniture and high-quality shared surface stone 

pavements.  

3.68 The work has been included by national organisation, English Heritage, in a forthcoming publication on 

exemplary work in conservation areas, and has been held up by regional bodies as an example of best 

practice. It is underpinning major marketing campaigns for the city and is sparking genuine interest 

among investors. 

 

88



 53 

 
The new Cathedral Square, illuminated at night 

Thematic Package: Utilities and Services  

 Introduction 

3.69 In order to achieve “a bigger and better Peterborough”, there will be an increasing demand placed on 

the utilities within Peterborough particularly energy use and supply, water infrastructure, waste 

management and digital connectivity.  This package identifies the additional infrastructure 

requirements, highlighting those that will require public sector intervention.  

3.70 Whilst indicative, the most important investments within this package are (with full details in the IGS): 

• Water - Capacity increases for Flag Fen waste treatment works to process the city’s waste 

water and sewerage output within environmental constraints. Without this occurring 

Peterborough cannot meet or approach its growth targets for dwellings numbers and new 

employment locations. This element of infrastructure is managed by an external partner, 

Anglian Water. 

• Energy - Provision of a city ESCO to deliver not only the energy requirements needed for the 

planned growth within the city but to do so in a way that reduces CO2 emissions linked to 

Peterborough and also reduces the costs associated with the massive investment in electricity 

network that is currently required for growth to be achieved. This infrastructure requires 

public intervention. 

• Waste - Provision of an Energy from Waste (EfW) facility, an Anaerobic Digestion facility and 

improved recycling facilities in Peterborough. Collectively these will encourage more dry 

recycling, divert waste from landfill, turn food waste into fertiliser and create renewable 

energy that could help to heat or power nearby areas of the City. 

• Digital Connectivity – Create a digital infrastructure for the unitary authority, to ensure that 

Peterborough remains a competitive location for businesses in addition to enabling the 

improved delivery of public services and an enhanced standard of living for local residents.   

  

Thematic Package: Employment 

89



 54 

3.71 Peterborough needs strong economic development delivery. There is broad agreement that the city 

has significant economic potential.  Opportunity Peterborough (OP) has now been refocused to deliver 

key economic development services.  OP’s refreshed business plan sets out how the company needs to 

focus its activities to provide maximum support during the remainder of the 2010/11 financial year.   

3.72 There are a clear number of priorities that OP needs to take forward successfully over the remainder 

of 2010/11.  This section seeks to identify key priorities that will be taken forward: 

 

a) Delivering a strong, visible, memorable marketing programme for the city  

 

• Encourage partner’s to own and promote the City’s brand via e.g. Peterborough Bondholder  

       scheme, weblinks, corporate literature and in the media   

• Deliver visible marketing campaigns  to attract prospective investors  

• Support the delivery of the city’s environmental ambitions across the media     

• Work with local businesses to reinforce their ‘successes’ within the media 

• Use multimedia to promote Peterborough effectively (including delivery of Biz Map)  

b) Supporting local business ambitions 

• Implement a ‘business engagement’ framework that will guide the range of agencies that  

               interact with business 

• Support key sectors – OP will deliver/facilitate and support measures via the Cambridgeshire  

  Enterprise Service legacy grant 

• Support businesses to resolve ‘growth blockages’ – such as skills and planning    

• Proactively attract new investment and business – targeting growth sectors and companies  

• Secure investment to improve the attractiveness of the City 

 

c) Creating the conditions to increase skills level across our communities 

• OP will gain a firm understanding of the skills agenda; both current and future needs 

• Champion ‘skills’ with local business to increase partners knowledge of future needs 

• Work with providers to encourage targeted delivery that meets business demand 

• Support partners in delivering improved access to higher/further education 

 

d) Increase our knowledge of the local economy and utilise intelligence effectively 

• Produce a Local Economic Assessment for the City  

• Use economic data to drive decision making  

• Work with local businesses to ensure OP understands wider economic activity 

3.73 Relative to both the national and regional picture, Peterborough is comparatively less reliant on its   

       public sector employment (Source: Annual Business Inquiry, Workplace Analysis, Employees, SIC  

       2003,2008). Clearly this will be impacted by public sector cuts at local authority level. In Peterborough,  

       there are likely to be in the region of 280 redundancies (although regrettable in every sense, this  

       represents only a little over 1% of the public sector employment numbers). Implications of the   

       Coalition Government’s proposed restructuring of the health service are still unknown at this stage:  

       although it is intended to lead to greater performance quality, choice and efficiency, it is unclear how  

       that will be delivered in practical terms and therefore its impact on staff numbers. 

 

 

 

 

3.74 Attracting Government departments to the city cannot be seen as a panacea to this employment 

90



 55 

issue. It offers opportunities, however, not only in terms of direct employment (on average, only 50% 

of existing staff move with a department when it relocates, providing 50% of staffing numbers for local 

recruitment initiatives) but also in ‘service’ industries to support the new arrival (through education 

for the children of incoming employees, to retail and food sales for overall staff contingent). 
  
  

Thematic Package: Community Infrastructure 

 

Health and Well Being  

3.75 The following key drivers are seen as change agents for the future delivery of health and well being 

services for the Peterborough population over the next 10 years: 

• Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

• Living Longer: Living Well – NHS Peterborough Five Year Strategic Plan  

• Strategic Service Development Plan – SSDP 

• Older Persons Accommodation Strategy 

• Greater Peterborough Health Investment Plan 

• Carbon Management Strategy 

• Commissioners Investment Asset Management Strategy 

• Putting People First – national concordat for adult social care 

               Adult Social Care: 

3.76  The City Council and PCT are working to review and replace over time Council owned care homes  

              to meet the changing needs of local people. The assets released as a result of this project will be either  

 sold or in some cases the sites will be retained with a view to existing building being replaced with new  

 build re-provision through working and investment partnerships.  

             Culture, Sport and Recreation 

3.77 A growing and vibrant area depends in part on all residents having access and opportunity to  

      participate in a range of cultural sporting and recreational facilities and activities. Culture and  

      sport is recognised as having broad ranging benefits of enabling communities and individuals to  

      come together in a positive and non threatening environment.  Participation can help them grow  

      and achieve physically, mentally, socially and academically.  It is Peterborough’s aspiration to  

      ensure true access for all in society to a broad range of facilities and activities.  We will work to  

      update our existing programmes and infrastructure as well as develop in new and innovative  

      directions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

             Thematic Package: Housing and Affordable Housing 

91



 56 

             Affordable Housing  

3.78     Affordable housing has played a significant part in the growth of new housing in Peterborough.  

            The number of market homes being built in Peterborough has continued to fall since the housing   

             market peaked in 2007. Despite this trend, the overall number of homes built across the authority   

             continued to rise, mainly due to an increase in the number of affordable homes being built. The  

             table below shows the increasing contribution that affordable housing has made to annual new        

             build housing figures in recent years. 

 

 

Year Total number of 

completions 

Number of affordable 

completions 

Affordable, as percentage of 

total completions 

2005/6 862 91 11% 

2006/7 1265 231 18% 

2007/8 999 234 23% 

2008/9 1049 446 43% 

2009/10 1125 708 63% 

 

3.79     The figures for last financial year clearly demonstrate that affordable dwelling completions dominated 

the housing market locally, accounting for over 60% of the total completions. This surge in RSL 

completions, in a recession year, led to Peterborough bucking the national and regional trend for 

housing completions, which showed an approx 40% fall on the 2001-2009 average.  

  Investments between 2005 and 2010 

Key investments in Peterborough over the past 5 years are shown in the table below (including some 

units which are funded but not yet delivered). 

 

Investment in the delivery of new homes 

Investor Capital Funding 

Outputs delivered (to be 

delivered)  

HCA £65,374,850 1590 

Joint HCA and PCC 

 

HCA - £15,174,442 

PCC – £2,500,499 

 

390 

PCC only £4,178,000 111 

S106 (developer 

contribution) and nil grant 
£0 99 

Kickstart and Homebuy 

Direct 
£8,942,258 433 

Total £96,170,049 2623 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.80     Meeting Housing Need 

92



 57 

              Peterborough City Council’s proposals for meeting housing needs are set out in the Core Strategy  

              Proposed Submission. This sets a target for 30% affordable dwellings and 20% of dwellings to Lifetime  

              Homes standards on housing sites delivering 15 or more units, plus an additional requirement to  

 deliver 2% of units as wheelchair adapted homes on sites delivering 50 or more dwellings. These  

 requirements take into account current and future need as identified through the SHMA and also  

 economic viability as calculated by the Affordable Housing Viability Study 2009. The study does  

 acknowledge the impact on costs arising from the requirements for Lifetime Homes standards and  

 provisions for wheelchair adapted properties and suggests that ‘it is an area that needs to be kept  

 under review in terms of practicalities, costs and impacts  - as part of the overall expectations from  

 schemes.’ The affordable housing target provides a balance between the requirements of need and  

 viability that will ensure the delivery of affordable housing to meet the need of the current and future  

 residents of Peterborough. 

 

3.81     The tenure split for affordable housing provision recommended by the Core Strategy is 70% social  

             rented and 30% intermediate housing. The evidence to support and justify the required tenure  

             split originates from the SHMA completed in March 2008.This tenure spit was reaffirmed as  

             appropriate by the Affordable Housing Viability Assessment 2009 and more recently by the SHMA  

             update report completed in July 2010. However, the Coalition Government’s plans for radical reform to  

             the social housing system including planned levels of investment in affordable housing, future tenure   

             types and rent levels  for social housing, will present significant challenges for the council and its    

             Registered Provider partners to delivering this tenure split. The 'Local decisions: a fairer future for  

             social housing' consultation paper proposes that all local authorities will be required to publish a  

             Strategic Tenancy Policy. The function of this policy will be to set out the broad objectives to be taken  

             into consideration by social landlords regarding their individual policies on the grant and reissue of  

             tenancies. The council recognises that it is vital that we engage with all our Registered Provider  

             partners to ensure a mutual understanding of strategic priorities relating to the future of affordable  

             housing in Peterborough in response to these proposed reforms. Discussions are underway with our  

             partners in response to the proposals and we will use the Affordable Housing Provider's Forum as a  

             means of pursing this dialogue as planned legislation is introduced 

 

3.82 Affordable Housing Programme of Development 

Peterborough’s Affordable Housing Programme aims to ensure the sustainable delivery of affordable 

and specialist housing, which will make significant in-roads to meeting the needs of those in unsuitable 

accommodation and those looking to set up their own home who can’t afford to meet their housing 

needs on the open market.  

 

3.83 The affordable housing programme for Peterborough anticipates delivery of 330 units of affordable 

housing during 2010/11 with a planned expenditure of £16,422,333 on the schemes that will complete 

during the year. In addition to this, it is expected that private developers will provide an additional 90 

Homebuy Direct homes during the year as a result of allocations from the Kickstart programme. While 

this still remains a substantial affordable housing programme in the current economic climate, it 

represents a significant reduction in the number of RSL dwelling completions when compared to the 

previous financial year. This reduction in affordable homes completions is expected to impact on the 

total number of completions in the city in 2010/11.  

 

3.84 To ensure that growth in Peterborough continues to focus on creating mixed and sustainable  

communities, affordable housing need to maintain a strong role in the future housing market and 

securing funding for new schemes will be fundamental to this objective. 

 

 

3.85 Peterborough City Council will actively explore with its Registered Provider partners, the potential for  

93



 58 

 using publicly owned land as a catalyst for the delivery of new homes, within a robust financial  

 context. A dialogue has already been initiated by the council, to set up a collaboration agreement with  

 interested Registered Provider partners with the aim of bringing forward new housing projects in the  

 city that would provide a range of property types and tenures including affordable homes. 

 

3.86 The Council also has an affordable housing capital fund which is funded from resources received on an 

annual basis as a result of the agreement for a Large Scale Voluntary Transfer of council housing stock 

to Cross Keys Homes (CKH) in October 2004. The terms of that transfer agreement provide that during 

the first ten years following the stock transfer the Council will receive part of the sale proceeds from 

Preserved Right to Buy transactions.  The Council’s Capital Strategy states that whilst these receipts 

form part of its overall corporate resources, the Council is committed to using it to pump-prime 

opportunities for future affordable housing schemes, in partnership with Registered Social Landlords. 

 

3.87 Future Affordable Housing Programme 

The Peterborough Strategic Housing Market Assessment update 2010 identified a need for 1008 new 

affordable homes per year. In order to meet the breadth of need identified in the SHMA, the future 

affordable housing programme needs to encompass a range of tenures, units sizes and unit types 

across a variety of sites.  Four themed  priorities have been identified to ensure the delivery of 

Peterborough’s affordable housing preferred options.  

 

3.88 These priorities aim to include the full scope of affordable housing schemes that the council is working 

with its Registered Provider partners to provide both now and in future, to meet the need and growing 

demand for affordable housing in the city as part of Peterborough’s sustainable growth agenda.  

 

3.89 The delivery of BME housing schemes has not been identified as a separate theme for our affordable 

housing preferred options. Our existing approach of working with our RP partners is to ensure the 

provision of a wide range of affordable property types and sizes and the delivery of schemes in a 

variety of locations across Peterborough’s neighbourhoods.  This includes areas with a strong localised 

ethnic identity. 

 

3.90  This approach to delivery along with the Peterborough’s choice based lettings (CBL) housing 

allocations policy (which operates a single housing register administering all RP lettings within the 

Peterborough area) means that housing applicants can choose to bid for property based  on its size, 

type and location and will be considered for that property based on their identified level of need. In 

this way, the range of needs and cultural preferences within the community can be addressed within 

the priority themes identified below without designated culturally specific schemes that may or may 

not be selected by housing applicants through the CBL process.  

 

3.91 Approximately a third of applicants on the Peterborough Homes housing register are from applicants 

from BME groups. As of January 2011, around 32.4% of the 7,116 live applications were from BME 

households. The breakdown of applicants by ethnicity is shown in the table below. The BME group 

with the highest representation is ‘other white background’; a category which will include many of the 

migrant households that have moved to Peterborough since the accession of the A8 countries to the 

European Union in 2004. 

 

 

 

 

94



 59 

Ethnicity        
Number 

of apps 

% of 

total 
Ethnicity 

Number 

of apps 

% of total 

African 164 2.3% 
Other Asian 

background 
259 3.6% 

Bangladeshi 7 0.1% 
Other Black 

background 
58 

0.8% 

British 4796 67.3% 
Other White 

background 
892 

12.5% 

Caribbean 38 0.5% Other Mixed 49 0.7% 

Chinese 4 0.1% Pakistani 183 2.6% 

Indian 35 0.5% Portuguese 209 2.9% 

Irish 48 0.7% Traveller 3 0.04% 

Italian 28 0.4% White and Asian 9 0.1% 

Kashmiri 2 0.02% 
White and Black 

African 
8 

0.1% 

Not Stated 15 0.2% White and Caribbean 17 0.2% 

Other 292 4.1% Total BME (exc 

British + ‘not stated’) 
2,310 32.4% 

  

   

3.92 The following table shows the breakdown of lettings through Peterborough’s CBL scheme by ethnicity 

for the period 1 April to 31 December 2010. In the quarter Oct- Dec 2010 the percentage of total 

lettings to BME households very closely reflects the current level of BME applicants on the housing 

register.  

 

                Lettings by Ethnicity 

Ethnicity No. % No. % No. % 

 Apr-Jun 10 Jul-Sep 10 Oct-Dec 10 

African 6 2.14% 9 2.67% 11 3.75% 

Bangladeshi 0 0% 1 0.30% 0 0% 

British 207 73.93% 256 75.96% 197 67.26% 

Caribbean 0 0% 0 0% 1 0.34% 

Chinese 0 0% 1 0.30% 0 0% 

Indian 1 0.36% 1 0.30% 1 0.34% 

Irish 3 1.07% 0 0% 1 0.34% 

Italian 0 0% 1 0.30% 3 1.02% 

Kashmiri 1 0.36% 1 0.30% 0 0% 

Not stated 1 0.36% 2 0.59% 2 0.68% 

Other Asian 8 2.85% 11 3.26% 10 3.41% 

Other Black 3 1.07% 0 0% 2 0.68% 

Other 14 5.00% 11 3.26% 12 4.10% 

95



 60 

Other Mixed 1 0.36% 1 0.30% 1 0.34% 

Other White 18 6.43% 29 8.60% 34 11.60% 

Pakistani 6 2.14% 4 1.19% 6 2.05% 

Portuguese 10 3.57% 8 2.37% 11 3.75% 

White Asian 0 0% 1 0.30% 0 0% 

White and Black Caribbean 1 0.36% 0 0% 1 0.34% 

  100.00%  100.00%  100.00% 

 

.  

3.93      Delivery of Affordable Housing on Urban Extensions 

As already identified, the development of urban extensions has a major role to play in delivering 

Peterborough’s aspirations for growth. Urban extensions have the capacity to deliver not only housing, 

but complete sustainable, inclusive, mixed use communities that provide infrastructure, transport, 

education and community facilities. 

 

3.94 The capacity for substantial provision of affordable homes on urban extensions makes them key to the 

delivery of Peterborough’s future affordable housing programme.  The urban extensions at Hampton, 

Paston Reserve and Stanground South are already delivering units and contributing to the growth of 

Peterborough. Hampton and Paston Reserve have already provided 681 additional affordable homes 

during the 3 year period up to 31
st

 March 2010.  This equates to 48% of the overall provision of 

affordable housing during this period. Stanground South has started to deliver its first affordable 

housing during this financial year with an anticipated total of 40 affordable homes being delivered on 

this site by the end of 2010/11. 

 

3.95 Detailed below are all the identified urban extension sites which between them could deliver 

approximately 17,800 dwellings of which around 5,340 could be affordable homes.   

 

Urban Extension Total number of units Indicative number of 

affordable units 

Affordable units 

delivered 07/08 -09/10 

Hampton 7500 2250 641 

Paston Reserve 1200 350 40 

Stanground South 1500 440  

Great Haddon 5300 1600  

Norwood 2300 700  

 

 

3.96 The scale of development on urban extensions provides the opportunity to deliver a range of unit 

types that can cater for different types of identified need, such as extra care housing provision, larger 

family homes or bungalows. 

 

3.97 Government funding through the Kickstart Delivery Programme was awarded for two tranches of the 

Hampton urban extension.  This will enable the delivery of a further 221 homes (including 3 affordable 

and 92 Homebuy Direct units) up to March 2012. 

 

3.98 Peterborough City Council’s commitment to the delivery of affordable homes on urban extension sites  

is has been demonstrated by the award of capital funding to a partner Registered Provider to enable 

the delivery of 80 affordable homes on the Stanground South urban extension in the next three years. 

 

 

96



 61 

3.99 Delivery of Affordable Housing on other Urban ‘ Infill’ Sites 

The delivery of infill development in Peterborough’s urban, neighbourhood and city centre areas plays 

an important part in the supply of additional new-build affordable homes in Peterborough.  Planning 

policy requires 30% provision of affordable homes on sites of 15 or more units.  Infill development 

sites enable a range of affordable units types to be provided in a range of locations throughout 

Peterborough delivering rural, city centre, high density, low density or suburban affordable homes. 

Infill development sites tend to be accessible, close to amenities, served by public facilities and 

generally appropriate infrastructure already exists. These benefits mean that infill sites can enable the 

development of specialist need affordable homes within existing communities. 

 

3.100  In Peterborough, during recent years, infill development has transformed the appearance of sites 

across the city such as a former sewerage works, derelict buildings, under utilised land, vacant 

factories/warehouses and garage parking courts.  This type of development needs to be sensitive to 

their existing surrounding area. Alongside the visual improvements which infill residential 

development can create, there can also be a number of social benefits which the regeneration can 

deliver including a reduction of crime/antisocial behaviour and improved social interaction between 

different sections of the community.    As well as generating homes, they  can also provide enhanced 

community facilities including investment in local infrastructure such as schools and improvements to 

existing services such as bus routes. 

 

3.101 The city council works closely with its partner Registered Providers to deliver schemes led by the RP 

which generate 100% affordable housing.  These schemes often enable the delivery of specialist units, 

such as adapted wheelchair units, to meet a specific need  The delivery of 100% affordable housing  

schemes is of particular importance as it delivers affordable units on sites where planning policy does 

not require any affordable units. 

 

3.102 Delivery of Affordable Housing in Rural Areas 

The delivery of affordable housing in Peterborough’s rural areas is vital to ensuring the  

sustainability of our rural communities.  

 

3.103 The proposed allocation in the Core Strategy of approximately 1500 dwellings in rural  

locations (of which around one third are already committed) in the period of the strategy  up until 

2026, is divided between the three tiers of rural settlement size identified in Peterborough;  

• approximately 600 dwellings between Peterborough’s  two largest villages identified as key service 

centres with the greatest capacity for expansion  

• approximately 450 dwellings between the eight villages identified  as having the capacity for limited 

growth 

• approximately 50 dwellings in the remaining small villages.  

 

3.104  The site size threshold for requiring affordable housing on residential schemes in Peterborough’s rural 

areas is 15 units or more, as in its urban areas.  Due to the size and scale of development in rural 

areas, many schemes are below the threshold and therefore are not required to provide affordable 

housing.   

 

3.105 A comparison between estimated gross need and supply of affordable housing in rural areas, indicates 

that in Peterborough’s larger key service centre rural settlements, levels of need are 7 times higher 

than existing supply and in the smaller villages levels of need are around 14 times higher. This largely 

reflects the lack of supply in affordable housing in the rural areas and the low turnover of affordable 

housing stock. This is demonstrated by the level of rural properties let through Choice Based Lettings 

during the period April 2008 and October 2010. A total of 4678 properties were allocated during this 

97



 62 

period and of these, only 184 were rural lettings. Furthermore, 115 of the rural lettings were made in 

the two key rural service centres, Eye and Thorney. This means that on average only 1 in every 25 

affordable homes allocated in Peterborough were in a rural area.  

 

3.106 Peterborough’s first Rural Housing Strategy adopted in 2010 identifies increasing the supply of 

affordable housing in rural areas as a key priority. The strategy acknowledges that delivery of 

affordable housing in rural areas will largely depend upon provision through s.106 obligations or 

development of small sites by Affordable Housing Providers. As a means of increasing the supply of 

affordable homes in rural locations, the objectives of the strategy include promoting the development 

of rural exception sites and exploring the potential of Community Land trusts.  As a result, 

Peterborough has now set up a Rural Housing Partnership with two RSL partners and Cambridgeshire 

Acre, a charitable local rural enabling agency. This partnership is currently undertaking consultation 

with local parishes to identify those interested in developing affordable housing through exception 

sites.  

 

3.107 Peterborough is also currently working with Foundation East, a charitable to establish what role they 

can take in the promotion of Community Land Trusts as a means of developing housing in 

Peterborough’s rural and urban communities.  
 

3.108    Delivery of Supported Housing Schemes 

 To ensure an increasing range of choice and diversity of housing provision that can contribute to    

addressing specialist housing need, the emerging Core Strategy recommends that 20% of dwellings on 

sites of 15 or more units are built to Lifetime Homes standards and that on sites of 50 or more 

dwellings there will be an additional requirement to provide 2% of the units as wheelchair adapted 

homes.   

 

3.109 Addressing the needs of vulnerable groups requiring specialist housing  is one of the considerations  

discussed with our RSL partners when agreeing the type and tenure of affordable housing provision on 

sites throughout the city.   

 

3.110  The accommodation needs of all people who come into contact with the health and social care services    

 provided by NHS Peterborough will be evidenced in the emerging Health and Social Care  

 Accommodation Strategy.  This strategy will replace a number of existing strategies such as the Older  

 People’s Accommodation Strategy and NHS Peterborough’s Extra Care Housing Strategy and will  

 provide a holistic approach to meeting the needs of a wide range of client groups including elderly,  

 physically disabled and mentally disabled.   

 

3.111 The existing Peterborough Older Persons Accommodation Strategy (OPAS) sets out a requirement  

     to build 500 units of extra care’ accommodation in Peterborough by 2016 in order to meet the   

     needs of an ageing population and the projected growth in dementia. The provision of extra care  

     housing is identified as a strategic priority in the Housing Strategy and also the Supporting People  

     strategy. There are currently 179 units of extra care housing provision in Peterborough with a  

     further 52 units on target for completion in March 2011.  The target for Extra Care provision set  

     out in the OPAS is very challenging but remains a priority for Peterborough City Council and its  

     partners. The target of 500 units was informed by Joint Strategic Needs Assessment carried out in  

     2007. This target is in the process of being reviewed as part of the development of the emerging  

     Health and Social care Accommodation Strategy. This target will need to balance the need for older  

     persons accommodation in Peterborough with the reality of access to funding for future extra care  

     provision.  

 

 

98



 63 

 

3.112 The draft Vulnerable People’s Accommodation Strategy produced by NHS Peterborough (to be 

replaced with the emerging Health and Social Care Accommodation strategy) identifies the housing 

issues facing people with a learning disability and/or mental health issues in Peterborough.  

 

3.113 Current housing provision in Peterborough for people with learning disabilities and/or mental health 

issues falls into 4 categories: 

 

• Residential Care Homes  

• Independent Living  (in the community equated to a tenancy in self contained accommodation where 

the person lives alone or with an on-site care provider 

• Group Homes (renting a room in a shared house with others and receiving support, either floating or 

on site. 

• Supported Housing (accommodation within a complex with support staff either on site 24/7 or during 

the day 

 

3.114 Under provision of supported and independent living options for these needs groups within 

Peterborough has resulted in  a significant number of adults and also young people being 

accommodated outside of the area. This is not only an unsatisfactory arrangement for those people 

forced to live outside the area but is also a costly solution to individual housing needs.  

Gap analysis has identified a need for more provision of all categories types of housing required for 

people with a learning disability and/or mental health issues.   

 

3.115 A review of applicants on the Housing Register who have been identified as having a medical priority 

that affects their housing needs is currently underway. To date the review has confirmed that   31 

households with a  member who is full time wheelchair user and 43 households with a member who is 

a part time wheelchair user have been identified  as needing suitably adapted and accessible 

accommodation. Depending on individual circumstances accommodation needs range from houses 

with downstairs bedroom and bathroom facilities, ground floor flats  and wheelchair adapted 

bungalows. 

 

3.116 The emerging Housing Strategy for 2011-12 has identified addressing specialist housing need as a key 

theme.  

 

3.117 The Coalition Government’s Housing Initiatives and impact on future delivery  

The coalition government are in the process of introducing a range of housing initiatives and policies 

which will have significant implications for the future delivery of affordable housing and meeting 

housing need.  

 

3.118 Outcome of the Comprehensive Spending Review 

The Comprehensive Spending Review, announced in October 2010, included a number of significant  

changes that will affect both housing development and housing need. Besides the 50% cut in central 

government funding for affordable housing, one of the biggest announcements in terms of finance 

was the ‘New Homes Bonus’. Under this scheme, for every new home built the local authority will 

receive a ‘bonus’ that is the equivalent to six years in council tax receipts. This un-ring fenced grant is 

designed to act as an incentive for local authorities and communities that encourage housing growth. 

Local authorities will also receive an improved ‘bonus’ for every affordable home that is built, and 

every empty property that is bought back into use. Peterborough City Council welcomes the 

introduction of the New Homes Bonus, and in particular the way it recognises the additional financial 

and environmental pressures that high growth locations undergo as a result of the growth. However, 

99



 64 

the New Homes Bonus will not in itself be the only source of government support needed to help 

facilitate and enable growth to occur. With other financial support removed (such as Planning and 

Housing Delivery Grant and Growth Area Funding), combined with falling land values and reduced 

development viability, means that finding funds to provide infrastructure to facilitate major growth 

remains a major challenge. 

 

3.119 The council’s Medium Term Financial Plan to 2015/16 has estimated the following levels of grant for 

Peterborough arising from the new bonus. Please note that the figures take into account the ‘loss’ the 

council will incur due to a reduction in Formula Grant. Therefore the figures stated indicate an 

assumed ‘net gain’. 

 

 

 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

New Homes Incentive 

 

£1.182m £1.493m £1.681m £1.681m £1.681m 

 

 

3.120 Another major announcement was the introduction of a cap upon the amount of housing benefit that 

a household can claim. Although this change is unlikely to directly affect those already renting in 

Peterborough, the city may experience inward migration as families that are priced out of London seek 

more inexpensive accommodation within easy reach of the capital. Other changes to the housing 

benefit entitlement for single persons under the age of 35 will also have a significant impact upon the 

demand for shared house-type accommodation across Peterborough.  

 

3.121 The government also used the CSR to announce the introduction of new ‘flexible tenancies’. If 

adopted, the proposals would replace the current policy that sees social landlords only award lifetime 

tenancies for people moving into social housing. Councils and RSLs would have the flexibility to offer 

new social housing tenants minimum contracts of two years. 

 

3.122 These new tenancies will feature rents described as ‘affordable rents’ and that are charged at around 

80% of the market rate.  

 

3.123 The table below based on some initial local research, sets out the potential implications for different 

property sizes and types where affordable rents are applied. It provides average rents for seven areas 

of the city by property size and type in January 2011. Each average rent has been calculated by taking 

two random properties from the higher, middle and lower price brackets on rightmove.co.uk.  80% of 

each market rent has then been calculated in order to give a maximum figure that would be charged 

for each property type in each of the areas under the new ‘affordable rent’ tenure.  

 

3.124 The average local social rent for each property type has then been calculated using current Choice 

Based Lettings property details and then the difference between the 80% rent and the social rent has 

been calculated to provide the ‘mark up’ that RSLs would generate from the new affordable rent 

tenure.  

 

3.125 These figures indicate that the cost of larger accommodation would substantially increase in some 

areas of Peterborough, whereas for smaller accommodation the difference would be considerably 

smaller.   Also note the difference in rental prices between areas. Under the new tenure, Hampton 

would become a considerably more expensive area to live in than the other areas analysed here.  

 

 

100



 65 

 One Bed Flat Two Bed Flat Two Bed House Three Bed House Four Bed House 

Hampton £464 £601 £608 £719 £842 

80% of market rent £371 £480 £486 £575 £674 

Average RSL social rent £269 £327 £325 £340 £372 

Rental 'headroom' £102 £153 £161 £235 £302 

      

Dogsthorpe £416 n/a £561 £586 n/a 

80% of market rent £333 n/a £449 £469 n/a 

Average RSL social rent £269 £327 £325 £340 £372 

Rental 'headroom' £64 n/a £124 £129 n/a 

      

N Bretton £385 £473 £550 £574 £650 

80% of market rent £308 £378 £440 £459 £520 

Average RSL social rent £269 £327 £325 £340 £372 

Rental 'headroom' £39 £51 £115 £119 £148 

      

Werrington £385 £400 £518 £604 £575 

80% of market rent £308 £320 £414 £483 £460 

Average RSL social rent £269 £327 £325 £340 £372 

Rental 'headroom' £39 -£7 £89 £143 £88 

 

 

 

 

      

 

Fletton £395 £493 £537 £545 n/a  

80% of market rent £316 £394 £430 £436 n/a  

Average RSL social rent £269 £327 £325 £340 £372 

Rental 'headroom' £47 £67 £105 £96 n/a  

      

Orton Goldhay £300 n/a £477 £524 £565 

80% of market rent £240 n/a  £382 £419 £452 

Average RSL social rent £269 £327 £325 £340 £372 

Rental 'headroom' -£29 n/a  £57 £79 £80 

      

Paston £412 £596 £525 £590 n/a  

80% of market rent £330 £477 £420 £472 n/a  

Average RSL social rent £269 £327 £325 £340 £372 

Rental 'headroom' £61 £150 £95 £132 n/a  

      

Average £394 £513 £539 £592 £658 

Average 80% of market 

rent £315 £410 £432 £473 £526 

Average RSL social rent £269 £327 £325 £340 £372 

Rental 'headroom' £46 £83 £107 £133 £154 

 

  

 

 

 

101



 66 

 3.126  It is the intention of the Coalition Government that the implementation of affordable rents will enable 

RSLs to use this model to agree an investment plan with the HCA for the delivery of new affordable 

homes. This plan will be based on the future rental income stream from the ‘headroom’ figure over an 

agreed period of time.  Research already undertaken by various RSLs and Hometrack has shown that 

the level of extra receipts at the disposal of RSLs varies significantly depending on where their housing 

stock is located.  In terms of Peterborough’s main providers, the following table sets out the 

percentage of their total stock that is located in Peterborough. This may have implications for their 

capacities to generate funding from the new delivery model.  

 

RSL Current stock  Number of units 

in Peterborough 

Peterborough 

stock as % of total 

stock 

Accent Nene          18547 1637  8.8%  

Axiom 2058 1081 52.50% 

BPHA 16011 480 3% 

CKH 9862 9772 99% 

Hyde 45000 1145 2.50% 

Longhurst 7972 128 1.60% 

Total 99450 14243 14.3%  

 

 

               The role of affordable rents in delivering homes to meet housing need in Peterborough will be 

discussed by partners and set out in the council’s Strategic Tenancy Policy in due course.  

  

 

3.127 Community Right to Build 

Due to be announced in the forthcoming Localism Bill, the Community Right to Build scheme will grant 

groups of local people the power to give consent to new homes or community amenities. With an 

initial focus upon rural development, the ‘Community Right to Build’ scheme will allow communities to 

grant outline planning consent for development where 75% of the local population approve of the 

proposals. The full details of the scheme, including the likely impact upon delivery rates, are still 

unclear. However, what is evident is that the Community Right to Build scheme represents a 

noteworthy change to the existing planning system, and if adopted is likely to have a significant impact 

upon rural housing delivery during the lifetime of the Local Investment Plan.  

 

 

102



 67 

4. GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

 

Summary of Governance / Delivery Arrangements 

4.1 The governance and management arrangements for growth currently sit with the Deputy Chief 

Executive’s department and subsequently under the Head of Peterborough Delivery Partnership (PDP). 

4.2 Moving forward, our Governance arrangements will be more focussed on a programme of projects to 

kick start delivery. The development of a Peterborough Delivery Partnership has been put in place with 

key partners. 

4.3 Peterborough, through its city council and urban regeneration company, has built exceptionally good 

relationships with local landowners (such as Milton Estates, O&H, and the Church Commissioners) and 

property agents (Savills, BSM, Carter Jonas). This means that we are well-placed to develop leads, 

broker deals and bridge the private and public sector interests. This will only be enhanced by, and 

enhance, alternative funding arrangements and assist in identifying opportunities for true partnerships 

and joint ventures. 

Finance Arrangements - Introduction  

4.4 Having set out the issues, opportunities, needs and governance arrangements to deliver growth and 

associated infrastructure, it is necessary to briefly refer to the finance arrangements underpinning all 

of these matters.   

4.5 In essence, the finance arrangements need to be as simple as the regulations and governance 

arrangements permits, but there is no hiding from the fact that getting the right funding, at the right 

time, from the right organisations will be complex.  

4.6 There are broadly four sources of funding to deliver the growth and infrastructure: 

1. Direct Private Sector spend (including developers and utility companies) 

2. Private Sector contributions to the Public Sector in order for the Public Sector to spend it 

3.  ‘Public’ spend i.e. the spending of funding (grants, loans or other forms) received from: 

Europe, Government, government agencies, Lottery, etc 

4. Joint Ventures between Private and Public Sector 

Direct Private Sector Spend  

4.7 The vast majority of financial investment in the City will be private sector funds spent directly by the 

private sector. This could be from developers (i.e. building houses, employment premises, retail 

premises etc, together with associated on-site infrastructure) or via (the former public, but now 

privatised) utility providers (i.e. water, energy, telecommunication companies etc).  

4.8 Where agreements on such contributions are not easily determined or are stalling, it is becoming more 

frequent for ‘open book’ negotiations to take place. This gives the public sector the opportunity to 

scrutinise the ‘costs’ which the developer is undertaking overall on delivering the site, so that a greater 

understanding can be reached by all parties on what may be a reasonable (and viable) contribution the 

private developer can make to wider infrastructure needs.  

4.9 The city council endorses such open book arrangements in appropriate circumstances, and sees 

considerable benefits in doing so for both parties. It is also likely to speed up conclusions on 

appropriate financial contributions to be made. 

 

103



 68 

4.10 This LIP is a good source of reference for the private sector (including the utility providers) in order for 

them to plan for their financial commitments in the City. 

Private Sector contributions to the Public Sector  

4.11 It is now common practice for developers to make financial (as well as other) contributions to the 

public sector in order for wider infrastructure needs to be delivered. These contributions, via a formal 

legal agreement (a ‘Planning Obligation’ agreement), have traditionally been agreed on a site-by-site 

basis. As part of its enabling function, council officers liaise with officers within the Planning Services 

team to provide comments and suggestion in relation to planning applications for housing 

development, specifically relating to the provision of affordable housing.  In accordance with the 

Council’s planning policy, occasionally it is agreed between the Council and a landowner/developer 

that rather than providing on-site affordable housing as part of a development scheme, the 

landowner/developer agrees to pay, via a s.106 Planning Obligation, a sum in lieu of on site affordable 

housing provision. The amount of any commuted sum agreed with the council’s S106 monitoring team 

is determined by taking into account the value of the affordable housing required by planning policy 

and the viability of the scheme.  Funds generated from commuted sums are invested in affordable 

housing projects within the locality of the planning application site from which the payment was 

triggered.  However, a move towards standard charges for certain items (eg school places, libraries, 

etc) has become common place, and this has been taken forward further by some authorities towards 

an overall ‘standard charge’ or ‘tariff’ arrangement.  

4.12 The City Council has been exploring the issue of a standard charge for sometime, and commenced such 

a process in 2009, based on the Council’s draft ‘Planning Obligations Implementation Scheme’ (POIS) 

SPD.  The final version of this SPD was adopted by Council in February 2010.  

4.13 All funds collected via the standard charge is being pooled, and then spent on infrastructure items in 

accordance with arrangements set out in the POIS.  

4.14 Whether a payment of a standard charge is made by a developer remains optional and negotiable. 

4.15 The actual standard charges set out in the POIS reflect the infrastructure needs of the City as set out in 

this LIP. The charge is only a contribution to the overall infrastructure costs, and needs to be supported 

by substantial public sector investment. The viability of the charge on the development proposal is an 

important consideration. 

4.16 Full details of the arrangements are set out in the POIS. 

4.17 Government is planning to overhaul the ‘standard charge’ process, with the introduction of a 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). Whilst similar to a standard charge in that there will be a locally 

agreed fee a developer will have to pay for each unit of development built, the CIL, if implemented by a 

local authority, is non-negotiable on a site-by-site basis. This will considerably streamline the process 

and gives considerably more certainty to developers and the public sector alike. However, on the 

downside, the lack of negotiation ability may result in certain sites becoming unviable. 

4.18 The City Council is currently exploring whether it wishes to introduce a CIL. 

 

 

 

 

 

104



 69 

 

4.19 The policy framework for overseeing the contributions made by developers will be in the Core Strategy 

and the POIS. The following emerging policy was put forward by the Council to the Secretary of State, 

and is currently subject to examination by an independent inspector. 

 
Policy CS 12: Developer Contributions to Infrastructure Provision 
 

Where a planning obligation is required in order to meet the principles of policy CS10 'Infrastructure' 

then this may be negotiated on a site-by-site basis. However, to speed up and add certainty to the 

process, the City Council will encourage developers to enter into a planning obligation for 

contributions based on the payment of a standard charge. Subject to arrangements to be set out in a 

separate Planning Obligations LDD, contributions received via this standard charge may be assembled 

into pools at an authority-wide level and to the relevant Neighbourhood Management Area (as 

described in policy CS 8). 

 

The use of a standard charge approach will ensure that any contribution is reasonably related to the 

scale and type of development that is proposed. The Planning Obligations LDD will set out detailed 

arrangements for the operation of the standard charge and formulae based upon needs assessments, 

viability studies and associated business plans, which will be kept under review. The LDD will include 

the level of the charge for different types of development, by unit of development, and the basis for 

the calculation of that level of charge; any minimum size thresholds which will apply; any 

arrangements for pooling, including the split between the pools; any arrangements for staged 

payments; long-term management and maintenance of infrastructure; any arrangements to address 

collection and management of pools; and inflation proofing measures. 

 

The City Council will be prepared to negotiate a variation from the standard charge(s) in cases where 

actual provision of neighbourhood or strategic infrastructure is provided as part of the development 

proposals or other material consideration. The LDD will include an explanation of where exemptions 

from or variations to the charge may occur. 

 

Additional contributions may also be negotiated to mitigate a significant loss of a facility on the site, 

such as public open space. 

 

In the event that the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is fully enacted and Government regulations 

are put in place, then the City Council may adopt such a CIL to replace the standard charge 

arrangements set out in this policy. 

 

(Source: Draft Pre-Submission version of the Core Strategy, October 2009) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

105



 70 

Public Funding  

4.20 Recognising that the private sector will not, either directly or indirectly, fund all necessary 

infrastructure, the public sector must make significant financial contribution to enabling growth and 

infrastructure provision. The sources of such funding are wide, and range considerably in terms of 

access to such funds by a particular locality.   

4.21 Examples of sources of funding are as follows: 

• European funding (particular for major transport schemes or tackling deprivation) 

• Central Government Funding (such as for transport, green infrastructure, community 

infrastructure, health care, schools, culture. Such funding is either ‘ringfenced’ for direct spend 

on a specific item of infrastructure or (more increasingly) ‘non-ringfenced’, which devolves 

decisions on precisely what the funding is spent on to the local level) 

• Government Agencies and Quangos (such as Homes and Communities Agency)  

• The City Council’s own financial resources and capital programmes 

• Lottery Funding 

4.22 Some of these funds are automatically awarded to the City Council, though the level of fund may be 

determined by need or past performance. The National Affordable Housing Programme (NAHP) for 

2008-2011 saw considerable HCA funding allocated for the provision of affordable housing schemes in 

Peterborough. As a part of the funding allocation process, the council was consulted on all bids 

submitted to HCA by affordable housing providers.  Where scheme addressed an identified need and 

contributed towards the council’s strategic priorities we liaised with the HCA to offer support for the 

proposed scheme.  The new affordable housing funding regime proposed by the Coalition Government 

from April 2011 will not only see a major reduction in the levels of funding available for affordable 

housing, but also a considerable change to the relationship between the HCA and RSLs in terms of 

finance provision and expectations regarding the capacity of RSLs to cross subsidise and invest in new 

affordable homes. This change in relationship will also impact upon the role of local authorities in 

attracting HCA funding to the city. The Local Investment Plan and the proposed Local Authority 

strategic policy on tenancies will form the basis to inform both the HCA and RSL partners of 

Peterborough’s affordable housing priorities and expectations in terms of tenure, rent levels and 

affordable housing allocations in Peterborough.  

 

4.23 Other funding is secured via ‘bidding’ processes, where only selected authorities receive funding based 

on the bid submitted. The City is generally good at securing funds through such ‘bids’ and this is being 

strengthened by the creation of a new ‘Central Bidding Team’ at the City Council, which has a remit to:  

• research what non-statutory grant opportunities are available  

• create a library of templates and case studies to help staff successfully bid for grants 

• identify what the city’s unique selling points are to help cash in on our strengths  

• ensure each bid is commercially sound, e.g. ensuring a good return on investment 

• decide the best approach on who will apply – department, central funding unit or jointly 

• ensure each bid is written and branded consistently  

• evaluate each bid to ensure we learn from mistakes to enable successful bids in the future 

 

106



 71 

4.24 The City Council and its partners are committed to maximising its income via all available public 

sources, and then effectively joining up such funds with funding from other (private) sources so that 

effective and efficient delivery of infrastructure can be delivered.  

 

Joint Ventures 

4.25 The council is looking actively at the benefits to be achieved from a range of joint ventures with the 

private sector, to deliver growth in the City. Work is underway, to scope the projects which may 

benefit from a joint venture and would otherwise be stalled.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

107



 72 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

108



 73 

‘Tomorrow’s Growth’ 

Development Programme 
 

 
1.  THE PROJECT SCHEDULE AND MOVING FORWARD 

1.1 At section 3.2 of this LIP, we identified a package approach to our programme of growth and 

investment needs, namely: 

 Spatial Packages of: 

  City Centre 

  Neighbourhood Areas 

  Urban Extensions 

  Other Growth 

 

 And Thematic Packages of: 

   Transport 

  Education 

  Environment 

  Utilities and Services 

  Employment / Economy 

   Community Infrastructure  

  Housing and Affordable Housing 

 

1.2  This part of the LIP now takes those Packages and sets out the proposed projects for the initial 3 year 

2011-2014 which will help to deliver on those package needs. 

1.3 The schedule is intended to be the more ‘live’ element of the LIP, in that it can be updated quickly and 

frequently as and when projects are confirmed for addition to or removed from the programme.  It 

will be refreshed from time to time, possible annually. 

1.4 The schedule sets out and details the proposed projects for the initial 3 year 2011-2014 priority 

programme.  These are the specific projects and project themes for which funding  is sought.   

1.5 The IDP provides an overview of the infrastructure and support Peterborough needs for the longer 

term period beyond 2014 up to around 2030. This document was adopted in Dec 2009 and it is 

intended that it will be subject to periodic refresh to ensure that it remains fit for purpose as part of 

the delivery programme. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

109



 74 

1.6 The project themes identified below for the delivery of Peterborough’s affordable housing preferred 

options reflect the priorities for the thematic package for affordable housing set out in chapter 3 of 

this plan. These project profiles provide a more focussed explanation of how these priority themes can 

deliver Peterborough’s demonstrated need for a range of affordable homes.  They do not identify 

specific schemes for potential funding on the basis that the council and its partners do not wish to 

constrain the potential for development to sites identified at this stage. Each of the project themes for 

affordable housing has been designated as a high priority for Peterborough. The findings of the 

recently updated SHMA re-affirms that Peterborough has a high level of housing need and that 

affordable housing is required across the range of tenures, property sizes and locations within the city 

to address this need.  To enable Peterborough to maximise its potential for sustainable growth that 

meets the aspirations, demand and need of all of its residents, it is vital that affordable housing 

provision reflects the full scope of evidenced need for affordable housing in the city.  Our close 

working relationship with our Registered Provider partners means that we maintain a clear and 

informed understanding of the range of sites and schemes with the potential to deliver affordable 

housing in Peterborough. This information along with our understanding of the housing market and 

housing need in the city (informed by the recently updated SHMA findings) forms the evidence behind 

the themes selected for the affordable housing projects.  

It is intended that this plan should remain fluid and responsive to the changes and opportunities that 

arise. 

 

1.7 Following on from the housing projects identified in the schedule are a set of projects regarding 

proposed improvements to the City’s transport infrastructure.  The primary purpose of these 

proposals would be to facilitate important tracts of potential development land, which would in turn 

lead to significant increases in housing unit numbers. 

 

1.8 All of the projects put forward at this stage are major high priority growth delivery proposals.  In 

principle the Council would like to see all of them happen, as they are all evidenced as being desirable 

and necessary.  Prioritising between these projects would be a set of decisions that would have to be 

made by senior council officers and members. 

 

1.9 As the LIP is intended to be a very fluid document, the specific project inclusions may be altered, 

added to, or deleted as considered appropriate over time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

110



 75 

PROJECT 1:  DELIVERY OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING ON URBAN EXTENSIONS 

Location 

Urban extension sites have been identified at Hampton, Paston Reserve, Stanground South, Great Haddon 

and Norwood.  

 

Priority 

High  

Description of the project 

The identified urban extensions have the potential to deliver 14,000 homes of which over 4000 units could 

be affordable.  The core strategy proposed submission identifies the tenure and unit type of affordable 

home which are required to reflect the demand identified in the SHMA update. 

Need for the project  

The Peterborough Strategic Housing Market Assessment identifies a need within Peterborough to deliver 

1008 units of affordable housing per annum.   The delivery of affordable homes on urban extensions is 

identified as a major source of future affordable housing provision. This is demonstrated by the role of 

urban extensions in the provision of affordable housing in recent years. They  account for 48% of the overall 

supply of affordable housing during the last 3 years (April 2007 – March 2010). 

 

Lead organisation 

Peterborough City Council 

Partner organisation involved 

Registered Providers 

Private Developers 

Land owners  

 

Status / stage of the project 

The urban extensions at Hampton, Paston Reserve and Stanground South are already delivering units and 

contributing to the growth of Peterborough.  The sites at Great Haddon and Norwood are less advanced but 

are likely to deliver growth within the timescales of this Local Investment Plan. 

 

Project cost Estimates/Funding 

Project costs will vary depending on property types and tenure and the capacity to achieve economies of 

scale. Estimated average cost of £115,947 per unit on a s.106 development based upon average costs from 

previous urban extension development where grant was provided for a mix intermediate and social rented  

tenure affordable units. Funding  may be sought from the HCA. Other avenues of funding including the lead 

and partner organisations will also be explored to ensure best value for the future development of 

affordable housing on urban extension sites. 

 

Outputs and outcomes 

Output:  

• Potential for the delivery of up to 200 affordable homes on urban extension sites per year based on 

previous outputs 

Outcome:  

• Delivery of mixed and sustainable sites.   

• Reduce number of households in housing need.   

• Meet the demand for affordable housing.   

• Provide a range of affordable tenure, unit types and sizes.   

• 10% of homes delivered will meet Lifetime Homes standard.   

• 2% of affordable homes delivered will be accessible for wheelchair users. 

111



 76 

 

Deliverability and timescales 

There are no specific obstacles to delivery of units on the sites at Hampton, Stanground South and Paston 

Reserve, all of which have outline planning consent.  However, there is a degree of reliance on private 

sector partners implementing schemes to ensure infrastructure is in place to deliver affordable tranches. 

 

The next phase of development on Paston Reserve is currently seeking planning approval. Anticipated start 

on site during 2011/12 

 

The sites at Great Haddon and Norwood are deliverable within the longer term timescale of this plan. 

 

Key risks 

1.  Sites with existing planning consents will be unable to deliver the agreed mix of tenure if grant input is 

not available. 

2.  Delivery is dependent upon the land owners being willing to service the land and release the affordable 

housing tranches. 

3.  The delivery of units at Stanground South and Paston Reserve is likely dependent on the involvement of 

a private sector delivery partner.   

4.  The current economic climate could prevent significant private sector investment which is required to 

instigate growth at Great Haddon and Norwood. 

 

Steps taken to mitigate principle risks 

1.Ongoing liaison with all key stakeholders to identify barriers to development and assist with solutions 

where possible 

2. A flexible scheme by scheme approach to viability issues 

 

Alignment with the vision 

Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth: 

Creating better places to live – so that we provide better places to live for both new and existing 

communities, ensuring the highest environmental standards of new building. 

 

Alignment with the LDF and other strategies 

Sustainable Communities Strategy 

Peterborough Core Strategy – proposed submission 

Housing Strategy 2008-11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

112



 77 

PROJECT 2:  DELIVERY OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING ON OTHER URBAN ‘INFILL’ SITES 

 

Location 

In Peterborough’s city centre, urban and neighbourhood areas, a wide range of infill developments either 

have planning permission or have been identified in the site allocations document as being appropriate for 

residential development. 

 

Priority 

High  

 

Description of the project 

Planning policy requires 30% affordable housing on all developments delivering 15 or more units and this will 

enable substantial numbers of new affordable homes.  Alongside this, the city council is working with partner 

Registered Providers to deliver smaller 100% affordable housing schemes to meet specific local needs.  

 

Need for the project 

The Peterborough Strategic Housing Market Assessment identifies a need within Peterborough to deliver 

1008 units of affordable housing per annum.  Through S106 planning agreements the council is seeking a mix 

of tenure and unit types on these sites to reflect the housing demand identified in the SHMA update.  

 

The delivery of affordable homes on infill developments accounted for 52% of the overall supply of affordable 

housing during the last 3 years (April 2007 – March 2010) and therefore the delivery of affordable housing on 

infill developments plays an essential role in the overall affordable housing programme. 

 

Lead organisation 

Peterborough City Council 

 

Partner organisation involved 

Registered Providers 

Private Developers  

Land owners 

 

Status / stage of the project 

Peterborough City Council’s Housing Trajectory identifies a range of sites with  existing outline or detailed 

planning consent and if developed these sites could deliver 163 new affordable homes. 

 

Project cost Estimates/Funding 

Project costs will vary depending on property types and tenure and the capacity to achieve economies of 

scale. Estimated average cost of £115,947 per unit on a s.106 development based upon average costs from 

previous urban infill development where grant was provided for a mix intermediate and social rented tenure 

affordable units. Funding  may be sought from the HCA. Other avenues of funding including the lead and 

partner organisations will also be explored to ensure best value for the future development of affordable 

housing on urban infill sites. 

 

Outputs and outcomes 

Output:  

• Delivery of a range of affordable homes on a variety of sites within Peterborough 

 

 Outcomes:    

• Delivery of mixed and sustainable developments.   

113



 78 

• Reduction in the number of households currently in housing need.   

• Provide a range of affordable tenure, unit types and sizes.   

 

Deliverability and timescales 

The delivery of affordable units on infill sites is controlled by private sector developers who must facilitate 

the delivery of the affordable units by providing access to the site and relevant infrastructure. There are sites 

within the city with existing planning consents therefore anticipate delivery during 2011/12. 

The tenure splits set out in existing s.106 agreements may need to be varied subject to the priorities to be set 

out in the forthcoming   requirement for the council to prepare a Strategic Tenancy Policy in response to the 

Government’s funding and tenure reforms. 

 

To further enhance affordable housing delivery, the city council works closely with partner Registered 

Providers to encourage the delivery of full affordable housing schemes where this can be facilitated on 

smaller sites in the ownership of RP partners. 

 

 

Key risks 

1.  Sites will be not deliver the agreed mix of tenure set out in the planning consents if grant input is not 

available. 

2.  The delivery of units is dependent on the involvement of a private sector delivery partner to service the 

site and provide necessary infrastructure. 

 

Steps taken to mitigate principle risks 

1.Ongoing liaison with all key stakeholders to identify barriers to development and assist with solutions 

where possible 

2. A flexible scheme by scheme approach to viability issues 

 

Alignment with the vision 

Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth: 

Creating better places to live – so that we provide better places to live for both new and existing 

communities, ensuring the highest environmental standards of new building. 

 

Alignment with the LDF and other strategies 

Sustainable Communities Strategy 

Peterborough Core Strategy – proposed submission 

Housing Strategy 2008-11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

114



 79 

PROJECT 3:  DELIVERY OF RURAL HOUSING SCHEMES 

 

Location 

Peterborough City Council’s site allocations document identifies a number of sites in rural areas which are 

suitable for residential development. 

 

Priority 

High 

 

Description of the project 

This project will see the delivery of affordable housing units which are required from PCC planning policy 

which expects 30% affordable housing on all sites which deliver 15 or more units.  Additionally the council is 

actively pursuing the delivery of rural exception sites, which provide 100% affordable housing, through its 

partnership with Cambridgeshire Acre. 

Need for the project 

The Peterborough Strategic Housing Market Assessment identifies a need within Peterborough to deliver 

1008 units of affordable housing per annum.  The delivery of affordable housing on rural sites is crucial to the 

delivery of a varied affordable housing programme.  Additionally the levels of need for affordable housing in 

rural areas surrounding Peterborough are significantly higher than the current supply.  

 

The Peterborough Rural Housing Strategy has an objective to increase the supply and methods of delivery of 

affordable housing in rural areas. 

 

Through S106 planning agreements the council is seeking a mix of tenure on qualifying sites to reflect the 

housing demand identified in the SHMA update.   

 

Lead organisation 

Peterborough City Council 

 

Partner organisation involved 

Registered Providers 

Rural Housing Parnership 

Cambridgeshire Acre (rural enabling agency) 

Land owners 

Private developers 

 

Status / stage of the project 

A number of sites within villages have existing planning consents and the affordable units may be deliverable 

with grant input. 

 

Additionally, Cambridgeshire Acre is currently liaising with Peterborough’s rural communities to enable the 

delivery of rural exception sites. 

Project cost estimates/funding 

Project costs will vary depending on property types and tenure. Estimated average cost of £94,101 per unit 

on a s.106 development based upon average costs from previous rural development where grant was 

provided for a mix intermediate and social rented tenure affordable units. Funding  may be sought from the 

HCA. Other avenues of funding including the lead and partner organisations will also be explored to ensure 

best value for the future development of affordable housing on rural sites. 

 

 

115



 80 

Outputs and outcomes 

Output:  

• Increased delivery of  affordable homes in rural communities.  

• Delivery of 100% affordable housing units on rural exception sites. 

 

 Outcomes:    

• Delivery of mixed and sustainable developments.   

• Reduction in the number of households currently in housing need.   

• Provide a range of affordable tenure, unit types and sizes.   

 

Deliverability and timescales 

Sites with detailed planning consents could be delivered as there are no known obstacles to delivery.  

However, as the sites are controlled by private sector developers the delivery of the units is not within the 

council’s control.  The council  continues to work closely with private sector delivery partners to enable the 

delivery of much needed market and affordable accommodation in rural areas. 

 

Two grant free rural schemes are due to start on site during 2011/12.  

The tenure splits set out in existing s.106 agreements may need to be varied subject to the priorities to be set 

out in the forthcoming   requirement for the council to prepare a Strategic Tenancy Policy in response to the 

Government’s funding and tenure reforms. 

 

Key risks 

1.  Due to uncertainty regarding future grant levels, registered providers who are seeking to deliver rural 

housing sites with existing planning permissions are looking at options to ensure delivery without grant.  If it 

is possible to deliver affordable rural units without grant it is likely that the tenure split which has previously 

been agreed will be altered to make the scheme viable and this could lead to the delivery of units which do 

not meet the most pressing needs of the community. 

2.  The delivery of units on some sites is dependent on the involvement of a private sector delivery partner to 

service the site and provide necessary infrastructure.   

3.  Failure to locate suitable sites for rural exception schemes could hamper the ability to deliver rural units. 

 

Steps taken to mitigate principle risks 

 1.Ongoing liaison with all key stakeholders to identify barriers to development and assist with solutions 

where possible 

2. A flexible scheme by scheme approach to viability issues 

 

 

Alignment with the vision 

Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth: 

Creating better places to live – so that we provide better places to live for both new and existing 

communities, ensuring the highest environmental standards of new building. 

 

Alignment with the LDF and other strategies 

Sustainable Communities Strategy 

Peterborough Core Strategy – proposed submission 

Peterborough Housing Strategy 2008-11 

Peterborough Rural Housing Strategy 2010-13 

 

 

 

116



 81 

PROJECT 4:  DELIVERY OF SUPPORTED HOUSING SCHEMES 

 

Location 

The delivery of supported housing accommodation can be achieved across a range of sites identified as 

eligible for affordable housing in Peterborough’s urban  and rural areas.  Two sites have already been 

identified as appropriate for the delivery of additional extra-care accommodation. 

 

Priority 

High  

 

Description of the project 

The accommodation needs of all people who come into contact with the health and social care services 

provided by NHS Peterborough will be evidenced in the emerging Health and Social Care Accommodation 

Strategy.  This strategy will replace a number of existing strategies such as the Older People’s 

Accommodation Strategy and NHS Peterborough’s Extra Care Housing Strategy and will provide a holistic 

approach to meeting the needs of a wide range of client groups including elderly, physically disabled and 

mentally disabled.  The emerging Health and Social Care Accommodation Strategy will also inform the 

direction of the council’s emerging Housing Strategy. 

 

The nature of housing which is required to fulfill this project is varied and could include small clusters of units 

or large extra care housing villages.   Some of this need could be met through planning policy and the 

requirement to provide 30% affordable housing on all sites of 15 or more units.  

 

Need for the project 

The existing Peterborough Older People’s Accommodation Strategy sets a target to secure land and funding 

to deliver 500 extra care units by 2016. The extra care housing programme is intended to help older people 

achieve greater independence and well being by giving them more choice over housing and care options as 

well as reducing admissions to residential care homes or hospitals.  

 

The Peterborough Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMS) identifies a need within Peterborough to 

deliver 1008 units of affordable housing per annum.   

 

The Housing Needs survey associated with the SHMA identified that 18.9% of households in Peterborough 

contain one or more member who is within a special needs group.  Of these households 19% are living in 

unsuitable housing and 47% do not contain any older people.  Therefore the delivery of supported housing 

units, not solely provided for older people, is a priority.    

 

A review of the housing register has identified 31 households with a member who is a full time wheelchair 

user currently living in unsuitable accommodation. 

 

Lead organisation 

Peterborough City Council 

 

Partner organisation involved 

NHS Peterborough – Primary Care Trust 

Registered Providers 

Land owners 

Private developers 

 

 

117



 82 

Status / stage of the project 

The council is  currently in liaison with land owners and Registered Providers to deliver extra care schemes in 

Peterborough. 

The council is working closely with Registered Providers to encourage the delivery of supported housing units 

on small infill developments. 

Project cost Estimates/Funding 

Project costs associated with the delivery of supported housing schemes can fluctuate depending on the 

nature and scale of development. Estimated average cost of £114,955 and £158,382 per unit for supported 

housing and extra care housing respectively, on a s.106 development based upon average costs from 

previous supported housing and extra care development where grant was provided for social rented tenure 

affordable units. Funding  may be sought from the HCA. Other avenues of funding including the lead and 

partner organisations will also be explored to ensure best value for the future development of affordable 

housing on supported housing and extra care sites . 

 

Outputs and outcomes 

Output:  

• Delivery of additional extra care units  to meet the target of the OPAS 

• Delivery of additional supported housing units to meet identified need 

 

 Outcomes:    

• Delivery of mixed and sustainable developments.   

• Reduction in the number of households currently in housing need.   

• Improve the supply and nature of accommodation for older people in Peterborough. 

 

Deliverability and timescales 

Some sites have been identified through s.106 agreements for the delivery of supported housing schemes.  

However, it might not be feasible to deliver them without grant input. Subject to the changes outlined in the 

Health and Social Care Bill 2011, the priorities of the forthcoming Strategic Tenancy Policy and innovative 

funding solutions we aim to deliver further supported housing schemes during the period 2011/12 – 2013/14. 

 

Key risks 

Supported housing schemes can be more expensive to deliver if the units must be built with specific features.  

Without grant, it will be difficult to deliver supported housing units. 

Where site provision for supported housing  is linked to s.106 conditions , lack of funding could jeopardize 

delivery and the site could ultimately be developed by the land owner for market accommodation. 

 

Steps taken to mitigate principle risks 

 

1.Ongoing liaison with all key stakeholders to identify barriers to development and assist with solutions 

where possible 

2. A flexible scheme by scheme approach to viability issues 

 

Alignment with the vision 

Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth: 

Creating better places to live – so that we provide better places to live for both new and existing 

communities, ensuring the highest environmental standards of new building. 

 

 

 

 

118



 83 

Alignment with the LDF and other strategies 

Sustainable Communities Strategy 

Peterborough Core Strategy – proposed submission 

Peterborough Housing Strategy 2008-11 

Peterborough Rural Housing Strategy 2010-13 

Peterborough Older People’s Accommodation Strategy 

NHS Peterborough Extra Care Housing Strategy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

119



 84 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

120



 85 

PROJECT 5:   A1139 FLETTON PARKWAY JUNCTION 1 TO JUNCTION 2 PARKWAY WIDENING  

 

Location:  

A1139 Fletton Parkway Junction 1 to Junction 2 Parkway Widening 

 

Priority 

High  

 

Description of the project 

The A1139 Fletton Parkway was constructed as part of the New Town phase of Peterborough’s development in 

the 1970s.  It is a Primary Route and forms part of the Parkway network of dual carriageway roads in and around 

Peterborough, which benefit the city in keeping long distance and through traffic out of the central and 

residential areas.  Fletton Parkway also provides a link from the A14 (via the A605) and the A1 to the west of the 

city with the A16 and A47 to the east. 

 

The project would involve widening the A1139 Fletton Parkway between Junction 1 and Junction 2, over a length 

of approximately 3 km, from two lanes in each direction to three. The additional lanes would be gained by 

extending and connecting the on and off slip roads between junction 1 and 2. There may be a need to carry out 

strengthening on the existing carriageway to allow an acceptable tie in between the new and existing 

carriageway and this work would form part of the scheme.  This section of road forms a key element of Fletton 

Parkway, and is a critical gateway for both traffic travelling within the region and traffic travelling into 

Peterborough. 

 

Need for the project 

The Peterborough Strategic Housing Market Assessment identifies a need within Peterborough to deliver 1008 

units of affordable housing per annum. The emerging Core Strategy proposes 30% of new housing should be 

affordable.  

 

The A1139 Fletton Parkway between Junction 1 and Junction 2 carries some 60,000 vehicles per day. Planned 

growth will push this link beyond its existing capacity. 

 

It is intended that the Hampton development site will eventually build around 7,500 homes located to the south 

of Fletton Parkway and the planned Great Haddon proposal will build around 5,000 houses, to be located 

between Hampton to the east and the A1M to the west.   

 

The Great Haddon proposal will increase the pressure on Fletton Parkway and the Integrated Development 

Programme has identified that the developers of this project will have to contribute, if not entirely build, this 

widening scheme to ensure that there are no detrimental impact to the highway network in Peterborough which 

could compromise the economic performance of the Region. 

 

A LIP contribution to the widening of Fletton Parkway will ease the financial constraint resulting from the 

infrastructure required to release development land. A contribution would allow negotiation on levels of 

contribution from the developers and allow them to bring forward the desirable number of affordable housing 

within Great Haddon development at an early stage. 

 

Lead organisation 

Peterborough City Council 

 

Partner organisation involved 

Private developers 

121



 86 

Status / stage of the project 

The planning application for Great Haddon has been submitted and negotiations for developer contributions is 

underway and the A1139 Fletton Parkway junction 1 to junction 2 parkway widening project is currently under 

investigation.  

 

Project cost Estimates/Funding 

Indicative project costs are currently estimated to be in the region of £15m.  Funding is hoped to largely come 

from the key private developers involved in the Great Haddon proposals.  Funding may also be sought from the 

Regional Development Fund and the HCA. 

 

Outputs and outcomes 

Output:  

• Delivery of approximately 1600 affordable homes 

  

Outcome:  

• Delivery of mixed and sustainable sites 

• Reduce number of  residents with a housing need   

• Meet the demand for affordable housing 

• Provide a range of affordable tenure, unit types and sizes   

• Improved access to the city centre and new employment ,leisure and other economic opportunities 

 

Deliverability and timescales 

It is anticipated that the project will state on site between 2011 and 2013, and that the works will last from  

9 – 12 months. 

 

Key risks 

• The A1139 Fletton Parkway adjoins a SSSI/SCA site on its southern boundary, which could prolong the 

design process. 

 

Steps taken to mitigate principle risks 

• Work closely with the English Nature to mitigate the risk to the SSSI site.  The wide central reservation at 

this location offers an opportunity to reduce or eliminate land take from the verge in the vicinity of the 

SSSI/SCA. It should be noted that the SSSI/SCA site also adjoins Fletton Parkway between Junction 2 and 

Junction 3 where the key risks were successfully mitigated. 

 

Alignment with the vision 

Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth: 

Creating better places to live and work – so that we provide better places to live for both new and existing 

communities, ensuring the highest environmental standards of new building. 

 

Alignment with the LDF and other strategies 

Sustainable Communities Strategy 

Peterborough Core Strategy – proposed submission 

Housing Strategy 2008-11 

 

 

 

 
 

 

122



 87 

PROJECT 6:  SIGNALISATION OF A47T/A15 JUNCTION 20 

 

Location 

Junction 20, located to the north-east of Peterborough at the intersection of the A47 Trunk Road and the A15 

Paston Parkway Primary Route. 

 

Priority 

High 

Description of the project 

The scheme is to implement full signalisation of Junction 20 and increase approach widths and circulatory lanes 

as this is the most effective solution to mitigate the impact of allocated residential development in the 

surrounding area. 

Need for the project 

There are a number of residential developments proposed in the vicinity of Junction 20 that will build 

approximately 3000 properties, in particular Paston Reserve and Norwood. Junction 20 would be the primary 

point of access on to the parkway system and Trunk Road network for the majority of those households.  

 

A contribution to the improvement of J20 will help to unlock the land for development and assist the planning 

case officer negotiate with the developers to bring forward the desirable number of affordable housing with in 

the vicinity of Junction 20. 

 

Lead organisation 

Peterborough City Council 

 

Partner organisation involved 

Highways Agency, Private Developers 

 

Status / stage of the project 

An initial sketch design has been prepared but requires further work 

 

Project cost Estimates/Funding 

Indicative project costs are currently estimated to be in the region of £10m.  Funding is hoped to largely come 

from the key private developers involved in the development proposals at the adjoining land and from the 

Highways agency.  Funding may also be sought from the HCA. 

 

Outputs and outcomes 

Output:  

• Delivery of a fully signalised Junction 

• Construction of additional approach lanes and circulatory carriageway 

 Outcome:  

• Improved capacity at major route intersection 

• Improved journey time reliability 

• Reduced congestion 

• Improve road safety leading contributing to reduced accidents 

• Reduce rat running on unsuitable local roads 

• Unlock development land 

• A possible increase in the number of residential properties built in the vicinity of Junction 20 

 

 

123



 88 

Deliverability and timescales 

It is anticipated that the project will start on site between 2012 and 2014. 

 

Key risks 

1. Problems acquiring additional land to accommodate widening. 

2. Scheme may not be delivered within scheme budget or funding window. 

3. Increased congestion and reduced journey time reliability if the scheme is not delivered. 

4. CRA land required to accommodate improvement 

 

Steps taken to mitigate principle risks 

1. Design of scheme altered to ensure no third party land required 

2. The funding bid is based on a detailed estimate of the scheme and includes contingency optimism bias 

3. Work closely with Highways Agency to agree a joint approach to the design process 

4. Early involvement of HCA to address any CRA land issues 

 

Alignment with the vision 

Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth: 

Creating better places to live and work by making best use of existing infrastructure and supporting growth 

through transport solutions.  

 

Alignment with the LDF and other strategies 

Sustainable Communities Strategy 

Peterborough Core Strategy – proposed submission 

Housing Strategy 2008-11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

124



 89 

PROJECT 7:   SOUTH BANK RAIL AND RIVER BRIDGES  

 

Location:  

South Bank Development Site 

 

Priority 

High  

Description of the project 

The provision of two pedestrian and cycle bridges across the River Nene and East Anglia railway will build on the 

‘carbon challenge’ ethos of the South Bank site while supporting Peterborough’s ambition to achieve 

Environment Capital status.  The bridges will achieve this by reducing the traffic impact of the development by 

encouraging short journeys from the South Bank Development and connected surrounding residential areas to 

city centre to be undertaken by sustainable travel modes. The railway bridge connects the carbon challenge site 

to Fletton Quays, while the river bridge continues the route on to the city centre. 

 

Need for the project 

The Peterborough Strategic Housing Market Assessment identifies a need within Peterborough to deliver 1,008 

units of affordable housing per annum. The Peterborough Integrated Growth Study proposes 35% of new 

housing should be affordable.  

 

The bridges will ensure the cohesion and integration of the new development and prevent the isolation often 

associated with socially affordable housing by linking it with Fletton Quays, which is proposed to be a vibrant 

mixed use development. The improved accessibility will also provide the opportunity for better lifestyle choices 

for South Bank residents. 

 

The scheme will unlock 1,100 homes for development on the South Bank Site (designated a key centre for 

development and change). Through improved access to the city centre the structures would support the delivery 

of the wider city centre development which aims to re-incorporate the River Nene back into the heart of the city 

centre to take full advantage of the pristine waterfront available for development. A contribution to the bridges 

will help to unlock the land for development and assist the planning case officer negotiate with the developers 

to bring forward the desirable number of affordable housing. 

 

Lead organisation 

Peterborough City Council 

 

Partner organisation involved 

Private Developers – Network Rail, Environment Agency, East of England Development Agency (EEDA), EDF 

Energy, Homes and Communities Agency, Morris Homes to the south of the Railway, unknown private developer 

to the north of the Railway 

 

Status / stage of the project 

This scheme is currently under investigation. A feasibility study has been undertaken to ensure a structure could 

be accommodated over the railway within the existing and proposed restraints. 

 

Project cost Estimates/Funding 

Indicative project costs are  currently estimated to be in the region of £15.5m.  Funding is hoped to come from 

the key private developers and from the HCA who are involved in the proposals at South Bank. 

 

 

 

125



 90 

Outputs and outcomes 

Output:  

• Delivery of approximately 330 affordable homes 

  

Outcome:  

• Delivery of mixed and sustainable sites 

• Reduce number of households in housing need   

• Meet the demand for affordable housing 

• Provide a range of affordable tenure, unit types and sizes   

• Improved access to the city centre and new employment and leisure opportunities 

• Promotion of sustainable modes of transport Link between new and existing communities such as the 

South Bank, riverside uses and beyond to the city centre 

• Improve community safety through design of the streetscape  

 

Deliverability and timescales 

A planning application for the Carbon Challenge site (south of the railway) was submitted during the summer of 

2010 and is expected to be determined in February 2011. An initial feasibility study has been to undertaken to 

confirm that a bridge over the railway can be accommodated within the restraints that exist and those that are 

expected to be imposed by the development of the Carbon Challenge site, this study also considered potential 

alignments for the River Bridge which will be an iconic structure on the city centre landscape. It is anticipated 

that the project will start on site between 2012 and 2013. 

 

Key risks 

1.  Private developers do not submit a planning application for the development to the north of the railway. 

2.  The majority of the land within the South Bank area is owned by public bodies that are all signed up to the re-

development of this area. However, there are sections of land to the south of the river which are privately 

owned, this may result in protracted negotiations. 

3. The planning brief for the South Bank is subject to change. 

4. Track possession over the rail line will be required and could take a minimum of 18 months to secure. 

5. There is a high voltage power cable running across the site parallel to the railway line. This places a 

considerable restraint on the location and alignment of the railway bridge; however an initial feasibility study 

has shown that a structure can still be accommodated. 

6. Environment Agency flood risk requirements will place constraints on the design of the structures.  

7. Network Rail negotiations likely to be protracted due to the involvement of a private developer. 

8. The structures are developed in piecemeal fashion due to funding or a slow start on the Fletton Quays 

development, this would result in a compromised solution. 

 

 

Steps taken to mitigate principle risks 

1. Work closely with developers from the initial stages. 

2. If planning powers were at risk, the scope of the scheme would be reviewed to minimise environmental 

impact, reduce land-take or third party concerns.  

3. The South Bank masterplan has been developed in tandem with the CCAAP which will include the requirement 

for a pedestrian and cycle bridge over the railway line and the River Nene. 

4. Communications with both Network Rail and EDF Energy undertaken during both design and construction can 

mitigate the potential time delays caused, early dialogue with Network Rail and EDF Energy to identify 

programme constraints with Peterborough City Council taking the lead.  

5. The bridge span can be designed to accommodate flood risk requirements, early dialogue with Environment 

Agency will be undertaken to identify design constraints.  

 

126



 91 

 

Alignment with the vision 

Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth: 

Creating better places to live and work – so that we provide better places to live for both new and existing 

communities, ensuring the highest environmental standards of new building. 

 

Alignment with the LDF and other strategies 

Sustainable Communities Strategy 

Peterborough Core Strategy – proposed submission 

Housing Strategy 2008-11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

127



 92 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

128



 93 

PROJECT 8:   WEST-EAST STATION PEDESTRIAN AND CYCLE BRIDGE  

 

Location:  

Station Quarter Development Site 

 

Priority 

High  

 

Description of the project 

The provision of a pedestrian and cycle bridge from the west of the Station to the east. The bridge would 

connect the western and eastern sides of the Peterborough Station Quarter.  

 

Depending on the option chosen to be taken forward the bridge may have provision for retail development 

integrated into the structure.  

 

The bridge would incorporate both passenger and public movement. The bridge would also provide a strategic 

cycle and pedestrian link between the east and west of the city.    

 

 

Need for the project 

The bridge would allow : 

• Access to the station from the west for rail users, the site of a future multi storey car park (and hence 

reduce city centre car trips by early interception before Crescent Bridge)  

• Access for pedestrians and cyclists between the Peterborough Hospital Development site/Station 

Quarter West and the City Centre 

• Access between station quarter east and west 

 

The bridge is vital for the station quarter development, the Peterborough District Hospital development site and 

providing access both to and across the station from the western side of the city. The bridge would ease 

congestion on Crescent Bridge as people will exit Thorpe Road before crescent bridge and be able to access the 

station from the western side, and this will help cater for the predicted growth in rail travel. The bridge would 

also add the use of sustainable modes of travel from new development sites.      

 

Lead organisation 

Peterborough City Council and Network Rail 

 

Partner organisation involved 

Private Developers –Environment Agency, East of England Development Agency (EEDA), Homes and 

Communities Agency. 

 

Status / stage of the project 

WYG Engineering has carried out an option report through Network Rail GRIP Stage 1-3 (1. Output definition, 2. 

Pre-feasibility 3. Option selection).  

 

Project cost Estimates/Funding 

Indicative project costs are currently estimated to be in the region of £15 – 27m, depending upon which of a 

number of options are chosen for this linkway.  Funding is hoped to come from private developers, Network Rail, 

other rail companies and the HCA. 

 

Outputs and outcomes 

129



 94 

Output:  

• Delivery of approximately 75 to 195 affordable homes 

• Unlocks Station Quarter West development potential   

Outcome:  

• Delivery of mixed and sustainable sites 

• Reduce number of households in housing need   

• Meet the demand for affordable housing 

• Provide a range of affordable tenure, unit types and sizes   

• Improved access to the city centre and new employment and leisure opportunities 

• Promotion of sustainable modes of transport link between the east and west of the city 

• Improve community safety through design of the streetscape  

• Improve access to the following proposed development sites: Station Quarter, Peterborough District 

Hospital . 

 

Deliverability and timescales 

Discussions have been had with developers and Network Rail. WYG Engineering has carried out an option report 

through Network Rail GRIP Stage 1-3 (1. Output definition, 2. Pre-feasibility 3. Option selection) for the 

pedestrian and cycle bridge.   It is anticipated that the project will start on site between 2014 and 2015. 

 

Key risks 

1. Private developers do not submit a planning application for the developments 

2.  A number of different developers and landowners are involved in the development of these sites 

3. The design layouts are drawn against a background formed from a combination of historical 

topographical information and OS tile data. The layout design will need to be further developed against 

current and accurate topographical data to ensure the structure will fit at the preferred location and that 

the required minimum clearances can be achieved. 

 

Steps taken to mitigate principle risks 

1. Work closely with developers from the initial stages 

2. Facilitate communications between developers to gain the best possible outcomes   

3. Work closely with designers to ensure that a solution can be found  

 

Alignment with the vision 

Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth: 

Creating better places to live and work – so that we provide better places to live for both new and existing 

communities, ensuring the highest environmental standards of new building. 

 

Alignment with the LDF and other strategies 

Sustainable Communities Strategy 

Peterborough Core Strategy – proposed submission 

Housing Strategy 2008-11 

 

 

 

 
 

130



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

16 March 2011 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Chief Executive  
 
Contact Officer – Richard Kay, Policy and Strategy Manager 
Contact Details – (01733) 863795 or email richard.kay@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

UPDATE ON PRESTIGE HOMES 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 A report providing an update on what is being done to support/encourage the provision of prestige 

homes in Peterborough.  This item was requested by the Chairman of the Sustainable Growth 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 To note the update on support by the City Council for prestige homes  
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 

3.1 This item supports Priority 4 of the Sustainable Communities Strategy “Delivering substantial and 
truly sustainable growth” 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 In March 2009 a research report was produced which examined the need for “top of the market” 
prestige (or executive) homes in Peterborough. The report, which was presented to Planning and 
Environmental Protection Committee in April 2009, can be viewed via:  
 
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/housing/housing_strategy_team/recent_studies_and_strategies.aspx  
 

4.2 The report concludes that there is a relative shortage of prestige homes in Peterborough and makes 
two clear policy recommendations: 
 
1. Preventing the loss of existing homes that serve, or could serve, this type of market; and 
2. Securing the provision of more homes of the type that could meet the need at this end of the 

market.  
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 The above 2009 report has been used as part of the evidence base to help prepare various 
documents that make up the Local Development Framework (LDF), as set out below. Policies are 
included, or in draft, in these documents which, on the whole, both encourage the provision and 
reduce the loss of prestige homes. Extracts of the relevant policies are contained in Appendix 1. 
 

5.2 The Core Strategy (Adopted February 2011): Core Strategy Objective 7 and Policy CS8 (and its 
associated supporting text) refer to Meeting Housing Needs, and require the provision of a variety of 
housing in terms of size, type and tenure including encouraging “executive housing” and “prestige 
homes aimed at the senior professional and managerial market”. 
 

5.3 Site Allocations DPD – Proposed Submission consultation version February 2011: The 
Proposed Submission version of the Site Allocations DPD is currently available for public consultation 

131



until 24 March 2011. The document was approved by Council in December 2010. It will be submitted 
to the Secretary of State in late April or May 2011.  
 

5.4 The Document builds on the overarching support of the Core Strategy, and has an explicit policy on 
‘Prestige Homes’ (Policy SA8) which includes naming specific sites where such homes would be 
encouraged. The Site Allocations Document is scheduled for adoption in early 2012. 
 

5.5 Planning Policies DPD – Consultation Draft February 2011: The Planning Policies DPD will 
provide detailed planning policy to help in determining planning applications.  This document is in the 
early stages of production. A consultation draft is currently available for public consultation until 24 
March 2011. We will review all the comments made and prepare a Proposed Submission draft 
version of the document, which will be subject to further public consultation in the autumn / winter. 
 

5.6 The consultation draft includes a policy (PP4) which restricts the loss of existing prestige homes. As 
stated, this policy is still in draft form, however the existing Peterborough Local Plan (First 
Replacement 2005) policy ‘H24 – Subdivision of Single Dwellings’ can in the meantime be used when 
determining planning applications on existing larger homes. 
 

5.7 Monitoring the delivery of Prestige Homes: The Strategic Planning and Enabling team monitor the 
number of new dwellings completed each year and produce a Housing Monitoring Report. The 2010 
report can be viewed at http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/pdf/env-pla-monitoring-2010housing.pdf. 
This report monitors different tenures, but does not monitor different type and size of dwellings. To be 
clear, therefore, we do not have a baseline of precisely how many prestige homes there currently are 
in Peterborough and we do not monitor the number of prestige homes built each year. The main 
reason for this is that it is somewhat subjective in determining whether a home (existing or built) 
qualifies as a ‘prestige home’, and therefore it would be unduly burdensome and ineffective for 
officers to attempt to statistically monitor the situation. As such, there are no plans to commence such 
statistical monitoring of prestige home building. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 This report is for information only. There are no direct implications arising. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 All policy documents referred to above have been through appropriate public consultation during the 
last five years. The Site Allocations and Planning Policies DPDs are currently available for public 
consultation until 24 March 2011.  
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 To progress the Site Allocations and Planning Policies Documents, taking into account any 
comments received as part of the consultation exercises. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

9.1 The relevant background documents are referred to in Parts 4 and 5 of this report. 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 Appendix 1 – Extracts of Policies  
 

 

132



Appendix 1 – Extracts of Policies 
 
Peterborough Core Strategy Adopted February 2011 
 
Objectives: 
“OB7: Balanced Mixed Housing – To meet the needs and aspirations of Peterborough’s existing and 
future population by ensuring that there is a  balanced mix of housing tenures and sizes throughout the 
area, including increased provision of homes for executives and professionals in order to attract  and 
retain more highly skilled workers within the area.” 
 
Section 6.2 Meeting Housing Needs 
 
“6.2.2  Three of the key objectives of this Core Strategy are to ensure that this proposed new housing 
delivers a balanced mix of tenures and sizes (objective OB7), delivers sufficient affordable housing 
(objective OB8) and improves the overall quality of the stock (objective OB9). In short, a key task for this 
Core Strategy is to present a policy that will deliver housing that meets all needs.” 
 
“6.2.4  It is a key objective of national policy for housing that there should be a wide choice, variety and 
mix of housing, which addresses both market and affordable housing (PPS3, paragraphs 9, 10, and 20 
to 25). This will help to achieve sustainable mixed communities. Provision of a variety of housing in 
terms of size, type and tenure helps to meet the need for appropriate family housing, young professional 
and executive housing, prestige homes aimed at the senior professional and managerial market as well 
as smaller dwellings suitable for first  time buyers and newly-forming households.” 
 
Core Strategy Policy CS8: 
 

 
“Policy CS8 - Meeting Housing Needs 
 
The strategy will be to secure a wide choice of high quality new homes that meet the needs of all 
members of the community, widening the range of property sizes available in response to future needs 
and demand, providing houses that will help to encourage employees to live locally rather than commute 
into Peterborough from elsewhere, and supporting the economic development strategy of this Core 
Strategy. Developers will be encouraged to bring forward proposals for housing which will provide a mix 
of housing types and size that will meet the identified need for Peterborough in order to secure mixed 
communities. 
 
On all development sites on which 15 or more dwellings are proposed (whether as 
new-build or conversion), the City Council will seek provision, through negotiation, of: 
 
 (a) 30% of the dwellings as affordable houses (unless the proposed development is itself for 
more than 30% affordable housing); and 
 (b) 70% of any affordable dwellings to be in the form of social rented homes and 30% in the form 
of intermediate homes.  
 
The Council will negotiate with developers to secure affordable housing on the basis of the above 
targets, but will take into account the financial viability of any individual scheme (using a recognised 
viability model). Affordable housing shall be provided on the development site, unless the developer can 
demonstrate exceptional circumstances which necessitate provision on another site, or the payment of a 
financial contribution (of broadly equivalent value) to the Council to enable some housing need to be met 
elsewhere. 
 
The Council may release a site adjacent to a village envelope for the provision of affordable housing, as 
an exception to the normal policy of development restraint in the countryside, provided that: the site is 
otherwise suitable for residential development in the light of all other policies in the development plan; 
and a specific local need for affordable housing has been demonstrated, over and above that which 
could be met through the operation of the affordable housing policy set out above; and the proposed 
development would provide affordable housing of a number and type which meets (or contributes 
towards meeting) the local need. 

133



 
Working in partnership with developers, housebuilders, registered social landlords and other 
stakeholders, the Council will seek housing solutions that meet the particular needs of all sectors of the 
community. Until such time as the construction of all dwellings to Lifetime Homes Standards becomes a 
mandatory part of the national Code for Sustainable Homes, on all development sites on which 15 or 
more dwellings are proposed, there will be a requirement to provide 20% of the dwellings to Lifetime 
Homes standards. On all development sites on which 50 or more dwellings are proposed, there will be 
an additional requirement to provide 2% of the dwellings as wheelchair homes.” 
 

 
 
 
Peterborough Site Allocations DPD – Proposed Submission February 2011 

 
“Prestige Homes 
 
3.27  The Core Strategy (policy CS8 Meeting Housing Needs) requires the provision of a wide choice 
of high quality new homes that meet the needs of all members of the community and provides housing 
that will help encourage employees to live locally rather than commute into Peterborough. The Council 
wants this provision to include “top of the market” or prestige homes. 
 
3.28  A report assessing the need for prestige homes was produced in March 2009 ('Need for ‘top of 
the market’ Prestige Homes in Peterborough'), concluding that a substantial proportion of higher paid 
people in managerial, professional and technical occupations are commuting into Peterborough for work, 
whilst living elsewhere in the housing market area (and possibly beyond). Nearly half of the managers 
and senior officials who work in Peterborough live outside the local authority area. Full details of this can 
be found in the supporting Evidence  Report. 
 
3.29  There is no specific definition of ‘top of the market’ prestige homes, but these can be generally 
regarded as being at the higher end of the market in terms of value (within the highest 10% price bracket 
of dwellings in the housing market area as a whole); large (perhaps with 5 bedrooms or more); and 
individually designed,  with a high specification, detailing and facilities. Newly-built houses in this sector 
would be typically aimed at the senior professional and managerial market or would be of a bespoke 
design for an individual client. 
 
3.30  The following policy identifies sites which the Council considers would be  particularly suitable for 
prestige homes, although prestige homes on parts of other allocated sites may also be appropriate.” 
 

“Policy SA8 -Prestige Homes 
 
The following sites will be expected to include a reasonable proportion of prestige homes in line 
with the requirements of Core Strategy policy CS8: 
 

• SA1.4 - Great Haddon 

• SA1.5 - Norwood 

• SA3.38 - Land off Itter Crescent 

• SA3.46 - Site of Orton Brick Works, south of Hampton Vale (Hampton) 

• SA3.47 - Triangle Land West of Hampton Vale (Hampton) 

• Allocated sites in the Rural Area” 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

134



Peterborough Planning Policies – Consultation Draft February 2011 
 

 
“Policy PP4 - Prestigious Homes 
 
Planning permission will not be granted for development which would involve the loss of a 
dwelling (whether by demolition and redevelopment or by conversion or by change of use) which 
meets the need for prestigious, top-of-the market housing, unless either: 

(a) the proposed development would itself create one or more prestigious dwellings; 
Or 

(b) there is clear evidence that the dwelling that would be lost has been marketed at a realistic 
price for an appropriate period of time without genuine interest in its purchase and 
occupation as a dwelling.” 

 

 
 
“3.4.1  If Peterborough’s economic development strategy of growth based on the attraction of new and 
expanding companies in the environmental and knowledge-based industries is to succeed, there will be 
a need for large, top-of-the range houses that will enable business leaders to live locally. Provision has 
been made for the development of new properties in this sector of the market in the Peterborough Core 
Strategy and the Peterborough Site Allocations DPDs. However, large existing houses in generous plots, 
including older properties and those in conservation areas, will also help to meet this particular need. 
The policy therefore seeks to prevent their loss.” 
 
 
 
 

135



136

This page is intentionally left blank



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  
 

Agenda Item No. 8 

16 March 2011 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Head of the Peterborough Delivery Partnership 
 
Contact Officer(s) – Howard Bright, Head of Growth Delivery, and Richard Kay, Policy and 

Strategy Manager 
Contact Details –  01733 452619 and 01733 863795 
 

PROGRESS ON THE DEVELOPMENT OF CITY CENTRE AREA ACTION PLAN 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Scrutiny Committee on the progress made towards 

the Council’s City Centre Area Action Plan (CCAAP) 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee note current progress and the approach being taken going forward. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 

3.1 The CCAAP is directly relevant to meeting the priorities of the Sustainable Community 
Strategy, particularly ‘Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth’ and ‘Creating 
strong and supportive communities’. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 The CCAAP forms part of the Local Development Framework, sitting alongside and 
complementing the Core Strategy.  Like the Core Strategy, the CCAAP will cover the period up 
to 2026, but whereas the Core Strategy provides providing an overall vision for the 
development of the city as a whole, the CCAAP is – as the name suggests – focused on the city 
centre.  It will identify opportunity areas within the city centre and provide vision and policy for 
their subsequent development or regeneration.  As a statutory planning document, it will be 
subject to similar consultation processes and – ultimately – public examination by a planning 
inspector on behalf of the Secretary of State prior to being presented to Council for adoption.   
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 The current difficult economic climate presents particular challenges for developing an effective 
CCAAP.  The plan must be demonstrably deliverable – with a suitable supporting evidence 
base justifying the choices made within it – for it to pass independent examination by a planning 
inspector.  As such, much of the current work on the document is focused on exploring the 
options for different areas so that the outline commercial viability of proposals can be judged.   
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 When adopted, which may well take a further two years or more to complete the statutory 
planning process, the CCAAP will become a key policy document within the Local Development 
Framework and its policies will help shape the future development of the whole city centre area. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 At this very early conception stage of development no formal consultation has been undertaken, 

137



but there will be extensive consultation on this as progress is made, both internally and 
externally with a wide range of stakeholders.   
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 The next steps for the development of the CCAAP are outlined below: 
 

• Complete informal outline commercial assessment of the concept opportunity area uses 

• Revise and revisit any content based on these discussions as appropriate to create the 
first ‘outline’ CCAAP 

• Seek input and comments from key internal stakeholders on this outline 

• The outline will then go through appropriate committee approval processes 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

9.1 None. 
 

 

138



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 9 

16 MARCH 2011 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Report Author – Louise Tyers, Scrutiny Manager 
Contact Details – 01733 452284 or email louise.tyers@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This is a regular report to the Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee outlining the content of the 

Council’s Forward Plan. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan is attached at Appendix 1.  The Plan contains those key 
decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Member(s) will be making over the next four months. 
 

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan provides the Committee with the opportunity of considering 
whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to request further 
information. 
 

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 

 
4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan. 

 
5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 

 Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 
 
 

139



140

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

PETERBOROUGH CITY  
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 

1 MARCH 2011 TO 30 JUNE 2011 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

1
4
1



 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS - 1 MARCH 2011 TO 30 JUNE 2011 AB 
 
During the period from 1 March 2011 To 30 June 2011 Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set out 
below.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 and/or 
have a significant impact on two or more wards in Peterborough. 
 
This Forward Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions and it will be updated on a monthly basis.  The dates detailed within the Plan 
are subject to change and those items amended or identified for decision more than one month in advance will be carried over to forthcoming plans.  
Each new plan supersedes the previous plan.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form which appears at 
the back of the Plan and submitted to Alex Daynes, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 
01733 452483). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to alexander.daynes@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452447. 
 
The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed and the papers listed on the Plan can 
be viewed free of charge although there will be a postage and photocopying charge for any copies made. All decisions will be posted on the Council's 
website: www.peterborough.gov.uk.   If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions' outlined in this Plan, please submit 
them to the Governance Support Officer using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service departments 
are incorporated within this plan. 
 

NEW ITEMS THIS MONTH: 
 
Voluntary Partnership Agreement for Local Bus Services - KEY/05MAR/11 
Social Work Practice Pilot - KEY/01APR/11 
 
 
 

 
 

1
4
2



 
 
 

MARCH 
 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DATE OF 
DECISION 

DECISION MAKER RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

REPORTS 

Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Coneygree Lodge, 
Coneygree Road - 
KEY/01NOV/10 
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Executive Director 
– Strategic Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale of 
Coneygree Lodge at 
Coneygree Road. 
 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth Scrutiny 
Committee 

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Alastair Smith 
Temp Capital Projects Officer 
Tel: 01733 384532 
alastair.smith@peterborough.
gov.uk 
 

Public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Contract Award - Adult 
Drug Treatment Services 
- KEY/11NOV/10 
To award the contracts for the 
delivery of Adult Drug 
Treatment Services 
 

 
 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Community 
Cohesion, Safety 
and Women’s 
Enterprise 
 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Internal 
departments as 
appropriate 
Safer Peterborough 
Partnership 

 
 

Gary Goose 
Community Safety Strategic 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 863780 
gary.goose@peterborough.go
v.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

1
4
3



 

Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Land and 
Buildings - Vawser Lodge 
Thorpe Road - 
KEY/04DEC/10 
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation with 
the Solicitor to the Council, 
Executive Director – Strategic 
Resources, the Corporate 
Property Officer and the 
Cabinet Member Resources, 
to negotiate and conclude the 
sale of Vawser Lodge 

 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Sandra Neely 
Temp Capital Projects Officer 
Tel: 01733 384541 
sandra.neely@peterborough.
gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Security Framework 
Contract - lot 2 - 
KEY/09DEC/10 
Award lot 2 of framework 
contract; cash collection and 
cash in transit services, 
delivering services for the 
council such as collecting 
cash from parking meters and 
banking it securely. 

 
 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal and 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 

 
 
 

Matthew Rains 
P2P Manager 
Tel: 01733 317996 
matthew.rains@peterborough
.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

1
4
4



 

Peterborough Local 
Investment Plan - 
KEY/01FEB/11 
Document for submission 
to the Homes and 
Communities Agency, 
drawn largely from the 
Integrated Development 
Programme (Adopted 
December 2009). The LIP 
is the first stage towards 
applying for funding from 
the HCA for primarily 
housing-related project 
aspirations in the City. 
 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal and 
External 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 
 
 

Andrew Edwards 
Head of Peterborough 
Delivery Partnership 
Tel: 01733 452303 
andrew.edwards@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Supply of Utility in 
respect of Electricity, Gas 
and Oil to Council Owned 
properties managed by 
Strategic Property Unit - 
KEY/03FEB/11 
To award the contract for 
supply of Electricity and Gas 
to the single source supplier 
under the nationally awarded 
EU compliant ESPO 
framework agreement. 
 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal 
consultation where 
appropriate 

 
 

Mandy Sterling 
Strategic Sourcing Manager 
Tel: 01733 384607 
mandy.sterling@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

1
4
5



 

Section 75 Variation 
2011-12 - KEY/08FEB/11 
To extend the existing 
partnership agreement under 
the National Health Act 2006 
to pool funding from NHS 
Peterborough and PCC to 
commission drugs services by 
one year. 
 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Community 
Cohesion, Safety 
and Women’s 
Enterprise 
 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Internal and 
external partners 

 
 

Karen Kibblewhite 
Community Safety And 
Substance Misuse Manager 
Tel: 01733 864122 
karen.kibblewhite@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Refuse Derived Fuel - 
KEY/09FEB/11 
To amend existing contract to 
enter into a 1 year agreement 
with HW Martin Waste Ltd to 
send material to Refuse 
Derived Fuel Facility 

 

March 2011 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Culture, Recreation 
and Strategic 
Commissioning 
 

Environment 
Capital 

Internal and 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 

 
 

Amy Nebel 
Recycling Contracts Officer 
Tel: 01733 864727 
amy.nebel@peterborough.go
v.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Hampton Community 
School - KEY/10FEB/11 
To launch a school 
competition for a new Primary 
School with community sports 
and library facilities in 
Hampton 

 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills 
and University 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

The local 
community and 
all potential 
bidders.  A public 
meeting will be 
arranged as part 
of the process. 
 
 

Isabel Clark 
Head of Assets and School 
Place Planning 
Tel: 01733 863914 
isabel.clark@peterborough.go
v.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

1
4
6



 

Interim Adult Drug 
Treatment Services - 
KEY/11FEB/11 
To agree short term provision 
of adult drug treatment 
services before final award of 
Adult Drug Treatment 
Services tender. 

 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Community 
Cohesion, Safety 
and Women’s 
Enterprise 
 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Internal 
departments as 
appropriate 
Safer Peterborough 
Partnership 

 
 

Karen Kibblewhite 
Community Safety And 
Substance Misuse Manager 
Tel: 01733 864122 
karen.kibblewhite@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Section 75 Agreements 
with Cambridgeshire 
Community Services, 
NHS Peterborough and 
Cambridge & 
Peterborough Foundation 
Trust - KEY/12FEB/11 
Approval of s.75 Agreements 
with Cambridgeshire 
Community Services for the 
provision of Adult Social Care; 
with NHS Peterborough for 
the provision of Learning 
Disability Services; and with 
Cambridge & Peterborough 
Foundation Trust for the 
provision of mental health 
services. 
 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult 
Social Care 
 

Health Issues Relevant internal 
and external 
Stakeholders 

 
 

Denise Radley 
Executive Director of Adult 
Social Services 
Tel: 01733 758444 
denise.radley@peterborough.
gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

1
4
7



 

Integrated Case 
Management System for 
Children's Services - 
KEY/13FEB/11 
To award a contract to replace 
existing Children’s Services 
case management systems 
with a single integrated 
system. 
 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Internal 
stakeholders 

 
 

Elaine Alexander 
Head of Programmes and 
Project Management 
(Children's Services) 
Tel: 01733 317984 
elaine.alexander@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 

Local Transport Plan 
Capital Programme of 
Works 2011/12 - 
KEY/01MAR/11 
To approve the proposed LTP 
Capital Programme of Works 
for 2011/12 

 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing, 
Neighbourhoods 
and Planning 
 

Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
stakeholders and 
the Environment 
Capital Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Michael Stevenson 
Project Engineer 
Tel: 01733 317473 
michael.stevenson@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Supply of Temporary 
Agency Workers - 
KEY/02MAR/11 
To approve a framework 
agreement to supply 
temporary agency following a 
competitive tendering 
exercise. 
 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Community 
Cohesion, Safety 
and Women’s 
Enterprise 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal 
consultation as 
appropriate 

 
 

Mandy Sterling 
Strategic Sourcing Manager 
Tel: 01733 384607 
mandy.sterling@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

1
4
8



 

Adult Drug Treatment 
Plan 2011-2014 - 
KEY/04MAR/11 
To approve the plan. 

 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Community 
Cohesion, Safety 
and Women’s 
Enterprise 
 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Safer Peterborough 
Partnership Board; 
SPP Delivery 
Board; SPP Adult 
Joint 
Commissioning 
Group for Drugs; 
local service 
providers; the local 
service user group, 
SUGA. 

 

Karen Kibblewhite 
Community Safety And 
Substance Misuse Manager 
Tel: 01733 864122 
karen.kibblewhite@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

Voluntary Partnership 
Agreement for Local Bus 
Services - KEY/05MAR/11 
To approve incorporating a 
number of small value local 
bus service De Minimis 
Agreements into one 
Voluntary Partnership 
Agreement. 

March 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing, 
Neighbourhoods 
and Planning 
 

Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
stakeholders 
 
 

Cathy Summers 
Team Manager - Passenger 
Transport Contracts and 
Planning 
 
cathy.summers@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

 

APRIL 
 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DATE OF 
DECISION 

DECISION MAKER RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

REPORTS 

Museum Redevelopment 
Project - KEY/03DEC/10 
To authorise the award of the 
contract for the Museum 
Redevelopment project. 
 

April 2011 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Culture, Recreation 
and Strategic 
Commissioning 
 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Consultation will 
take place with 
relevant internal 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Strategic Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.Pilsworth@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 

1
4
9



 

Bayard Place - 
replacement of air-
conditioning system 
(legislative works) - 
KEY/03MAR/11 
To authorise the award of the 
contract for the replacement of 
the air-conditioning system at 
Bayard Place 
 

April 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Consultation will 
take place with 
relevant internal 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Julie Robinson-Judd 
Head of Strategic Property 
Tel: 01733 384544 
julie.robinson.judd@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Social Work Practice Pilot 
- KEY/01APR/11 
Agree arrangements for the 
procurement and provision of 
Social Work Practice Pilots for 
children in care. 
 

April 2011 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Social work staff; 
children in care; 
corporate parenting 
panel members 
and Trade Unions 
 
 

Andrew Brunt 
Assistant Director - Families 
and Communities 
 
andrew.brunt@peterborough.
gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

       

       

MAY 

There are currently no Key decisions scheduled for May. 
 

 

JUNE 

There are currently no Key decisions scheduled for June. 
 

 

1
5
0


	Agenda
	3a Joint Scrutiny Meeting (Budget) - 6 January 2011
	3b 2 February 2011
	5 Complaints Monitoring Report 2009/10
	110316 - Sustainable Growth - Complaints Monitoring Report - Appendix 1

	6 Peterborough Local Investment Plan
	110316 - Sustainable Growth - Peterborough Local Investment Plan - Appendix 1

	7 Update on Prestige Homes
	110316 - Sustainable Growth - Update on Prestige Homes - Appendix 1 - Extracts from Policies

	8 Progress on the Development of the City Centre Area Action Plan
	9 Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	110316 - Sustainable Growth - Forward Plan - Appendix 1


